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“Look Beyond Today” —
We see tomorrow from today, like looking through the zoom lens of a camera

Our great attention to operation details today helps us zoom in greater potential growth in the future

SARKFIEAEE

CRE always has a sharp focus on building success.
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Our customers prefer variety and so do we

Our retail business has been tracking customer preferences
and exploring new store formats to offer you a diversity of
merchandise as well as shopping experience.



+34%
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Our supermarket operation reported a 34% increase
in turnover to HK$31 billion driven by same store growth
and new store opening.
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Our customers treasure friendship and so do we

Our national brand “SNOW” always serves your need
when you share enjoyable moments with your friends.
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Beer sales volume hit another record of
over 7 million kiloliters with “SNOW”
representing 84% of total volume sold.
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Our customers adore premium quality and so do we

Our food business has been tapping the enormous potential
of the mainland market to fuel its growth, aiming to bring the
high quality food of our “Ng Fung” brand into every household
in China.
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Profit before taxation from the Chinese Mainland soared by 66%,
exceeding that of Hong Kong for the first time.
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Our customers love fashion and so do we

Our textile business always keeps pace with the
vogue, introducing casual denim products to bring out
your unique style.



1,280,000

XIS E#8151,200,0004] © B EIRIBTERAVDREL o
Garment sales exceeded 1,200,000 dozens
despite the challenging environment.
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2008 was not only a challenging year but also an affirmative year for CRE
in the sense that it proved our solid foundation laid through all these years
had succeeded in braving the difficult times. Against the global financial
turmoil, earnings and earnings per share from the continuing operations
were only slightly lower than those of 2007. Although we no longer ended
the year with record results as we had done in the past, core businesses
contributed 80% of our underlying profit before corporate expenses.
It justified our strategy to divest non-core businesses and dedicate our
efforts to core consumer-related businesses for our long-term growth.

This is my fifth as well as my last letter to update you as Chairman on the
progress of CRE’s transformation into a focused consumer company, and
| am pleased to report that despite the worsening operating environment
accompanied with the global financial crisis, our major market positions
instead strengthened further in 2008. Supermarket operation, for instance,
registered 34% turnover growth boosted by same store increase, reinforcing
its dominant presence in the target districts. Our national beer brand,
“SNOW”, consolidated its position as one of the leading brands in the
world with tremendous sales volume growth of 19%. For food, there was
a surge in pre-tax profit contribution from the mainland, exceeding that
of Hong Kong for the first time. With prudent financial policy, our gearing
ratio was kept at a low level of 19% at the end of last year. We take pride
in these competitive edges brought about by our sharp operational focus
on businesses at which we are good and daily efforts that transform into
critical drivers of the future.

However, following the global stock market meltdown, CRE’s stock
performance in 2008 reversed the upward trend in the previous five years.
Our share price was down 60% during the year. In terms of percentage drop,
our stock performance ranked 27th out of the 42 constituent companies
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of the Hang Seng Index. To conserve cash in uncertain times, our annual
basic payout ratio was marginally lowered from 41.9% to 41.2%.

We always attach great importance to investor relations and corporate
governance as we take seriously our responsibility to ensure proper
disclosure and practices implemented in shareholders’ best interest.
Such efforts have been acclaimed by the market in a series of awards we
received during the year listed on page 26. A new section on corporate
risk management has been added in this annual report to illustrate our
philosophy and mechanism in controlling risks. | would also like to invite
you to refer to the section on corporate social responsibility to share with
us the joy brought by our participation in various activities to take care of
the community and environment.

Mr. Qiao Shibo will succeed me as Chairman of CRE with effect from 30
April 2009. Being a director of CRE for over six years, he has a good
grasp of all operations. | am fully confident of his ability to lead CRE to
the future.

The extent to which our operating environment will be undermined by the
global financial turmoil is still hard to predict. But it is a good opportunity
to examine and enhance our core competence. Looking beyond today, we
remain confident of building a promising future in the long run with our
steadfast conviction to become the largest consumer company in China.
Such confidence is well supported by our farsighted management and
talented employees. All of us believe that our perseverance, concentration
and hard work of today zoom in a glamorous picture of tomorrow.

L

Song Lin
Chairman
31 March 2009

#MAIZAMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 %3}
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is a listed company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business
emphasis on the consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong. Our mission is to become the largest consumer
company in China. To achieve this, the Group has already
established leading presence in our core business domains

of retail, beverage, food and textile. There are operational
synergies among these consumer-related businesses.

Notably, food, beverage as well as textile form

part of the supply chain for the retail business,

together driving the Group’s overall

development.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

EHEARBRAA

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

s HBARTIS R o RIS () 2 A A HithZEE
== Supermarket and Brand-fashion Other Retail Stores
Retail Logistics Distribution
T FEHSEEBEERAF (51%) FIDEIN
China Resources Purified Water
Beverage Snow Breweries Limited (51%)
[ | zee M/
RmilTRAEH AR ARINT REERE BFE - EHRE
Food Processing and Foodstuff Distribution Food Processing and Abattoir Operation,
Distribution Stock Raising Transportation and Others
A5 8 54 R R 4
Textile Spinning and Weaving Garment Others
REW= wayE
Investment property Investment Properties
Eﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ - Hutchison Ports Yantian
HIT Investments Limited A
Investments and (10%) Investmentt)s Limited
Others (t0%)

FEMAIZHBMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 3 13
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
—EENF ZETLF ZETRF
2008 2007 2006
BETET BEEST BEEET
BHE-FZEN\F+=H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2008 ~ HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
R Turnover
- BERE XS - continuing operations 51,513 40,337
- BRI E 2 ¥ - discontinued operation’ 10,610 25,100
62,123 65,437
A FIRE A E T Profit attributable to shareholders
of the Company
- FERE XK - continuing operations 2,379 1,774
- BRIEEEZER — discontinued operation’ 2,582 1,002
4,961 2,776
SREARZEF® (B¥IT)  Basic earnings per share? (HK$)
- BHEIRE 2 TS - continuing operations $1.00 $0.76
- BRI E 2 #E - discontinued operation’ $1.09 $0.43
$2.09 $1.19
FRRE(BEIT) Dividend per share (HK$)
- — interim $0.15 $0.14
- R — final $0.30 $0.26
$0.45 $0.40
- Rl H R - special interim $0.60 $1.00

SREXBR(FELSEER)
EEE(FESEER) Basic Earnings Per Share
Turnover (Continuing Operations) (Continuing Operations)

B H BT HK$ million ST HKS

70,000 1.0
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
R-ZBENF RZTELF RZTTRF
t=A=t-8B +ZA=t-H8 +ZA=+-H
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2006
BYEHER BEBEET BEBRET
HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
VNN &S Sy Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 22,871 19,141
DEIR R Minority interests 7,293 5,824
arEs Total equity 30,164 24,965
FEETURR Consolidated net borrowings 4,004 1,781
afx’ Gearing ratio? 13.3% 7.1%
BN R Current ratio 1.05 1.08
BREEFE Net assets per share:
- BREECERTT) - book value (HK$) $9.59 $8.12
B Notes:

1. RIBERLFEAAR ARFAEEKREEGmRERE
ISR - ZXBERBEBMBME ERE 5 HIIED

R E TS

°

2. BEZTT)N\F ZTTHER-TTRFF-_A=1—
BIEFE2SREERFID R ABE 0.97 7T B 2.077T

R&B 117 T

c CETLFUTBRCRILEEEB LT

R E R BN 1.08 T ( ZZTTRE B o.427T) ©
3. BELEEGABRFEEGERENLLG

DA RREL R
Equity Attributable to Shareholders
of the Company

BB EIT HKS million

30,000

20,000

1.

The Company completed the disposal of its petroleum and related products
distribution operation at the end of June 2007. This operation is presented as
discontinued operation according to the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2008, 2007 and 2006
were HK$0.97, HK$2.07 and HK$1.17 respectively. The 2007 amount included diluted
earnings per share of the discontinued operation of HK$1.08 (2006: HK$0.42).

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

SREETFE: REE
Net Assets Per Share : Book Value

ST HKS

12
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ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA'

BEEBCEXE

Turnover by segment

1% | 53%
7% L

BEEBZAFFE - BE - TERBHAEF
EBITDA by segment

4% | 31%
1
!

1
\
1

\

10% :I 6%
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EXRBRAREME - MIA - wERBBANRN DN X
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EBITDA

ZEENE ZTTtF  #/CRD)
2008 2007 Increased/
BEBEET BEEHEET (Decreased)
BIHER L X Turnover by segment HKS million  HK$ million %
BOER Core Businesses
=85 Retail 34,651 26,008 33.2%
R Beverage 17,405 13,304 30.8%
RN T R4 Food Processing and Distribution 7,645 7,381 3.6%
FE Textile 4,829 4,713 2.5%
wEME Investment Property 434 375 15.7%
INEE Subtotal 64,964 51,781 25.5%
pyE Other Businesses
B REMER Investments and Others = - =
64,964 51,781 25.5%
HIEEBBR IR S Elimination of inter-segment transactions (336) (268) 25.4%
BESEER 2 EEE Total from continuing operations 64,628 51,513 25.5%
ERIREER Discontinued operation
B M AEREE AL SE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution - 10,610 (100.0%)
k) Total 64,628 62,123 4.0%
BIEEHZARFTHFE - HE - EBITDA by segment
MERBHIRF
B ¥R Core Businesses
=5 Retail 1,934 1,536 25.9%
R Beverage 2,141 1,514 41.4%
Ran T RAE8H Food Processing and Distribution 624 841 (25.8%)
FE Textile 440 461 (4.6%)
wEME Investment Property 860 836 2.9%
NEE Subtotal 5,999 5,188 15.6%
Hb#EHK Other Businesses
WA NEMER’ Investments and Others? 240 250 (4.0%)
FREERER 2 HE Total from continuing operations 6,239 5:438 14.7%
ERIEREER Discontinued operation
Al kAR E M Petroleum and Related Products Distribution - 2,677 (100.0%)
e Total 6,239 8,115 (23.1%)
Bi5E Notes:
1. EBITDA ARFIFIE - B - 18 KB HATEF - 1. EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortization.
2. RERHMEBOIERIGE S QR EEFELINAEH 2. Investments and Others include share of net result of associates less corporate
B - overheads.

EMAIE AR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Annual Report 2008 3§
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ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

BIREL 2 R REGEF
Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

123%
1
1

BEEBNBRREVEECREETEFRVEE REFE 2 RREIERR
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and
major disposal of non-core assets/investments by segment

130%
1

18
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ANALYSIS OF PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

—BENE ZTTtF  #En/CRD)
2008 2007 Increased/
BIHFEKZ Profit attributable to shareholders BEEET BEHEBT (Decreased)
% 3R B AL R F by segment HKS million  HK$ million %
BOER Core Businesses
€ Retail 590 521 13.2%
/) Beverage 409 303 35.0%
BT R4 H Food Processing and Distribution 312 531 (41.2%)
FE Textile 74 144 (48.6%)
WEME Investment Property 754 648 16.4%
et Subtotal 2,139 2,147 (0.4%)
Hb¥% Other Businesses
WA RHEMER Investments and Others 396 429 (7.7%)
2,535 2,576 (1.6%)
NRBIHF S FERER Net corporate interest and expenses (213) (197) 8.1%
BEREEK T Total from continuing operations 2,322 2,379 (2.4%)
CRLEREER Discontinued operation
M AERIE AL SE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution - 2,582 (100.0%)
k| Total 2,322 4,961 (53.2%)
BEEKINBRIZEYWEEM  Profit attributable to shareholders
RHEFERZOEE excluding the effect of investment property
REFE ZRREGEF revaluation and major disposal of
non-core assets/investments by segment
BOER Core Businesses
=g’ Retail’ 595 500 19.0%
/T Beverage 409 303 35.0%
BN TRAEH’ Food Processing and Distribution’ 227 471 (51.8%)
44> Textile? 40 122 (67.2%)
wmEmE Investment Property* 339 240 41.3%
/NEt Subtotal 1,610 1,636 (1.6%)
Bt Other Businesses
WE R HE MR Investments and Others 396 429 (7.7%)
2,006 2,065 (2.9%)
NREIF S FELE A Net corporate interest and expenses (213) (197) 8.1%
BESEEKR 2B Total from continuing operations 1,793 1,868 (4.0%)
CRIEREER Discontinued operation
il M AERE A AT SE Petroleum and Related Products Distribution - 183 (100.0%)
LG Total 1,793 2,051 (12.6%)
B3 Notes:

TEATEEBAHAZ IERNEFHEAEBBOE S 0o BT
(ZTTF FEERBES 0208 ) ETRIBEEEEF -
BRI REHEBHEETBIENEBERRMSENHBE
085 BIL(ZZT+5F : B o6ofErT) -
TEHHBEGMBAZIXREFHEBRENE oL
(ZFTLF  OFEERBER 0287 ) R EIFROIREFLH
B o3 BN ( 22T HF Bl o0 B )ETRELEEEF -

BREVMEXEBHNEETERZFHERB AN B B8 T
(ZZT+F : B 408187T) °

1.

2.

3.

Net valuation deficit of approximately HK$5 million arising mainly from industrial buildings held by the
Retail division (2007: Net valuation surplus of HK$21 million) has been excluded from its results.

Net gain on disposal of associates amounting to approximately HK$85 million (2007: HK$60 million)
has been excluded from the results of the Food Processing and Distribution division.

Net valuation deficit of approximately HK$1 million arising mainly from industrial buildings held by
the Textile division (2007: Net valuation surplus of HK$12 million) and a gain on disposal of non-core
investments amounting to approximately HK$35 million (2007: HK$10 million) have been excluded
from its results.

Net valuation surplus of approximately HK$415 million (2007: HK$408 million) has been excluded from
the results of the Investment Property division.

EHAIE AR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 &£k
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

AEER—ZTLFRNARTRHEIFR OO
MAREMEHEBN 2 MER - —TT/\FH
Al ZECRIEREXBI BEMRARR
BEA S DT RR AR B VIS B 2 575 -

HE_ZZN\F+-F=1+—HILFE  HELL
¥BREE E XN R B 64,628,000,000 7T
BT EE A 25.5% © HERKEEBKHD
BIRR B AL 5 T 49 578 ¥4 2,322,000,000 7T * BRAT
FRD2.4% - FEECEEBOTRERBFZES
¥ o.9770 B —EZFE¥ 1.007T ©

T N\FRIZTLFNREVESHRLE
FEFROEERBRENBIELE D BIE B
529,000,000 JT & 7 ¥ 511,000,000 7 * H Bk % &
FEE AEEEE-TT)/\F+ZA=+—8
I FERBELSEF TR O A RRREEER

A RMERD 4.0% °

EETERBER_ZETNFAAA+T_BHFE A
*%Tﬂiﬁﬂ +HBZFNARRRIE LM
BREE—ZZN\FERPRE - BEE0.25
T ( ZE2TEF: tﬂx/%’ﬁgo 3070 ) ° EBREF
HREFRAEB s L —ETNFEHKELR
B ESREE oo ( Z2TLF : GIREBK
0.457C ) ' BREZEZTLFRH 1% ©

AARBH_EENERA-+RABRE-_ZTH
FREAZ-TAB ( BEEEMK ) EEiHERG
BEBLFE - AHAERRBBRENER BT
BEIZNAPRFERGHERE  HEBAR-ZT
ENFRAZTZATFERE=T9RRERR
BB HBFESEZEFRAR - ik AES
BT 2R ARER 285 S BEHR L 26 18 o

oE
AERKATESAREEBCEMNBIE A%
BETEIRERNZOVEBEER - BIEATISGE
R RABFEN WARKERETEY - HE
ZETEN\FFH+ZA=ZFT—HLFE AEENHE
21»‘55]&@5%%701*7 P KRB BAREmETEE
CRIZETEFEARAIEE 100 BB AT
’J\ EARNEBMNAZFEHEFZOAMER -

The Group completed the disposal of its entire equity interest in the non-
core petroleum and related products distribution business at the end of
June 2007. There was no contribution from this discontinued operation
during 2008 thus the analysis below represents only the continuing
operations of the Group.

Consolidated turnover contributed by the continuing operations for the year
ended 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately HK$64,628 million,
representing an increase of 25.5% over that of 2007. Profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders contributed by the continuing operations was
approximately HK$2,322 million, 2.4% lower than that of the previous year.
Basic earnings per share from the continuing operations were HK$0.97
compared to HK$1.00 in 2007.

Excluding the after-tax effect of revaluation of investment properties and
major disposal of non-core assets and investments, which led to aggregate
gains of HK$529 million in 2008 and HK$511 million in 2007, the Group’s
underlying consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
contributed by the continuing operations would have decreased by 4.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$o.25 per share for
2008 (2007: HK$0.30 per share) payable on or about 12 June 2009 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on 25 May 2009. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.15
per share, the total distribution for 2008 will amount to HK$0.40 per share
(2007: HK$0.45 per share). This represents a decrease of 11% over 2007.

The Register of Members will be closed from 25 May 2009 to 29 May
2009, both days inclusive. In order to be eligible for the final dividend, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the share registrars of the Company, Tricor Standard
Limited of 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 22 May 2009.

Corporate Strategy

To accomplish our objective of becoming the largest consumer company in
China, the Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses to
enhance market position, improve competitiveness and develop platform
for future growth. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
incurred approximately HK$7 billion on capital expenditure with a majority
on beverage and retail businesses. This was lower than the HK$10 billion
in 2007 when the non-core petroleum business was divested and part
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IFREBS
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

of its proceeds reinvested. For beverage business, there were significant
investments in the greenfield projects under construction and the existing
plants for capacity upgrade. The greenfield projects completed during
the year included four breweries in Gansu Province, Hebei Province,
Jiangsu Province and Heilongjiang Province as well as a purified water
plant in Jiangmen, Guangdong Province. The capital expenditure on our
supermarket operation last year was mainly for new store opening. More
than 260 supermarket stores were opened during the year. Our food
business also formed a pig farming joint venture in Henan Province and a
meat processing joint venture in Shandong Province.

At the same time, the Group will continue to divest businesses or
assets which are outside our core portfolio or which lack critical mass.
Nevertheless, the dramatic deterioration in the economic environment and
tightening of bank credit have affected the progress on this front.

The Group is making satisfactory progress in the implementation of our
retail-led distribution strategy. The Group’s food, beverage and textile
businesses have formed part of the supply chain for our supermarket
operation. In particular, the food business, which has a long history
of supplying fresh meat, fruits, rice and other food products to our
supermarkets in Hong Kong, is currently one of their largest suppliers.
“SNOW”, our national brand for beer, is also sold extensively in our
mainland supermarkets.

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in the Chinese
Mainland, where our growth opportunities lie. For the year under review,
about 85.4% of turnover and 64.8% of profit before tax were from the
mainland, compared with 66.7% and 31.3% respectively in the year ended
31 December 2007.

EEEME S
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Business Strategy

Efficiency of a consumer business hinges on its scale. As there are striking
demographic and economic differences among provinces of China, district
scale is more meaningful than national scale. Accordingly, the Group
adheres to an overall principle of district concentration so that economies
of scale can be achieved swiftly in the target district. To further enhance
profitability, a culture of maximizing cost efficiency in daily operation,
looking for concurrent cost control and productivity enhancement,
has been promulgated internally. Effective means include centralizing
procurement, streamlining management functions as well as strengthening
supply chain.

Differentiation via branding is crucial in the highly competitive mainland
consumer market. Our beer operation is developing “SNOW” as a national
brand complemented by other district and local brands. “SNOW” targets
the younger generation, with marketing theme associated with “great
expedition”. On the other hand, our supermarket operation promotes its
leading presence in the Chinese Mainland and the image of a distinguished
retailing chain via service enhancement and store format innovation. The
“Ng Fung” brand of high quality food, including fresh meat and general
food items, has been well established by our food business. Similarly,
Chinese Arts & Crafts £ has further raised the premium quality image
of its private labels — “Artistic Palace X T in apparels and “Home Art
XEEE” in handicrafts.

Consumer demand is increasingly complex and constantly changing. The
Group has been closely reviewing and responding to customer preferences.
After the successful launch of Olé stores in Shenzhen and Beijing, a similar
cosmopolitan lifestyle food mart, VOle’ , was introduced to Hong Kong last
year, stressing personal touch in contemporary fast-paced living. Opening
of the convenience store, Vango, in Shenzhen and Hong Kong has also
been accelerated. The Group has also piloted the specialty supermarket
store format, “Fresh Market”, which offers convenience to households
with preference for fresh and high quality food. Food safety has become
a priority concern for food retailers and manufacturers after the melamine
milk scandal. The Group has overall strengthened its food safety assurance
system. For our beer operation, a new logo of “SNOW” has been rolled
out, highlighting the Chinese culture of the brand.

In 2008, retail sales in the Chinese Mainland increased by 21.6% to about
RMB10,849 billion. Although the overall growth in retail sales remained
strong, it showed signs of slowing down from October onwards.
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Owing to extremely cold weather at the beginning of the year, the Sichuan
earthquake, selling price increases and a buoyant 2007 for comparison,
the total beer production volume in the Chinese Mainland increased by
5.5% to 41.0 million kiloliters in 2008 against 12.6% in 2007. In 2008, the
Group’s beer operation maintained a market share of about 18%.

Save the temporary impact caused by the snowstorms in the beginning
of the year, there were no major supply disruptions to the pig farms in
the Chinese Mainland in 2008 in comparison with the previous year. The
mainland pork industry recorded growth again with estimated consumption
growth of 5%. The average price of live pigs in the Chinese Mainland
began to move downwards in the second quarter of 2008.

In 2008, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese Mainland
increased by 7.7% and 6.0% over the previous year respectively. High-end
yarns continue to outpace low-end yarns and fabrics in our product mix
after technology upgrade. During the year, our total yarns and fabrics
production decreased by 2.6% and 4.9% over 2007 respectively. However,
high-end yarns production increased by 16%.

The Hong Kong economy slowed down more quickly than the Chinese
Mainland, with a contraction in the final quarter of 2008. Overall, retail
sales increased by 10.5% last year, of which supermarket sales and
department store sales increased by 11.1% and 8.6% respectively. For
fresh meat consumption, imported and locally produced live pigs and
cattle are estimated to total about 1,544,000 heads and 29,000 heads
respectively in 2008. This represents a decline of 13% and 30% respectively
in comparison with 2007. Instead, the demand for pork and beef in both
chilled and frozen forms rose by 12% to an estimated aggregate of about
249,000 tonnes last year.

The Board believes that implementation of sound corporate governance
practices is essential to building and maintaining the confidence of
investors and other stakeholders in the Group, which is critical to
sustainable development.

The Group’s corporate governance framework is based on sound economic
and ethical principles, and a key feature thereof is our emphasis on
transparency and information disclosure. This is best illustrated by the
Group’s initiative to produce quarterly financial and operational review
since November 2002. The Company is the first conglomerate company
among the constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to initiate such a
move, well before the Hong Kong Stock Exchange made it a recommended
best practice for main board listed issuers.
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The Group has a proven track record of practicing good corporate

governance as evidenced by the commendations and awards it has earned

in recent years. In 2008, the Company received the following accolades:

e it was selected as one of the recipients of the “Recognition Awards
2008 — Asia’s Best Companies for Corporate Governance” by Corporate
Governance Asia;

e it was rated one of the companies with the best corporate governance
and best investor relations in China by FinanceAsia;

e it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among blue-chip
companies in Hong Kong by Economic Digest; and

e it was named as the winners of the best investor relations website as
well as the best annual report and other corporate literature by a small
or mid-cap company in the “Hong Kong and Taiwan Awards 2008” by
IR Magazine.

Regardless of the macro environment, maintaining the quality of corporate
governance will remain a key priority for us.

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and maintain
sound systems in risk management, internal control and governance to
ensure the effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate goals and
objectives, safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest as
well as ensure the reliability of financial and corporate reporting. The
Group adopts the control frameworks outlined by both the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in the
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United States and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as our standards in establishing risk management and control systems
among our group companies. Our internal control system consists of five
key elements, namely the existence of an effective control environment,
risk management, communication and information system, cost effective
control process and proper monitoring mechanism.

The Board conducts regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system
through periodic monitoring of the internal audit department’s activities.
The Audit Committee oversees the reliability of financial reporting, its related
internal controls and risk management systems, and the works of auditors,
both internal and external. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Board
had reviewed and was satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems currently in place.

Our investor relations practices aim to keep the investment community
updated about the Group’s position, operations and development so that
it can have the necessary information to make well-informed investment
decisions. To achieve this, we seek to achieve an effective two-way
flow of accurate, timely and helpful information between the Company
and the investment community with the implementation of a tripartite
communication system that actively engages investors, senior management
and operational management.
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We connect with the investment community through different channels. As
in previous years, we conducted an annual global roadshow during the
year through which senior management of the headquarters together with
the operational management met with institutional investors in Europe,
the United States and Asia, and the focus was on the supermarket,
beverage and food businesses. We also continued to host the Corporate
Day for analysts and fund managers. During the two and a half days, we
introduced the participants to our brewery and food operations in Liaoning
Province and Zhejiang Province respectively as well as our supermarket
logistics center in Shenzhen. To further enhance the transparency of
our businesses, we organized a day trip for journalists for the first time
last year to visit our brewery plant in Dongguan and our supermarket
operation in Shenzhen, and a total of 16 journalists participated in the
event with favorable response. In addition, the Group regularly attends
meetings with the investment community including one-on-one meetings,
site visits, luncheons and conferences arranged by financial institutions,
and in 2008 top management along with senior management of different
business units met with over 8oo analysts and fund managers in around
250 meetings.

Share Performance

Global stock markets had a major setback in 2008. Compounded by the
general de-rating of the mainland-related stocks, the Company’s share
price declined by 59.6% to HK$13.52 last year, compared to the 48.3%
fall of the Hang Seng Index. During the year, its daily closing share price
hit the highest level of HK$34.25 on 9 January 2008. The lowest closing
price was HK$10.04 on 27 October 2008. In line with the decrease in the
share price, the Company’s market capitalization also dropped by 59.6%
to HK$32,298 million in the year.
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Dividend Payout Ratio

The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash
dividend payout ratio and had continuously delivered upon this goal in
the past. However, in light of the current uncertainties clouding the global
economy, we lowered our annual basic payout ratio from 41.9% to 41.2%
as a prudent step to preserve cash. We plan to pay basic cash dividends
that balance the cash generated from the growth of the company’s
earnings with the cash needed to fuel future profit growth. In addition,
special dividends would be considered for exceptional events, subject to
the prevailing financial position, funding needs and market environment.
Over the past five years, special dividends were distributed in 2006 and
2007 following the sequential disposals of the Group’s petroleum and
related products distribution businesses in the Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong.
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Basic cash dividend payout ratio of the Company for 2004-2008
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Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders
as reported in the annual report of 2004. Taken into
account of prior year adjustments with the profit
attributable to shareholders of 2004 restated, the payout
ratio shall be restated to 38.8%.
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less the disposal gain of the petroleum distribution
business in Hong Kong.

EHAIE AR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 &£k

29



30

FRBSE
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

IR EHRAAEE
BEEASEXBERZLERIEEITE  MLEE
BRIERY  EBRAKERI  BERFAR
ARMEZEREAEREREBIRETE - REE
WA ES23% BESNEBEAEHEREELETR
DEREMEE - AW - ARRARZZTIENFE
R R B [0l $R 4R 5B 8% 15 58.8% kiR RAERAX (B F A
Tk - MEERHMEETEY BEETYE R
ERI8 D R 5 46.4% % 50.9% °

Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer
sector, robust operating performance and good corporate governance
practices, the Company’s shares achieved a total return for shareholders
of 82.3% over the past five years, as measured by share price appreciation
and reinvested dividend. This was noticeably higher than that of the Hang
Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index. However, the
Company posted a negative total return for shareholders of 58.8% for the
year 2008, reflecting the downward movement of its share price during the
year, while the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry
Index had average negative returns of 46.4% and 50.9% respectively.
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Total shareholder return of the Company relative to market indices for 2004-2008
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In a year that was marked by various challenges, the Group achieved
solid results in 2008. However, the possibility of deflation and prolonged
economic slowdown globally still exists. The escalating economic issues
around the world have dampened local consumer confidence.

Consumer spending habits will likely see significant change in economic
downturn. Price sensitivity will increase and overall spending will be scaled
back, especially on non-essential purchases. Our supermarket operation
has been adjusting its strategy to meet the new trend — working with
suppliers to aim for price leadership in the major districts, developing more
product lines targeting the mass market which looks for affordable choices
and devoting to store format innovation. Through centralized procurement
and sound inventory management, costs are kept low. Looking forward,
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household income growth and urbanization will continue to underpin
modern chain store sales in the Chinese Mainland. We are committed to
offering the best value to customers, store format innovation and product
mix enrichment so as to differentiate ourselves from the competition and
maximize customer satisfaction.

Overall sales volume growth of our beer operation slowed down last year,
in parallel with the general market trend. However, our presence in Gansu
Province, Hebei Province, Jiangsu Province and Heilongjiang Province has
strengthened following completion of the greenfield breweries in these
locations. In order to capitalize on the current difficult economic conditions,
we will seek and evaluate investment opportunities to implement our
consolidation strategy, while emphasizing productivity per employee.
The steady increase in our beer price in recent years coupled with our
growing exposure to the higher end segments will boost return in the long
run. Concurrently, our efforts in branding and distribution network are
continued. As part of the national branding campaign, “SNOW” has rolled
out a new logo, highlighting the Chinese culture of the brand.

The mainland packaged water market is believed to be relatively more
resilient to the economic difficulties with rising demand over time.
Leveraging on our leading position in Guangdong Province, the Group’s
purified water operation has launched a new marketing program to
raise its “Cestbon {AE” brand awareness nationally. We have further
strengthened our distribution network and management system. As the
market is still highly fragmented, we are pursuing prudent expansion both
within and outside our Guangdong home base. Possibility of introducing
new products is also being carefully studied.

The Group’s food business has a development strategy focusing on
meat, assorted foodstuff and seafood distribution. It has established firm
platforms for meat processing in the major cities including Shenzhen,
Shanghai and Hangzhou. With the rising demand for safe meat products
and supportive government policies, there is huge potential in the
mainland market. In Hong Kong, since the opening of the live pig imports
from the Chinese Mainland about two years ago, competition for market
share has been intense, resulting in lower profitability. We have reacted to
the altered market structure by tightening cost control, further developing
“Ng Fung” premium brand image and tying up the upstream segment. As
oil price has considerably fallen from its high last year, the marine fishing
operation will benefit from lower fuel costs this year.
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With shrinking overseas demand for textile products, competition in the
mainland textile market is severe and operating losses are common,
especially in the lower end market. While the market conditions may get
tougher in the short term, the Group’s textile business has implemented
further cost control measures, which include intermittent production
suspension, reduced cotton inventory and tightened staff costs. Our
established niche in high-end yarn and nylon products as well as denim
casual wears will continue to underpin our future.

On the macro picture, deepening global financial crisis has had a negative
impact on the mainland market with falling exports and slowing industrial
output. However, decisive measures have been taken by the central
government to ensure the economy can continue to grow steadily. A
RMBg4 trillion stimulus package was announced in November last year and
subsequently some industry-specific bailout packages were disclosed. It
has also started to loosen monetary policy by easing access to bank credit
and lowering interest rates. Hong Kong enjoyed sound economic growth at
the beginning of 2008. As the global financial problems unfolded, given its
role as a regional financial hub, there has been a broad-based economic
slowdown with rising unemployment rate. The negative wealth effect of
lower property and stock prices will impact household consumption and
tightened bank credit will add pressure to the commercial sector. It is
expected that there will be a contraction in the economy this year.

Despite the current economic downturn, the Group looks beyond today’s
tough environment. There are also opportunities in a slowing economy,
including declining raw material prices, falling property costs, reduced
acquisition prices and gradual exit of weaker competitors from the markets.
In the face of the challenges, the Group will continue to reinforce its
foundation by investing for the future and enhancing current operational
efficiency, whilst at the same time remaining vigilant about cost and cash
management. Our long-term success is embedded in our current market
segments, growing and focused.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

| will be leaving the Board on 30 April 2009 and | wish to take this
opportunity to welcome two new board members. Earlier this year, Mr.
Qiao Shibo rejoined the Board as an Executive Director and will succeed
me as the Chairman, while Mr. Chen Lang replaced Mr. Chen Shulin as
the Managing Director. We are confident these appointments will ensure
the continuity of leadership and direction of the Group. We also extend
our sincere thanks and appreciation to Mr. Chen Shulin, who had served
on the Board since 1998, for his significant contributions and unwavering
commitment to the Group.

Our achievements are attributable to the incessant support of our
shareholders and the confidence they have in us. To them and to our
suppliers and other business partners, we express our gratitude. Our
special thanks go out to our management team and employees, whose
dedication and hard work allowed us to realize our objectives during the
year. Finally, we are also thankful to our customers for the loyalty and trust
they have shown in the Group.

Song Lin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2009
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The Board believes that risk management is always essential to the
Group. Effective corporate risk management, being an important element
of good corporate governance, is indispensable for sustainable business
growth, particularly in market downturn. In view of the fact that managing
enterprise risk is particularly challenging for a conglomerate, the Board
feels compelled to ensure that a proper risk management process is in
place to achieve our business objectives and protect corporate reputation
and shareholder value. Our management philosophy is to reduce the
likelihood and the effect of risks before they occur, and deal effectively
with problems if they arise.

The Group’s underlying policies are that risks are continuously monitored,
action plans are reviewed and evaluated, and information is reported at
least monthly through the reporting system.

The Group has been implementing the risk management framework
outlined both in the “Central State-owned Enterprises Comprehensive Risk
Management Guidance” which has become effective since 6 June 2006
and by COSO in the United States. In June 2008, China became the latest
country to issue legislation specifying comprehensive requirements over a
company’s internal control framework. The “Basic Standard for Enterprise
Internal Control” (“Basic Standard”) was issued jointly by the Ministry
of Finance, the National Audit Office, the China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the China Banking Regulatory Commission and the China
Insurance Regulatory Commission. It will be enforced initially amongst
listed companies on the Chinese Mainland stock exchanges with effect
from 1 July 2009. The Group is now in the process of adopting the risk
assessment principles under the Basic Standard.



AEEHERER/FRARE - BUAERECHER
EERF AR EULERERBREYR - o
MBI B P E R o BRI ERE R
FHRIREBEHT  PRERMOER - B2 =@Ax
e

% ARSI

B HRAREREMAREREN - SRFEM
EAEFEHL —RBERREE - BHREKE

BHMANERR - £5EMNE 2 ETRBREM - #
REBEZ  FEEERAKROAEERTE I
IS %i&%ﬁilﬁ S MAKEERES
BAUMRENRERE - BEiatEnBENRERE
BRI - Etlgﬁﬁﬁﬁ)\%&é?%ﬂ&iﬁﬁﬂﬂ
SHITHITEAEE « RELTHI - SEBHEN
HHRERERES - SE)A B EETR RS
B EHRERE R R R R E L F HAE R -

B=F BB TERE

BB ES RSB AT [\ Bz P
ABBEDITELRR %#E’]T“’I&&/EE%;’

MEXBXRRTENIEE - BERERSI LT

XEE&%@E%E’]H R ELRE - RRAA

ABERRRFTREE RN EFRNTHRETE - &
WITBESD ﬁzﬁ%‘ﬁuﬂﬂ % B 25 E’]Tr@] TR
EBRENBEER - BRMBEARHTENR
B - TRRERIESE BT 7&$ °

B=%  ARNEREENTME
BEBBEUARERRRETHNER - NHERR

RIRRAEARARENTE  $HEREARFER
A ERHKE - TREFE - BRI ELEF
BB RO ERBRHIEF - BIBE HERES
AAEEERTGER - ROER-RREEH
£ BPEREBEMASEREEAARNBEE
HE - WRAAIRRSEEMENIZF - BEBKE
umm& ERARAFRDNE LR - ERER
REERGHRBLEZTEENAS -

PRERKRER
CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

The strategy of the Group, notwithstanding being a conglomerate company,
is to have a simplified risk management process that can identify, analyze
and mitigate the many risks that we face in an efficient and effective
manner. Our risk management process is based on a decentralized model
with a centralized monitoring system. It comprises three major steps:

Step One - Risk Identification

We have incorporated risk management into our business planning. At
the end of each year, each business unit undertakes a review of potential
risks, in particular for those inherent to its business and operation. The
business unit then performs a risk mapping exercise, evaluating risks
against probability of occurrence and impact in respect of its business
objectives. Identified risks are reported together with the explanation of its
nature and proposed risk management strategies to the Group during the
business plan review section at the beginning of each year. Risk owners
are assigned with authority and responsibility for analyzing and managing
the risks. In addition to the annual exercise, our monthly reporting system
from each business unit also encourages continued risk identification and
regular reporting on ad hoc risks identified.

Step Two - Risk Analysis and Mitigation

This step is delegated to each business unit. The assigned risk owner is
responsible for analyzing the probability of occurrence and the potential
impact associated with the risk to determine exposure to the business.
Risks with high probability and great negative impact should be handled
first. The risk owner then designs procedures and implements actions
for risk mitigation. During the implementation, we also emphasize
balancing risks and benefits to ensure long-term business success. The
risk owner should take implementation cost into account when devising
the action plan.

Step Three — Risk Monitoring and Performance Evaluation

Risks and action plans are monitored by the relevant business units
in order to ensure risks are reduced to an acceptable level by a timely
and cost-effective action. Upon completion of the process, the relevant
business unit performs evaluation on the risk identification and mitigation
process and reports its evaluation result to the Group through the monthly
reporting system. In order to prevent the same risks from recurring, we
request business units to incorporate preventive actions into the internal
control system and devise procedures to improve operational efficiency.
The work of each business unit together with the independent reviews
undertaken by our corporate internal audit play an important role to
ensure the effectiveness of the risk management system.
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Major risks for the Group are outlined in the following sections.

Economic Risk

The recent financial turmoil has a widespread negative impact on the
world economy. The slowdown of Chinese Mainland’s GDP growth has
accelerated in the final quarter of 2008 and there is no clear sign yet
of improvement for 2009. Whilst for Hong Kong, as a result of the
credit crunch and weakening global demand, the economic condition
and consumer confidence may further worsen in 2009. In other words,
consumers turn cautious on expenditures; and retail growth is expected
to slow down because of lower inflation and weaker consumption
triggered by unemployment. In response to these economic challenges,
the Group continues to concentrate efforts on improving operational
efficiency, strengthening business alliance with suppliers and capturing
investment opportunities.

Competition

The open up of the Chinese Mainland’s retail and distribution sectors
to foreign investors has attracted the world’s top retail corporations
into the market. The Chinese retail market is transforming from a highly
fragmented domestic operating model to a large-scale cross-regional one.
This has accelerated the Chinese Mainland’s market oriented process and
added fuel to market competition. The business environment of Hong
Kong live pig market also becomes very competitive after opening up
of the mainland imports in July 2007. Consumer behavior is increasingly
complex in that consumers are pursuing not only price but also quality
and personal touch. The Group believes differentiation via branding is
crucial in this highly competitive consumer market. We also pursue an
ongoing re-modeling exercise so as to build up competitive advantages.

Regulatory Risk

The Group’s turnover is predominantly from the Chinese Mainland and
Hong Kong. Being a conglomerate with investments in several industries,
the Group must comply with a broad range of regulatory requirements.
Therefore, our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be significantly affected by the introduction of new laws and changes to
existing laws by the Chinese and the Hong Kong governments. The Group
is very cautious about the legal development in our operating markets
and prepares in advance for any anticipated regulation changes. In
addition, we make our strategic decisions on the basis of comprehensive
legal advice.
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Liquidity Risk

The intense stresses on the financial systems in Europe and the United
States have made lenders reluctant to extend credit. External financing
becomes more difficult while cash management becomes more challenging.
The Group manages liquidity risks by maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to fund capital,
prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing obligations and
dividend payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s rolling
forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities. To maximize surplus cash for internal funding while enhancing
liquidity and yield, the Group operates under a centralized system of
treasury management. We will continue to maintain a low gearing and a
strong liquidity position.

Notes 4 and 5 to the financial statements also provide a detailed
discussion of the Group’s financial risk management objective and policies
as well as capital risk management respectively together with some
financial analyses.

Integrity Risk

Integrity risk can lead to significant loss of market confidence and collapse
of our long-established reputation and brand. The Group believes the best
method of managing integrity risk is prevention. Personal responsibility
and accountability are strongly emphasized. We manage the risk by
focusing on how individuals should think and act with integrity. Codes of
ethics provide guidelines on it. Strong internal control system with proper
oversight, including frequent internal audits, also serves as an integral
part of reducing the potential exposure of integrity risk.
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The Group’s continued success hinges on the support of not only its
shareholders but also other stakeholders. As such, we fully appreciate
the importance of aligning the mutual interests of our shareholders,
employees, customers, business partners and society at large. The Group
strives to advance shareholder return, while making constant efforts to
enhance its social and environmental performance with the right corporate
social responsibility (“CSR”) policies and practices.

In 2008, Oxfam Hong Kong commissioned CSR Asia to conduct a CSR
survey of the Hang Seng Index constituent companies. The 43 companies
surveyed were categorized as leaders, mainstream and laggards, and the
Group was named among the leaders. In addition, the Company and CR
Care ¥ = were granted the Caring Company Logo by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Services for the first time, while our supermarket operation
in Hong Kong received the award for the fourth consecutive year.

Energy and Natural Resources Conservation

Both our beverage and textile businesses consume large quantities of
water during the production process and the Group is committed to the
efficient use of water. We have devised and implemented different ways
like the installation of process water recycling systems to save water. As
part of the Group’s support for water conservation, the “Esprit” brand
in the Chinese Mainland donated RMB200,000 to the Shanghai Water
Resources Foundation at the opening ceremony of its Shanghai flagship
store in March last year.

On the other hand, different businesses within the Group have formulated
their own policies to reduce energy consumption in diverse areas, such
as the adoption and upgrade of electrical appliances and equipment
with energy-efficient features. Our cold storage warehouse in Shatin
has introduced an energy conservation system whereby the usage of
compressors and condensers can be adjusted in response to change of
seasons and storage capacity to avoid unnecessary energy consumption,
while maintaining an ideal storage condition. In addition, the Group
started to allow its shareholders to receive corporate communication by
electronic means through its website in 2007 and pledged to donate
HK$136 to charitable causes for each shareholder who had chosen this
environmentally friendly option, and the Group consequentially made a
donation of HK$18,000 to Friends of the Earth (HK).
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In an attempt to assess its conservation performance, our beer operation
has set five-year targets to measure its consumption of water, electricity
and coal in terms of each kiloliter of beer produced.

Environmental Management

The Group takes the issue of environmental protection seriously. The
brewery and textile businesses have employed wastewater treatment
management system to ensure compliance with applicable regulatory
requirements. The sewage and waste treatment, noise control and
odor filtering level of our Sheung Shui abattoir fully comply with the
environmental protection requirements, among which the standard of its
sewage treatment actually exceeds that of the environmental protection
license. Steps are also taken to continuously monitor and evaluate strict
compliance with internal guidelines and policies and assess the system’s
adequacy. Where necessary, the beer operation will conduct on-site
trainings as well to help its staff understand the system operation. In
2008, the beer operation implemented eco-friendly projects relating to
wastewater treatment, soot emission and desulfurization in nearly all
breweries with an aggregate contract amount of about RMB5o million.
As part of its efforts to shift towards green transportation, our logistics
division in Hong Kong introduced seven Eco-trucks last year which meet
the Euro IV emission standard.

The Sheung Shui abattoir as well as a number of manufacturing factories
of our textile business in the Chinese Mainland have obtained 1SO14001
certification for their respective environmental management systems. The
Sheung Shui abattoir has long been working on the establishment of an
environmental management system, and it is the first food manufacturing
and processing company in Hong Kong to receive this recognition. In
2006, the abattoir received the new edition of ISO14001 certification,
which is still effective now.

The Group has been supporting the promotion of greener shopping habits.
Our supermarket operation in the Chinese Mainland launched a country-
wide campaign last year to encourage the use of reusable shopping bags
before the new regulations that prohibit supermarket operators from giving
out free plastic bags became effective in June last year. The Hong Kong
division also held similar activities and since 2006, it has successfully
reduced the distribution of about 19 million plastic bags. The Chinese Arts
and Crafts & stores have replaced the use of plastic bags since 2008
with environmental friendly bags and recyclable paper bags.

EMAIE AR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Annual Report 2008 £ 39



40

FRUBEIE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

BETRFERE

REFNA  AEERSEEMRz RABEL
AN IRHMEE  RA2R LERBEEHN
EHHIREREE - AEHREWMAEBNERS
HEEEE - (RERR - A NEBELARERE
HERIES °

“EENFFY) hEABBOBREERES
A ERBIRREE - ZBXME - EOPE -
AEREMI N ER MR B M RHRENL —X T
RN - BRI E SRR YRR IZRE S © BV E
BNSELABERTREEZDE - BENE
MEBRGHRETE > RFITOERRAER
ERPME - MEE LB EESEEE 160,000 7T °

Staff Awareness

In September last year, the Group invited the director from Friends of
the Earth (HK) to host a seminar at our headquarters on the prevailing
environmental issues facing the world, and particularly Hong Kong, and
how we could make a few changes in our daily lives for the benefit of
the environment. It was well attended by the representatives from the
headquarters and business units.

Disaster Relief

In early 2008, certain parts of the Chinese Mainland experienced severe
snowstorms leading to economic havoc, delays in transportation and
electricity blackouts. Our supermarket operation in Southern China
quickly formed a working group which, leveraging on its strong logistics
capability, helped the local governments to mobilize emergency supplies
and distribute them to stranded travelers. Our supermarket operation in
Hong Kong also assisted in the relief efforts by putting donation collection
boxes in its stores and offices, raising more than HK$160,000 from its
customers and employees.
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The activity with the
theme “The Great
Expedition with SNOW
— Love Illuminates the
Dreams” arranged for
children affected by
the earthquake to visit
the Thatched Cottage
of Dufu in Chengdu.
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The Sichuan earthquake in May 2008 had claimed tens of thousands of
lives and bereft millions of basic supplies, medical treatment and shelter.
The Group took swift and efficient action to join in the rescue efforts via
cash donation, provision of basic necessities and other useful items to aid
emergency reliefand conducting fundraising activities among its employees
and customers. As a result, approximately HK$30 million was raised, of
which approximately HK$18 million was contributed by the Group.

The Group also strongly supported post-earthquake reconstruction. Our
beer operation in partnership with the Ministry of Civil Affairs have built
an SOS hope village in Wolong, already providing 300 mobile homes
for people affected in the area. In August 2008, it organized an activity
with the theme “The Great Expedition with SNOW — Love Illuminates
the Dreams” (“ZILME BEXE BEERRTE”) for children in the
earthquake areas, aiming to provide a platform whereby volunteers were
recruited to realize the wishes of these children. Our purified water operation
also donated tent school libraries for children, while our supermarket
operation raised a considerable amount of school supplies for primary
and secondary school students. To restore economic activity disrupted
by the catastrophe, our supermarket operation expanded its procurement
volume in Longnan, Gansu Province and set up special counters for selling
agricultural products from the earthquake areas.
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Education

Education is a main focus of our CSR initiatives; and in this regard,
businesses throughout the Group made various monetary and in-kind
contributions during the year. In particular, our purified water operation
initiated a charitable program called “1+1 #Z£3%”, giving out one free
bottle of water for every used book or sports item donated. It advocates
the notion that sharing makes a nation stronger, while at the same time
aiming at raising public awareness of the physical and mental health
of children living in remote villages. Since its launch in April 2008, a
total of 24 libraries and 24 classrooms for physical education have been
built. In addition, around 300,000 books and 35,000 pieces of sports
equipment have been collected and thereafter donated to schools in the
mountain areas.

Culture

Last year, our beer operation agreed to sponsor RMB10 million for a five-year
program entitled “Popularization and Inheritance” (“& & E2{&%”) to be
undertaken by the Research Institute of Architecture History and Heritage
Architecture Conservation of the Qinghua University. Through this long-term
cultural investment, we hope to drive the mass communication of the
traditional Chinese architecture culture with full force and promote the
popularization and inheritance of the traditional Chinese culture.
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CR Vanguard set up
special counters in

the Chinese Mainland
for selling agricultural
products from the
earthquake areas.
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ERUBSIT
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Services to Local Community

The Group is keen to support the local communities in which it operates
through various channels. In March 2008, our supermarket operation
collaborated with a multinational beverage corporation to launch a
fundraising activity called “Rainwater Collection Program” (“Fe7kUiE
T8 E”) for the China Soong Ching Ling Foundation. The goal was to raise
money for improving the living conditions of those destitute families in
Western China which face severe water shortage. Subsequently in October,
a total of 32 wells were constructed and put into use in a village in Gansu
Province. Besides, the Hong Kong supermarket operation coordinated with
the Agency for Volunteer Service for the fifth consecutive year in organizing
a charitable program which encouraged the public to purchase designated
items in its supermarkets for needy families, while our logistics division
also participated in providing free delivery services.

In 2008, our beer operation continued an annual undergraduate paid
internship program, offering 100 fourth-year students from 10 universities
in Anhui Province with outstanding academic results the opportunity to
receive occupational training and career guidance.

The Group also encourages its staff to engage in community services and
during the year under review, our employees took part in blood donation
activities and gave free haircut services to the elderly in nursing homes.
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We believe that the interests of our employees are best served by providing
them with a healthy, safe and friendly working environment. This will not
only help bring out the best in our employees, thus enhancing the Group’s
productivity, but also retain talent. Each of our businesses has formulated
its own occupational health and safety guidelines and compensation
policies that comply with or even exceed applicable laws and regulations.
Individual businesses have also made great investment in terms of
manpower and money to provide staff training, which is one of the keys to
maintain the Group’s competitiveness. A wide variety of training programs
were implemented during the year covering a comprehensive range of
topics including management, sales and marketing, workplace safety,
customer service, technical and interpersonal skills. Our businesses have
efficiently measured performance and improvement and set consistent
standards for performance review.

Food Safety and Product Quality

Guaranteeing the safety of foods and maintaining the quality of goods
supplied and sold by the Group are critical to gaining the trust and
confidence of customers. Businesses within the Group have devised their
respective guidelines and policies to carefully select suppliers to ensure
that raw materials and goods sourced from them meet the required criteria.
Moreover, our beer operation and the Sheung Shui abattoir have obtained
the Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points (HACCP) certification,
while our supermarket operation is in the process of applying for such
certification as well as the Green Market certification recognized by the
Certification and Accreditation Administration of the Chinese government.

Our food business endeavors to uphold the quality and safety of meat
products and is committed to building up and protecting the premium
image of the “Ng Fung” brand. During the 2008 Beijing Olympics, it was
designated by the Shanghai Food and Drug Administration as the sole
supplier of pork in the competition area in Shanghai. In Hong Kong, it
assists the government to establish a rigorous meat product tracing system
and a product recall system, which can trace the meat products back to
the upstream registered mainland pig farms and master information on
product flow in the downstream retail market.

Apart from implementing strict quality management controls throughout
the entire production process, our beer operation also has a robust system
in place to monitor the product quality at points of sale.
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CR Care #H= has implemented a number of measures to ensure the
consistency of product quality. Its procurement team comprises professionals
in the categories of registered pharmacists, registered Chinese medicine
practitioners, nutritionists and Chinese pharmacists. Chinese herbal
medicines and dried seafood are inspected at a centralized warehouse
by experienced staff with testing instruments, and product samples are
regularly taken to undergo independent laboratory testing. Chinese Arts
and Crafts % has established a quality management department to
assess the authenticity of its products.

Customer Satisfaction

We closely monitor customer satisfaction level to identify what we excel at
and, more importantly, where we can improve. For example, our logistics
and purified water businesses carry out customer satisfaction surveys
annually to evaluate the service level against the principles and objectives
set out in the ISO9001 standards. Our other retail stores in Hong Kong also
participated in the annual Mystery Shoppers Program organized by the
Hong Kong Retail Management Association, and Chinese Arts and Crafts
& has been named as the leader in the department stores category
each year since 2005. The Group also has channels to receive and handle
customer feedback and complaints, which will be carefully studied before
justifying for a formal investigation.

The Group recognizes the positive correlation between responsible
business behavior of our suppliers and our sustainable growth. To
help define the parameters of our relationship with suppliers, internal
guidelines stipulating the requirements for the selection and management
of suppliers as well as procurement management, such as the “Code
of Conduct of Suppliers” formulated by our supermarket operation in
the Chinese Mainland, have been adopted across the Group. During the
year, we actively engaged in dialogue and worked closely with suppliers.
Regular assessment, on-site inspection and evaluation have also been
conducted to ensure that the production process and products meet our
specified requirements.
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The Group’s retail division mainly comprises three business segments:
(1) supermarket and logistics; (2) brand-fashion distribution in the Chinese
Mainland; and (3) other retail stores operation.

The Group’s retail division achieved satisfactory growth in its operating
results for 2008, mainly contributed by improvement in operational
efficiency, flexibility in sales strategies and encouraging organic growth.
Turnover and attributable profit amounted to HK$34,651 million and
HK$590 million respectively, representing increases of 33.2% and 13.2%
over 2007.

For the year under review, the Chinese Mainland maintained steady and
relatively fast economic growth, with rapid retail sales growth alongside
robust consumption in the urban and rural areas. Total retail sales of
consumer goods for 2008 registered year-on-year growth of 21.6%,
representing an increase of 4.8 percentage points from 2007. In addition,
the consumer price index of 2008 increased by 5.9%, representing an
increase of 1.1 percentage points from 2007, with a substantial increase
in food prices in particular. The Group’s consumer businesses have thus
benefited as a whole.

However, with the expanding negative impact of the global financial crisis
since the second half of 2008, the Chinese Mainland’s economic growth
exhibited a declining trend. GDP growth slowed down every quarter and
fell to 6.8% in the fourth quarter, representing a drop of 2.2 percentage
points from the third quarter. The economic condition is expected to
remain challenging in 2009. In order to maintain steady and relatively fast
economic growth, the central government has taken a number of measures
to stimulate domestic demand and improve people’s livelihood.
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Breakdown of turnover of retail business
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In Hong Kong, worsening global economy impacted its exports towards
the end of the year. Unemployment rate started to rise and consumer
sentiment was dampened. All these factors caused a year-on-year drop
in the overall retail sales volume for the fourth quarter of 2008. The
economic condition and consumer confidence in Hong Kong are expected
to further worsen in the short run.
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2008 2007 Change
HKS million HK$ million (%)
= Turnover 34,651 26,008 33%
i3 fayiagil Attributable profit 590 521 13%
KRetFIE - BiE - EBITDA 1,934 1,536 26%
e R HAT AR
NN Capital expenditure 2,129 5%
FriETE R and new acquisitions
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SUPERMARKET AND LOGISTICS

Turnover of the supermarket and logistics operation for 2008 was HK$31,139
million, representing an increase of 34.3% over 2007. Attributable profit
for 2008 amounted to HK$351 million, representing a slight decrease of
3.3% over 2007. Consumer spending was undermined by the slowdown
and uncertainties in the economy, and consumers became more cautious
about spending. Rising unemployment rate has also generally weakened
the purchasing power of consumers. Therefore, turnover growth of the
operation slowed down in the second half of 2008 against the first half
of the year.

As at the end of December 2008, the Group operated a total of over 2,600
stores in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong, of which approximately
54.8% were self-operated and the rest were franchised stores. Major
store formats are hypermarket, superstore, supermarket and convenience
store, mainly operated under the brands of “ZFH&X vanguard”, “ZF ¥
# = CHINA RESOURCES SUGUO”, “& R SUGUO” and “Olé”. In September
2008, “4#FFE™ Fresh Market”, a new store format, was piloted focusing
on fresh and high quality food. In terms of geographical contribution,
Eastern China, Southern China, Hong Kong and Northern China respectively
accounted for 61.8%, 25.9%, 7.8% and 4.5% of the operation’s turnover
for 2008.

For the year under review, satisfactory turnover growth was achieved
through an expanded operational scale by new store opening and faster
organic growth. Ongoing product mix improvement and operational
enhancement to cater for customer preferences, together with the rise
in food prices, contributed to the overall same store growth of 10.8%
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Geographical turnover breakdown of the supermarket business
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in 2008, and in particular a 11.2% increase was recorded in the Chinese
Mainland. However, the encouraging year-on-year same store growth was
mainly for the first three quarters, as the economic downturn led to a sharp
slowdown in the same store growth in the fourth quarter of the year.

The Group adopts a multi-format approach to swiftly increase its share in
target markets, so that it can build up an extensive local store network
to achieve economies of scale in operation. Coupled with better price
negotiations with suppliers and stringent cost controls, higher profitability
was recorded. The consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortization (“EBITDA”) for 2008 amounted to HK$1,374 million,
representing growth of 30.7% over 2007. The EBITDA of the Chinese
Mainland and Hong Kong operations were HK$1,133 million and HK$241
million respectively. However, with the implementation of the new
Corporate Income Tax Act in the Chinese Mainland in 2008, additional
income tax provision for undistributed earnings of subsidiaries in the
Chinese Mainland increased the overall tax burden of the business, abating
part of the attributable profit to the Group.

In Southern China, enhancement measures on shopping environment and
merchandise mix to meet consumer preferences have delivered positive
results. Same store transaction number and average customer spending
were therefore improved. Same store growth of hypermarkets and
superstores reached 13.9% and 22.3% respectively. In order to improve
the profitability of those non-performing supermarkets that face head-
on competition, the Group will formulate measures to enhance supply
chain management and speed up response mechanism to cater for local
consumer behavior and spending level.
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The Group has leading positions in the target regions of Nanjing and
Cixi in Eastern China, where satisfactory operating results were achieved,
but there were individual non-performing hypermarkets in other parts of
Eastern China. To boost sales in these stores, the Group will strategically
modify shop layout, strengthen business alliance with suppliers and enrich
merchandise mix to accommodate local consumption needs.

While some major competitors were reducing the pace of their expansion
in Northern China, the Group instead accelerated the establishment of
a closely-knit store network. With emphasis on 24-hour operation and
efforts to increase the number of fresh product categories, profitability
was significantly enhanced amidst the competitive business environment,
resulting in satisfactory growth in Northern China.

In view of further deterioration in the economy, the Group will concentrate
its efforts on improving operational efficiency, strengthening business
alliance with suppliers, consolidating internal resources to maximize
economies of scale, as well as reinforcing and raising its market share
in target regions. The Group will place more emphasis on quality when
opening new stores in target districts and actively explore new acquisition
opportunities in the future.

BRAND-FASHION DISTRIBUTION

The brand-fashion distribution segment reported turnover and attributable
profit for 2008 of HK$2,719 million and HK$198 million respectively,
representing increases of 34.0% and 102.0% over 2007.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year under review, the “Esprit” brand reported strong growth in
turnover and attributable profit mainly through continuous enhancement
of sales networks and adoption of flexible sales strategies. As at the
end of December 2008, the “Esprit” and “Red Earth” brand distribution
networks expanded to about 1,090 self-operated and franchised stores in
the Chinese Mainland.

Owing to marked economic slowdown in the Chinese Mainland in the
second half of 2008, both wholesale and retail businesses showed decline
in sales growth in the fourth quarter. However, strong turnover growth in
the first half of the year still contributed to year-on-year same store growth
of 7.0% for self-operated stores. As a result of the moderate growth in
wholesale business driven by expansion of franchised store networks, the
operation maintained satisfactory growth in profitability for the full year. In
addition, no further loss was incurred from the terminated brands, helping
improve the overall profitability of the segment.

As the global financial crisis continued to broaden its negative impact, it is
expected that the operating environment will remain challenging in 2009.

OTHER RETAIL STORES

Other retail stores segment reported turnover for 2008 of HK$793 million,
comparable to 2007. Attributable profit for 2008 amounted to HK$41
million, representing a decrease of 31.7% over 2007. Earnings for the
year were mainly contributed by the first half of 2008, and following
the deterioration in the global economy in the second half of the year,
consumers became more cautious on spending, making the operating
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environment more difficult. As at the end of December 2008, the Group’s
chain of retail stores mainly consisted of 5 Chinese Arts & Crafts &
stores in Hong Kong and 47 CR Care ZE M stores in Hong Kong and the
Chinese Mainland.

With rising brand recognition of the Chinese Arts & Crafts % brand
for high quality and premium products as well as ongoing enhancement
in product mix, the operation sustained satisfactory growth in turnover
and earnings for the first three quarters of 2008. However, this growth
trend reversed rapidly in the last quarter of the year as a result of the
global financial crisis, leading to a slight yearly decline in profitability as
compared with that of 2007.

Greater health awareness amongst the local community has increased
the market demand for traditional Chinese medicine and health food. For
the year under review, the increase in sales of premium products helped
maintain overall moderate same store growth of 3.1% for the CR Care
# B = operation in 2008. Yet, lower demand for premium products in the
second half of 2008 coupled with increasingly fierce market competition
squeezed the profitability of the operation. Rising store rentals and labor
costs associated with higher store number, as well as the additional
advertising costs incurred to deal with intensifying competition, also
imposed pressure on the operation’s profitability for 2008.

It is expected that demand for premium products will fall in 2009. The
Group will continue with product mix enhancement to cater for customer
preferences and focus on boosting the sales of Chinese medicine and health
food so as to minimize its impact on the performance of the operation.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s supermarkets as at 31 December 2008
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The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit for 2008 of
HK$17,405 million and HK$409 million respectively, representing increases
of 30.8% and 35.0% over 2007.

BEER OPERATION

The beer operation reported turnover and attributable profit for 2008 of
HK$16,048 million and HK$298 million respectively, representing increases
of 30.0% and 24.7% over 2007. The sales volume of beer for 2008 rose
by 4.7% to approximately 7,261,000 kiloliters.

Organic sales volume reported year-on-year decline, mainly affected by the
lower-than-expected consumption growth in the industry, adverse weather
as well as the earthquake in Sichuan Province. Despite this, through
the promotion of premium products together with appropriate upward
adjustments of selling prices, better-than-market turnover growth was still
recorded in certain key regions. The sales volume of our national brand
“SNOW” grew by 19.1% to 6,099,000 kiloliters in 2008, which accounted
for 84.0% of the total sales volume. In addition, as part of the national
branding campaign, “SNOW” has rolled out a new logo in June 2008,
highlighting the Chinese culture of the brand.

For the year under review, the Group dedicated to optimizing its product
mix to cater for the higher demand of consumer taste, leading to an
increase in the proportion of premium beer sales. Apart from effective stock
measures to keep raw material costs under control, increases in our beer
prices in early 2008 also helped compensate for the rising costs of malt
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and hops as well as financing cost, augmenting the overall gross profit
margin. Despite that certain breweries suffered stock losses and different
degrees of asset damages in the Sichuan earthquake which required a
provision for impairment loss, some new breweries in Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region, Liaoning Province and Hunan Province achieved
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satisfactory results shortly after the Group’s acquisitions, while initial
performance of certain greenfield breweries still needed improvement.
Besides, the gain on disposal of certain pieces of land back to the local
government upon factory relocation in Shenyang also contributed to our
overall growth in profitability.

As at the end of December 2008, the Group operated 60 breweries in the
Chinese Mainland with an annual production capacity of approximately
12 million kiloliters, including an aggregate production capacity of
approximately 1.2 million kiloliters from the greenfield breweries in Gansu
Province, Hebei Province, Jiangsu Province and Heilongjiang Province, all
of which commenced production in the year under review.
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2008 2007 Change
HKS million HK$ million (%)
= Turnover 17,405 13,304 31%
i3 fayiagil Attributable profit 409 303 35%
REtFIE - BB - EBITDA 2,141 1,514 41%
e BRI 2R
BEARRX R Capital expenditure 6,235  (35%)
FriEETE R and new acquisitions
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In order to strengthen market position, widen geographical coverage,
enhance operational efficiency and optimize product structure, the Group
agreed in early 2009 to acquire the respective brewing assets in ZE
RAEEEEREFAT (Anging Tianzhu Beer Company Limited), &2
M EEE AR AR (Liaoning Songlin Brewery Group Company Limited)
and T e EAR AR (Zhejiang Luck Beer Company Limited) through
three newly-formed subsidiaries in which it would own 80%, 85% and
100% equity interests respectively. Upon conclusion, the three acquisitions
will add a total of approximately 468,000 kiloliters to the Group’s existing
production capacity, helping further consolidate the Group’s market share in
southern Anhui Province, western Liaoning Province and southern Zhejiang
Province. Recently, the Group also agreed to acquire the brewing assets of
I BRI IAEE R (Shandong Hupo Brewery), establishing a production base
of about 300,000 kiloliters in northern Shandong Province.

It is expected that consumer sentiment will be hit by the deterioration
in the economy since the fourth quarter of 2008. The beer operation in
regions such as the Pearl River Delta and the Yangtze River Delta, where
many export factories are located, has inevitably been affected to some
extent. Nonetheless, our widespread geographical coverage across the
Chinese Mainland will help mitigate the impact of the economic downturn
on the beer operation. The Group will cautiously extend its geographical
coverage and increase its production capacity through acquisition,
greenfield investment and capacity upgrade with a view to enhancing our
operational efficiency.
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PURIFIED WATER OPERATION

The purified water operation, with “Cestbon 14E” as its sole brand,
reported turnover and attributable profit for 2008 of HK$1,357 million and
HK$111 million respectively, representing increases of 41.5% and 73.4%
over 2007. The sales volume of purified water in 2008 rose by 27.2% to

approximately 1,367,000 kiloliters.

To capture opportunities in the growing packaged water market in the
Chinese Mainland, the operation’s production volume was enlarged
through commencement of a greenfield factory in Jiangmen during the first
half of 2008. Enhanced distribution channels in the existing markets and
expansion of sales networks in the new ones, coupled with the successful
launch of promotional campaign to raise brand awareness, contributed
to encouraging growth in both turnover and attributable profit for 2008.
The increase in the Group’s equity interest in the purified water operation
from 51% to 100% in May 2007 also partially explained the increase in
attributable profit for the year under review.

The packaged water market in the Chinese Mainland is expected to be
affected by the economic slowdown and resultant corporate layoffs but
mitigated by rising health consciousness among consumers. To strengthen
its competitive advantage, the Group will prudently expand into new
markets and streamline distribution process to lower production costs.
The Group will also continue to look for acquisition opportunities and
upgrade our production capacity to sustain our growth in market share.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s breweries as at 31 December 2008
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The food processing and distribution division reported turnover for
2008 of HK$7,645 million, representing an increase of 3.6% over 2007.
Attributable profit for 2008 amounted to HK$312 million, representing
a decrease of 41.2% over 2007. Excluding the disposal gain of certain
equity interests in non-core investment, attributable profit of the division
for 2008 would have decreased by 51.8%, mainly affected by the weak
performance of the Hong Kong livestock distribution business.

Temporary disruption in supply of livestock during the snowstorm in the
Chinese Mainland in early 2008 as well as the appreciation of Renminbi
caused an upsurge in pig import prices in the first half of 2008. Although
pig import prices began to fall in the second half of the year and in the
fourth quarter returning to a level similar to that of the same period
last year, intensified competition in the Hong Kong live pig market led
to declines in both sales quantity and gross margin, thus lowering the
profitability of the livestock distribution business. On the other hand,
with rising recognition of “Ng Fung” brand, turnover of frozen food,
aquatic products and other assorted foodstuff distribution during the year
under review was comparable to that of last year, despite consumers’
cautiousness of spending with the economic contraction in Hong Kong in
the fourth quarter of 2008.

The meat processing, branded food processing and distribution business
reported satisfactory profit contribution for the year under review. To
accelerate its investments in the mainland targeting the major cities, the
Group entered into agreements with A Ff& M R fhiE H OB AR EEA
(Henan Cereals, Oils & Foodstuffs Imp. & Exp. Group Corporation, Ltd.)
and BREFERMBER AR (Ri Zhao Fu Yuan Food Company Ltd.) in July
and November 2008 respectively to set up new joint venture companies in
Henan Province and Shandong Province. The joint ventures, together with
other existing operations in Shenzhen, Shanghai, Hangzhou and Sichuan
Province, will favorably strengthen the division’s livestock supply to Hong
Kong and its mainland meat processing business, taking the Group one
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step further to become a leading vertically integrated meat supplier in the
Chinese Mainland. The investments of assorted foodstuff business in the
Chinese Mainland, including the Hangzhou NF Refrigerated Food (#i/M F
@2 R )and Yangzhou NF Fuchun (35 H & &%) operations, also reported
satisfactory growth in profitability for the year under review.

Benefited from increases in sales volume and selling prices, the marine
fishing and aquatic products processing operation reported notable
turnover growth in 2008. However, lower overall gross margin from rising
cost pressure exerted by high fuel prices in the first half of the year and
significant fluctuations in foreign exchange rates in the second half of the
year following the financial crisis have impacted the operating results of
the operation.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to improve its supply chain of
safe food and capitalize on organic expansion and acquisition so as to
become an outstanding safe food supplier with integrated research and
development, processing and distribution.
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2008 2007 Change

HKS million HK$ million (%)
=E ] Turnover 7,645 7,381 4%
i tapengl Attributable profit 312 531 (41%)
AREHFIS - 3B~ EBITDA 624 841 (26%)
e KRB R 2F
BARRAS R Capital expenditure 542 6%
B IE R and new acquisitions
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Turnover of the textile division for 2008 was HK$4,829 million, representing
an increase of 2.5% over 2007. Attributable profit for 2008 amounted to
HK$74 million, representing a decrease of 48.6% over 2007. Excluding the
after-tax effect of revaluation of investment properties and the disposal
gain of non-core investments, attributable profit of the division decreased
by 67.2% over 2007.

Increased export sales driven by rising demand for nylon and high-end
yarn products contributed to the turnover increase in the first half of 2008.
However, sharp reduction of overseas sales orders and falling average
selling prices due to extensive goods dumping in the industry following
the financial crisis caused the full year turnover only comparable to that
of 2007, with a decline in gross margin. Coupled with a provision for
impairment loss for certain dyeing assets with relatively low utilizing
value and efficiency, the division’s profit for the year was further impacted.
Nevertheless, gross margin of the garment manufacturing business
improved as a result of product mix enhancement, easing the decline in
profit of the division.
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In a challenging environment of global economic slowdown and weak
demand for textile products, the Group will continue to implement stringent
cost controls to enhance production efficiency. The Group will implement
product mix rationalization responding to changes in market needs and
prudent expansion of geographical coverage in both domestic and foreign
markets to boost the profitability of the division in the long run. Moreover,
the increase in export tax rebate for certain textile and garment products
to 15% starting from February 2009 and the repeated Renminbi lending
rate cuts by The People’s Bank of China will also benefit the long-term
development of the mainland textile industry.
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2008 2007 Change
HKS million HK$ million (%)
e+ Turnover 4,829 4,713 2%
iyl Attributable profit 74 144 (49%)
RETFE - Fi1g - EBITDA 461 (5%)
e BRI 2R
BARLZ K Capital expenditure 746 (49%)
FiETE R and new acquisitions
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The investment property division, which mainly comprises retail
property rental segment, reported turnover of HK$434 million for 2008,
representing an increase of 15.7% from 2007. Attributable profit for 2008
amounted to HK$754 million. Excluding the after-tax revaluation surplus
of approximately HK$415 million (2007: approximately HK$408 million)
and the decrease in deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$52 million
resulted from the reduction in the Hong Kong profits tax rate, attributable
profit of the division for 2008 would have increased by 19.6%.

The satisfactory growth in rental income was mainly attributable to
rental and occupancy rate increments of its retail portfolio. In particular,
the newly redeveloped multi-storey retail property at Jordan recorded
considerable increase in occupancy rate during the year, boosting the
overall performance of the division. Other properties were almost fully
let out for the year under review.

Looking forward, sentiment in the Hong Kong retail market will
continue to be influenced by the impact of the financial crisis. Rental
income from properties catering for smaller retailers will inevitably
be affected. Nevertheless, the limited supply of prime retail space in
traditional shopping districts, coupled with the successful introduction
of international fashion brand retailers into the Group’s Silvercord
property in Tsimshatsui commencing from 2009 will help secure a
stable rental income stream and future profitability. The division will
carry out review from time to time on its retail properties for renovation
potential in order to enhance rental income.
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LT HKS million (%)
E Turnover 434 375 16%
FEAEER Attributable profit 754 648 16%
REHFIS - #iI8 - EBITDA 860 836 3%
e R SH AT A A
BARRR R Capital expenditure 277 (100%)
UEEE and new acquisitions

INVESTMENTS AND OTHERS
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Attributable profit for 2008 amounted to HK$396 million (2007:
HK$429 million).

CONTAINER TERMINAL

The Group has a 10% interest in HIT Investments Limited and
Hutchison Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The Hong Kong and
Yantian deepwater port operations continued to maintain a stable
profit performance in 2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s consolidated cash and bank
balance amounted to HK$7,597 million. The Group’s borrowings as
at 31 December 2008 were HK$14,060 million with HK$5,485 million
repayable within one year, HK$8,515 million repayable after one year
but within five years and HK$60 million repayable after five years.
Committed borrowing facilities available to the Group but not drawn
as at 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately HK$1,793 million.
On 1 April 2008, a subsidiary of our beer operation entered into a five-
year term syndicated loan facility of HK$1.8 billion with ten banks at
0.57% p.a. over Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR™).

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’
funds and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at
18.7% as at 31 December 2008 (31 December 2007: 13.3%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As at 31
December 2008, 18.7% of the Group’s cash deposit balance was held
in Hong Kong dollars, 69.4% in Renminbi and 10.4% in US dollars;
whereas 55.8% of the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and 37.5% in Renminbi with 6.2% in US dollars. To
mitigate the interest rate exposure, the Group entered into certain
interest rate swaps to hedge part of its borrowings.

As at 31 December 2008, assets with a carrying value of HK$289 million
(31 December 2007: HK$248 million) were pledged for total borrowings
of HK$312 million (31 December 2007: HK$272 million).

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2008.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group, excluding its associated companies,
had a staff size of around 144,000, amongst which more than 95%
were employed in the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly
in Hong Kong and overseas. Remuneration packages are assessed in
accordance to the nature of jobs duties, individual performance and
market trends with built-in merit components, paid in the form of
cash bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2009
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MR. SONG LIN aged 46

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004 and has tendered his
resignation as Chairman and Executive Director with effect from 30 April 2009.
Mr. Song is concurrently Chairman of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation, Chairman of China
Resources Power Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited as
well as China Resources Microelectronics Limited. He is the Deputy Chairman
of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited
and The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. He has extensive experience in
corporate management and is currently responsible for the overall business
development and strategic planning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Solid Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai,
China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

MR. QIAO SHIBO aged 54

was re-appointed Executive Director of the Group on 6 March 2009 and has
been appointed Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009. He was appointed
Executive Director of the Group in July 2001 and Deputy Managing Director
in November 2001. He was re-designated as Non-Executive Director in March
2006 and resigned in February 2008. Mr. Qiao is the Director and President
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and the President of China
Resources National Corporation. He is also the Vice-Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the President of China Resources Medications Group Limited as
well as the Managing Director of Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
and Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao Co., Ltd., both of which are listed companies
in China. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language from the
Jilin University, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited

in 1992.

MR. CHEN LANG aged 43

was appointed Executive Director and Managing Director of the Group in January
2009. Mr. Chen is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
and China Resources National Corporation. He is the Vice Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited, the Chairman
of Suguo Supermarket Company Limited, and holds various directorships in
the subsidiaries of the Group in the retail division. He was previously the
Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Logic Limited
(now renamed as China Resources Gas Group Limited). Prior to that, he was
the Chairman and General Manager of China Resources Development and
Investment Company Limited and was in charge of a number of substantial
investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui University,
China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
San Francisco, USA. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1989.
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MR. WANG QUN aged 52

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was
appointed Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. He is also an Executive Director of China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible for the entire operation of the
Group’s beer operation. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of Finance degree from the
People’s University of China. He has previously worked in the China National
Economic Committee and held key management position in a Shenzhen based
conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

MR. LAU PAK SHING aged 59

has been an Executive Director of the Group since April 1997 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong
Kong Baptist University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
represented the Executive Committee of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants
Association Limited as Chairman for many years. Mr. Lau has more than 30
years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate finance, property,
godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently in charge of the
Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business. Mr. Lau joined
the Group in January 1994.

MR. KWONG MAN HIM aged 44

has been an Executive Director of the Group since February 2002 and was
appointed Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor
of Science degree from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Kwong
has extensive experience in corporate planning, financial analysis, equity
research and merchant banking. He is in charge of the Group’s finance and
treasury function, corporate planning and development as well as merger
and acquisition activities. He also manages investor relations and promotes
corporate governance. Mr. Kwong joined the Group in 2002.

EMAIKABMRAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited ~ Annual Report 2008 £# 69



70

EENSEEEASEE

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

JEH1TEZE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

BEEE nEmtm

R—ANEFE+ ARSI AAEBRES - (13
FEB(EE)ARAFTNRTEEDEATZ
ERMEEREEISE - BLeREET
ERBHERARAF - EHEHMARDD
EHWEFERANRPRERER)ER
NRZIFNITESE oI ARRERHLEER
NRZHTES - BHPEERERDF 2B
VIEHITEE  RERCEROERARTZE
£ ZATAENEHAT - BEAREHE
L FHIMESER HABHING 52+ B0 KE
B B S IE TR o

FTENRERE BER+=%
RIEERNFZAEZEAAEEEE - b
AEBERARANLAPHEEBHRAAAZ

RIZESRREHENERBBR AR ZHIT
B EESREFEREHR  TEETEREH
BHITEMNCREE - MAZEBH(EB)EAR
ARIZH it — AN \RAFEE—ANEEE
IEREBRTHABETIE  HEETHRMNMTIEK
FRHABIE(FERBNAWER - T44
BEFHER ITEHER TEEEEIT 2460 -

B E BeEm+ta

R—AAME+ - PRSI AREBNTE
E ECEEAF-ABEEEAENTES
R ANEESIE SRS - MEEnEn(E
E)ERARKFEEBREARZES A
EMEMEEERER - N AEEBRERA
AIZIEMITEE - MAEREPRILRASS
pELEMRERES LASTIHEESEL

B o

RS E BEm g

RIZEZ)\F_ARZEAAEEES - 117
TEm( £ M) AR A TBNIE A IR B
IBIRABACIR - N REREBEMARAR - FEH
METERARREBARIZERAR G ZIE
HITES - ZEES IR —NANEFEE—NA
TEEIERMEMAARNEERERRETIET
BB B [ TERE+EA] o

MR. JIANG WEI aged 46

was appointed Director of the Group in July 1995. He is currently the Director,
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a
Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited,
China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics Limited as
well as China Assets (Holdings) Limited. He is also an Executive Director of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Greentown China Holdings Limited and is also a Director of China Vanke
Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his
Bachelor’s degree in International Trade and Master’s degree in International
Business and Finance from the University of International Business and
Economics in Beijing, China.

MR. WANG SHUAITING aged 53

was appointed Director of the Group in March 2006. He is a Director and
Vice President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation. Mr. Wang is currently the Chairman of China
Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also an Executive
Director, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources
Power Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the
electricity industry in the PRC. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited, he worked for the General Office of the Government of
Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987 and was subsequently the Head of the
Industrial Office as well as the Deputy Secretary-General of the Government of
Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA degree in business administration from
China Europe International Business School.

MR. YAN BIAO aged 47

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in December 1994 and was a
Deputy Managing Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director
in March 2006. Mr. Yan is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited and China Resources National Corporation and is the Director of Legal
Affairs of the China Resources Group. He is also a Non-Executive Director of
China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Yan has a Bachelor of Laws degree from
the Peking University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San
Francisco, USA.

MR. LI FUZUO aged 44

was appointed Director of the Group in February 2008. He is currently an
Assistant President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and General
Manager of its Strategy Management Department. He is also a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics
Limited and China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Li obtained both his
Bachelor’'s and Master’s Degrees in Mechanical Manufacturing Engineering
from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics, China in 1987 and
1990 respectively.
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MR. DU WENMIN aged 45

was appointed Director of the Group in September 2007. He is the Chief Audit
Executive as well as the General Manager of the Internal Audit Department
of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. He is also a Non-Executive
Director of China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Microelectronics
Limited and China Resources Gas Group Limited. Mr. Du has an MBA degree
from the University of San Francisco, USA.
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DR. CHAN PO FUN, PETER
BBS, MBE, JP, ACA, FCCA, FCPA(Practising), FCPA(Aust), aged 87

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong
Kong for 61 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and
Modern Chinese Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater
Technology. Dr. Chan is a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (also
as its Research Professor) and the United College of Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of The Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding
Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited and has served three terms
as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong Federation of Stock Exchanges.

MR. HOUANG TAI NINH aged 55

has been a Director of the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
Investments Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited and China &
Overseas Resources Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business
Studies degree from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.

DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC
FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP, aged 55

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of
Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the
Eleventh National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong
SAR. Dr. Li holds directorship in a number of listed companies including
Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International Holdings
Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited,
Meadville Holdings Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
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DR. CHENG MO CHI
GBS, OBE, JP, aged 59

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a
solicitor in Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and
is the Senior Partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is
currently Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and had
served as a member of the Legislative Council from 1991 to 1995. Dr. Cheng
is the Hon. President and Founding Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Presently, he holds directorship in a number of listed companies in
Hong Kong and Singapore, including China COSCO Holdings Company Limited,
China Mobile Limited, City Telecom (HK) Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (formerly known as K. Wah
Construction Materials Limited), Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited, ARA Asset Management Limited, Tian An China
Investments Company Limited as well as Towngas China Company Limited.

MR. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN

GBS, JP, aged 44

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He is the Executive
Director and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance
Company Limited. He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company
Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community, Mr.
Chan also serves as Deputy to The National People’s Congress of the People’s
Republic of China and is former member of the Legislative Council and Executive
Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship in a
number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong Holdings
Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

MR. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON
GBS, CBE, JP, aged 63

has been a Director of the Group since November 2006. He had been a
government official for over 36 years before his retirement from the civil
service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat
in 1993 and served a number of high-ranking government positions, namely
the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary for Transport, Head of Central
Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting as Secretary for Planning,
Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and two of its subsidiaries,
ICEA Finance Holdings Limited as well as Television Broadcasts Limited.
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El#2 4¢3 VICE PRESIDENTS
MR. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES aged 53

was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the
Group’s Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a doctorate degree in
business administration awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. He
is a chartered accountant, New Zealand, Australian FCPA, a Canadian certified
general accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor. He has extensive
experience in internal auditing, financial management and operations review.
Mr. Lau joined the Group in February 2000.

MS. GUO JINQING aged 43

was appointed Vice President of the Group in February 2008. She has been
the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined Ng
Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing Director
in 1996. Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University
of International Business and Economics, China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Murdoch University, Australia. She has substantial
experience in trading and corporate management.

‘EIEE CORPORATE & OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

MISS CHEUNG SIU LING aged 46

is the Deputy Chief Financial Officer of the Group. Miss Cheung holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Newcastle, United
Kingdom. She is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. She
worked for an international accounting firm for over 13 years. Miss Cheung
joined the Group in January 2001.

MISS HUI LEUNG CHING, PATRICIA aged 41

is the Head Legal Advisor overseeing the Group’s Legal and Secretarial
Department. Miss Hui holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College,
University of London, and is qualified to practice law in Hong Kong as well
as England and Wales. Prior to joining the Group, Miss Hui has worked in
private practice and with a listed company and has substantial experience
in corporate and commercial legal work, regulatory compliance and company
secretarial matters. She joined the Group in October 2006.

MR. SHI SHANBO aged 43

was appointed Managing Director of China Resources Textiles (Holdings)
Company Limited in August 2006. Mr. Shi holds a Master’s degree in Economics
from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, China. He joined China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1991 and was the Vice Chairman and
General Manager of China Resources Cement Holdings Limited between June
2003 and December 2006. He has over a decade of experience in corporate
finance, human resources management and strategic planning.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate
governance framework is essential to the successful growth of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholder value. The Company is
committed to attaining and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and adopts principles of corporate governance emphasising
a quality board, accountability to all stakeholders, open communication
and fair disclosure.

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance Practice
Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual incorporates almost all the Code
Provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
includes the implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual can be
downloaded from our website and copies are available on request to the
Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, with deviations from Code
Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised below. The
Company has also exceeded the requirements under the Listing Rules and
the CG Code in various areas of its corporate governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the inclusion
of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is intended to
keep our shareholders abreast of the corporate governance practices of
the Company and their development throughout the reporting year and to
invite our shareholders’ views thereon.

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs.
The Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder
value and to conduct themselves in accordance with their duty of care
and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives of
the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal
of assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;
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5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;
6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend
and the declaration of any interim dividends.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of each
financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period. Since
November 2002, to enable the shareholders to appraise the operations
and performance of the Group, the Group has been releasing quarterly
financial and operational review. The financial statements are prepared
and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of the financial
position of the Group. Regular management reports on the financial
position and prospects of each business unit of the Group are reviewed
by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2008, and up to the date of
this Report, there were the following changes to the membership of
the Board:

(1) Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned, and Mr. Li Fuzuo was appointed,
as Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2008.

(2) Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph resigned as Executive Director on
15 February 2008.

(3) Mr. Chen Shulin resigned, and Mr. Chen Lang was appointed, as
Executive Director and Managing Director on 16 January 2009.

(4) Mr. Qiao Shibo was appointed as Executive Director on 6 March
2009.

(5) Mr. Song Lin resigned as Executive Director and Chairman, and Mr. Qiao
Shibo was appointed as Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 17 Directors, including
the Chairman, one Executive Director, the Managing Director, three Deputy
Managing Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and six Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 68 to 72 of this Annual Report and can also be found on our
website. The relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) if any, among members of the Board
are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between the Chairman and
the Managing Director.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has
received written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors confirming his independence from the Company, and considers
all of the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors
are held in high regard and contribute to the effective direction of the
Group. The Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-Executive Directors with six Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Two of our Independent Non-Executive Directors have appropriate
accounting qualifications, which also exceeds the requirement of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2008, the Company has maintained
the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to at least one
third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its
newly appointed directors. Continuing development and information are
provided to the Directors to keep them abreast of the latest developments
involving the Group’s businesses and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills
and expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the
Company. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination Committee.
The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to the
full Board for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not
appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary
term of office and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise the
composition of the Board to serve the needs of the Group. All Directors
are subject to re-election by shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting following their appointment and at least every three years
on a rotation basis. The Articles of Association of the Company require
that one-third of the Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive
Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who are required to retire
each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the year and
those who have been longest in office since their election or re-election. A
retiring Director is eligible for re-election.
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During the year of 2008, the positions of the Chairman and the Managing
Director were held separately by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin
respectively. The segregation of duties of the Chairman and the Managing
Director ensures a clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the Managing Director’s responsibility to manage
the Company’s business. The respective responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the CG Manual.

Due to business appointments overseas, Mr. Song Lin was not in Hong
Kong on 29 May 2008 and therefore could not attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on that day. The Managing Director and
either the chairman or at least one member of the audit committee,
compensation committee and nomination committee attended the annual
general meeting to ensure effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of the Group.
Between these regular meetings, the Board meets to discuss and consider
major issues (whether or not required by the Listing Rules) and also on
other occasions when board decisions are required. With respect to regular
meetings of the Board, Directors receive at least 14 days prior written
notice of the meeting and an agenda with supporting Board papers no
less than three days prior to the meeting. With respect to other meetings
called, Directors are given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable
in the circumstances. The Directors have full access to information on the
Group and independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary
by the Directors.
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BEEgR T N\FHEM2A2ZE(BEEM@  During 2008, 12 meetings (including meetings by way of circulation
RER) BEN_ZTZT)\FHFEESLEHENKE  of written resolutions) were held by the Board. The attendance of the
ZLZEEFHEMNFBEN TR : Directors at Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings held
in 2008 is set out in the table below:
o=y BEZZEg FMEEE® BWTZEE UBEZEgY EEEEE
Board Audit Compensation  Executive Finance Nomination
R S w  Committee Committee Committee  Committee®  Committee
#1TEZE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
RMEE Mr. Song Lin 2 24
BREIMSTAE  Mr Chen Shulin 41 1| 2 7 24
FEEE Mr. Wang Qun 2 2 24
ZIEMSE  Mr Lau Pak Shing 4| 5 | 2 9 24
BXER%EE M Kwong Man Him 5 | 2 9 24 1
EEREEY  Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph® 1] 1 1
FEFITESE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
BHKELE  Mr. Qiao Shibo®
BEEE Mr. Jiang Wei 1 2
FRMFESLE  Mr Wang Shuaiting 2
BRI E Mr. Yan Biao 2| 1| 2
HXE%ELE  Mr. DuWenmin 41 4| 2
ZEIEXLED  Mr. Li Fuzuo® 4 | 2| 2
B IEHITEE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
FREZS1{E1  Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 4| 6| 2 4 1
EARBSLE  Mr Houang Tai Ninh 4| 6| 2 4 1 1
ZRFEMBL D Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4| 4| 2 4 1
BMEEEE  Dr. Cheng Mo Chi 3 | 20| 2 4
FREZBHLE  Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan | 3 | 3©| 2 3 1
BiMAESLE  Mr Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon | 3 | 69| 2 1 1
ZEEN\FENBEERH 1 L 5 L
Total number of meetings held in 2008 4 9 4
MaE
Notes:
R:  TEHIE:E Regular Meeting
S:  4¥BI &% Special Meeting
W:  ZEREZ Written Resolutions
() FRERERZZZNF_A—BBEERIFNTES -
Mr. Li Fuzuo was appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 February 2008.
(2) BEHEREEBFERIEBPITES RZZNF_A—HEX-
Mr. Qiao Shibo resigned as Non-Executive Director with effect from 1 February 2008.
(3) EBLREEFERNTES RTTN\F_ATHEBEN -
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph resigned as Executive Director with effect from 15 February 2008.
(4) ZTZN\FEZIBZEGRAINEDRAEZREABA -
The resolutions of Finance Committee in 2008 were passed by way of written resolutions.
(5) BEBEARNRERBAFE 10815 HP—RGRBEBHE L ABELARNE -
At one of the board meetings, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi attended the meeting by way of telephone pursuant
to Article 108 of the Company s Articles of Association.
(6) REBEARABERAE 10815 HF—REFRE BAEUNBFLARHE -
At one of the board meetings, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan attended the meeting by way of telephone
pursuant to Article 108 of the Company " s Articles of Association.
7) BEAARERMANE 10815  EPMAGHEBWTLEANEFEA2H -

At two of the board meetings, Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon attended the meeting by way of telephone
pursuant to Article 108 of the Company s Articles of Association.
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While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are delegated
as follows:

(@ Committees — various committees have been established by the Board
to administer certain specified functions of the Company’s affairs.
The main committees include: the Executive Committee, the Finance
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee which set out, among other things, the
duties, functions and composition of these committees are set out in
the CG Manual and available on the Company’s website;

(b) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s
business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable to
the Board; and

() Senior Management - certain responsibilities of corporate and operating
management are delegated to senior management of the Company
within the parameters as specified by the Board.

As at 31 December 2008, the Nomination Committee comprised four
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (chairman),
Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue,
Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr. Kwong Man Him. The duties of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and to make recommendation after such review and to assess
the suitability and qualification of any proposed director candidate. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put forward for
consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee which set out its duties and procedures
are available on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting. The work of the Nomination Committee included the
following recommendations to the Board:

e The resignation of Mr. Qiao Shibo, and the appointment of Mr. Li
Fuzuo, as Non-Executive Director.
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As at 31 December 2008, the Compensation Committee comprised five
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(chairman), Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi
and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, and one Executive Director, Mr. Kwong
Man Him. The duties of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of remuneration of Directors and senior management, establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration
and determining the specific remuneration packages for all directors
and senior management. The terms of reference of the Compensation
Committee which set out its duties and procedures are available on the
Company’s website.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined with
reference to the performance and responsibilities of the individual, the
performance of the Group, prevailing market conditions and remuneration
benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangements based on the performance of the Group
and the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met once and
passed resolutions on matters including:

e Approval of the remuneration packages 2008 for Directors and senior
management of the Company.

As at 31 December 2008, the Audit Committee comprised five Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (chairman), Dr.
Chan Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi and Mr. Bernard
Charnwut Chan. Two of its members have appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
No member of this Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditors of the Company. The membership of the Audit Committee has
exceeded the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualification. The existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have also adopted the
principles set out in the CG Code.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors, review of the Company’s financial information
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and oversight of the Company’s financial report system and internal
control procedures. During the year under review, the Audit Committee
met on four occasions. The work of the Audit Committee in 2008 included
reviews of:

e the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in respect of 2007
audit;

e the 2007 annual report and annual results announcement;

e the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the
2007 audit;

e connected party transactions;

e the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March 2008 and
the related results announcement;

e the 2008 interim report and interim results announcement;

e the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2008
and the related results announcement; and

e the quarterly reports of internal audit activities.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external auditors
on four occasions without the presence of any Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence of
the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee concludes that
the independence of the external auditors of the Company has not been
compromised by non-audit services performed for the Group. During the
year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s external
auditors amount to approximately HK$26 million (2007: approximately
HK$21 million); fees related to non-audit services paid and payable amount
to approximately HK$1.1 million (2007: approximately HK$2 million).

The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities as at 31
December 2008 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 91 to 97
of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company has adopted a Code
of Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Code of
Ethics has been amended and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company on 6 April 2006 and 4 April 2007 and reconfirmed on 31 March
2008. The prohibitions on securities dealing and disclosure requirements
in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified individuals who include the
Group’s senior management and persons who are privy to price sensitive
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information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and maintain sound
systems in risk management, internal control and governance to ensure the
effective and efficient accomplishment of corporate goals and objectives,
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure
the reliability of financial and corporate reporting.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as the standards in establishing risk management and
control systems among our Group companies. The Group’s internal control
system includes five key elements, namely the existence of an effective control
environment, risk management, communication and information system, cost
effective control activities and monitoring mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and impact
on the respective business unit at least once every year. The executive
management team of each business unit is accountable for the conduct
and performance of each operation in the business unit within the agreed
strategies and similarly the management of each operation is accountable
for its conduct and performance. Policies and procedures are designed
for safeguarding corporate assets, maintaining proper accounting records
and ensuring transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorisation. Monthly management reports on the financial results and
key operation indicators are reviewed by the Executive Committee of the
Board. Regular meetings are held with the executive management team of
each business unit to review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Department, reporting to the Audit Committee and
Managing Director respectively, is responsible for assessing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, formulating an impartial
opinion on the effectiveness and efficiency of the systems, and reporting
its findings to the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Audit Department conducts independent reviews on the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems on an on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual
business units, the scope of work performed by the internal audit function
covers all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit Committee
at least once every quarter and the corrective actions are taken by the
relevant business units. The Board conducts regular reviews of the Group’s
internal control system through the Internal Audit Department and the
Audit Committee.

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Board and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal control
provides reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
and there is no significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and fair disclosure of information to its shareholders. Accurate and fair
disclosure is necessary for shareholders to form their own judgment on
the operation and performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally disclosed
information deserves a reasonable reply. The Corporate Planning and
Development Department is responsible for managing investor relations
and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing
and prospective partners and counterparties with information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices. Copies of such information
can be obtained from the Company Secretary upon written request.

For and on behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG

Managing Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2009
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing and
distribution, textile and property investment businesses. The principal
activities of the Company are investment holding and property investment.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on
pages 184 to 191. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT
The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 107 and
shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2008.

DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of HK$o0.15 per ordinary share amounting to HK$359
million was paid to shareholders during the year.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK$0.25 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately HK$597 million payable on or about 12 June
2009 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on 25 May
2009.

FIXED ASSETS
Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES
A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
192 to 195.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 32 to the financial statements respectively.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately HK$20 million.
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The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Executive Director
Mr. Qiao Shibo

Managing Director
Mr. Chen Shulin

Mr. Chen Lang

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Wang Qun

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

Directors
Mr. Jiang Wei
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Wang Shuaiting
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Yan Biao
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Li Fuzuo
(Non-executive Director)
Mr. Du Wenmin
(Non-executive Director)
Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter

(Has tendered resignation as
Chairman and Executive Director
with effect from 30 April 2009)

(Resigned as Non-executive Director
on 1 February 2008 and appointed
as Executive Director on
6 March 2009)

(Has been appointed as Chairman
with effect from 30 April 2009)

(Resigned on 16 January 2009)

(Appointed on 16 January 2009)

(Resigned on 15 February 2008)

(Appointed on 1 February 2008)

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

(Independent Non-executive Director)
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DIRECTORS (continued)
In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing, Mr. Jiang Wei, Mr. Wang Shuaiting,
Mr. Yan Biao and Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter shall retire by rotation and are
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Article of Association,
Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Chen Lang shall retire and are eligible for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 68 to 73.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”).
In addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a
share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was
terminated on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on 20 August
2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and shall
expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible participants including any executive or non-
executive directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed
as such), any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by
any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group, any
executives and employees, consultants, professional and other advisors
to the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief
executive, substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies
of the Group, associates of directors, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial shareholder
and where a substantial shareholder is a company, employees of
subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the exercise price shall be such price determined
by the board of directors at its absolute discretion. The maximum
entitlement of each participant under the schemes (including options to
be granted to the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates) is equivalent to the
maximum limit permitted under the Listing Rules. The scheme mandate
limit under the New Scheme was refreshed and renewed by an ordinary
resolution passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further
share options to subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of
the shares in issue as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the
total number of shares available for issue upon exercise of all options
which may be granted under the New Scheme is 159,876,321 shares
which represent 6.7% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a
grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately after the
date of grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or
granted in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during
the year in relation to each of the directors or their respective associates,
employees, and other participants of the share option schemes.
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Eﬁﬂﬁ*&ﬁ%ﬂ(@) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
() ESHEBEA (@) Directors or their associates
R-BENF+_A=+—BRAEEHN As at 31 December 2008 and during the year, the following
B THESFAREAND TSR] directors had interests in respect of options to subscribe for shares
RERM BB ERER - RIBZIEE - # granted under the New Scheme of the Company. Share options
EEEMERENT - held by directors granted under such scheme are set out below:
HETEZ
FRRiE 2
fEfRiER A AR
Number of share options: fn B &
RZZZN\E BT
RZZEN\F +=A Price of
1T6%(E —R—H WAEE WAEE RAREE RAREE == Company’s
AT W AT Bl 718 a8 E W ARITHE shares for
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding options
ESHA Kt AH Price at during during during during at exercised?
Name of director Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2008 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2008 HK$
BUFHTES
Independent
Non-executive
Directors
L5
Chan Po Fun, Peter 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
BAE
Houang Tai Ninh 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -
FRE
Li Ka Cheung, Eric 02/06/2004 9.55 200,000 - - - - 200,000 -

A5t Total 600,000 - - - - 600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) BERHEMBEE (b) Employees and other participants
BRETEFEMITE SN  ARRIZFIBEEY Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company
RASEZEES  BERBIBRELEE are employees of the Group and details of share options held by
REX(R)BWHE - U TRAEEREE (T them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share
BEANGESR) REMSMER B EARRE options granted to employees of the Group (other than directors of
BRI © the Company) and other participants are set out below.
@ EE(TEEFLXAGES) (i)  Employees (other than directors of the Company)
MEATRE
2 fERRHE
P /N
HEARIES R B 17 B &>
Number of share options! PEEETT
R-ZENF R-ZZNF Price of
fIfefE —A—A RANEE RAREE RAREE RAFE +=A=+—H Company’s
BT HARTTEE i 718 G| KB MARTTEE shares
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding for options
Edinl=0 Price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2008 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2008 HK$
E5tEs
Old Schemes
20/06/2000 7.19 314,000 - 66,000 - - 248,000 25.124
21/11/2000 7.08 813,000 - 352,000 - - 461,000 27.900
/&t Sub-total 1,127,000 - 418,000 - - 709,000
EE ]
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 284,000 - - - - 284,000 -
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 370,000 - 120,000 - - 250,000 28.108
14/04/2003 6.29 204,000 - 200,000 - - 4,000 22.300
01/08/2003 7.10 40,000 - 10,000 - - 30,000 24.250
08/10/2003 8.90 122,000 - - - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 5,197,000 - 1,541,000 - 28,000 3,628,000 26.567
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 1,716,000 - 618,000 - - 1,098,000 29.510
22/07/2004 9.80 110,000 - - - - 110,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 9,896,000 - 998,000 - 110,000 8,788,000 25.521
17/01/2005 11.40 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 27.900
22/07/2005 12.50 410,000 - 160,000 - - 250,000 32.625
/N5t Sub-total 19,513,000 - 3,687,000 - 138,000 15,688,000
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BRRRESTE e

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) EERHMSHEEE) (b) Employees and other participants (continued)
G) HipsgEE (i)  Other Participants
HEITE
P g
ZANAT]
il g=R BB
Number of share options* BT
RZTTNF RZTTNF Price of
f716M8 —A—H RAREE RAREE RAREE WAFE +=A=1+—H Company’s
BT HARTTEE i e G K AT shares
Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding for options
B dael= Price at during during during during at exercised?
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2008 the year the year the year the year 31/12/2008 HK$
atadl
New Scheme
05/03/2002 7.35 649,000 - 44,000 - - 605,000 22.690
/Nt Sub-total 649,000 - 44,000 - - 605,000
BT Notes:
1. TEARRE SN B FR R ARAEFT Y K 2 AN A RIAERENR (S - 1. Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.

2. ERNDITEEREMIEEZAQAFRNDER AR 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the options exercised during the
BT B AT - AR B Fr AT s 2 Wi (B 2 year is the weighted average of the closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange
IRET S immediately before the date of exercise of options.

FLE IR T B MR AR 2 5T B FIEA B IS RS B The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in note
HIFR - 2Q to the financial statements.

3. EHZER S -F—A=+—BFULIL 8t 3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2002, and therefore no options
LAtE - AR RBUERIRERT B3R A R AR - have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.

4. Xt B RE BRI RIS B R E 4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date falling
Z BiEwm - mExE L ERE 2z RERB T - ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is HK$1.00.

5. HRREIEEEN SR HERE - R ERTTE 5. As no share options were granted during the year under review, no price
e disclosure is applicable.

6. B — A 2R T M EAREBREERRR 6. Share options are generally either fully vested or are vested over a period

ROFEZHRAET - WEERRZ BRI EET
FARTTE

of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a grant and
exercisable within a period of not more than 10 years immediately after the date
of grant.
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RIZBENEFT-_A=1+—B ARAEERK
BITHABRADE MEAEEE (EEREBE
PIEER AL+ —2(EF MG EEDEXVED) Bk
7~ B D RESFPERARBER LB G
I FEXVEDSE £ R 36\ 0 JF A& AN B R B <X P
MR SOR R (B IERIECE 75 KB 5RHI )RR
HRER RERGERBOERIORR) - RARE
(BHEHEHRIDE=AA T _FREFEXD
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wKE - FREEMRANAECETAREFRETE
FRHORETRNAME AR R LB R

KARBWT -

() REQAFAEHTEBRRRABRO PHEEHN

s
S
E=ME Long position/
Name of Director Short position
R A
Song Lin Long position
BRASI AR HE
Chen Shulin Long position
T 552)
Wang Qun Long position
2B A

Lau Pak Shing

BB

Kwong Man Him

Long position

e

Long position

B TR
Jiang Wei Long position
e A
Yan Biao Long position

EXERS
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of The Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions
which the directors and chief executive of the Company are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are required
to be and are recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(@ Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
AR
Atk
TERERR D £ E Aggregate
&vaE - 4E] Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares* interest? (%)

1,700,000 - 0.07
1,932,000 - 0.08
60,000 - 0.01
360,000 - 0.02
1,194,000 - 0.05
240,000 - 0.01
500,000 - 0.02
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EECRGERW)

(R) REQRERTEERREBRATHEED
fEmE)
g KE
EEMA Long position/
Name of Director Short position
HXE ey}
Du Wenmin Long position
BRI 2 wE

Chan Po Fun, Peter

BAE

Houang Tai Ninh

TR
Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Long position
WA
Long position

e

Long position

1R
Long position

T -

1.

B EXTBEER S | —a R DR BB REIE R
ARAERERD - ZEBRERBRIELTIAEYR
WHIRALTET A -

AR BN RO P TR BB R A RN
ZZ)\F+ A=+ REBTRAEENEDLL -
ZERBRESIE L HEE88.25%E BEITRAZ AR
A -

B3R EMIEEIN  AMENRB 2 HEmEE
FUERTHEBEAZENEE °

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(€))

Notes:

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

AR

Atk

TERERR &R Aggregate

f&1nEkE Number of percentage of

Number of shares

underlying shares*

interest? (%)

100,000 - 0.01
336,000 200,000 0.03
170,0003 - _
- 200,000 0.01
- 200,000 0.01

This refers to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options
granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option Schemes”,
such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2008.

Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is interested
in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

Save as otherwise specified under note 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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EECESER @ DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(Z) REECEECRITZERREBKROTHES (b)) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
B R associated corporations
FB - EFUESHEEEEE(ERRGE As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued
F MEREEE)) BB BT E R MR IR ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by options granted
TR AT (D 2 B E A under the share option schemes of associated corporations (within
i ZSERERBRIELTATDR U the meaning of SF0), such options being unlisted physically settled

RASTETA - equity derivatives:
O RREEBEE-EEEMERAR ()  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding

(IEEE ) D RITEBRRRIEE
HE MRS 8 M R TEE R

under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”):

i ARITHE T8 HihiEe

FERiES A TS TT Borkke

HE8/ RE R&DE B Number of Exercise % 4 B HA Aggregate

EEMA Long position/ Number of  share options Price Date of  percentage of

Name of Director Short position shares outstanding® HK$ grant interest® (%)

N HE - 900,000 1.230 01/06/20052 0.02
Song Lin Long position

2IE /K g - 150,000 1.270 02/06/20053 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position

& e 892,000 - - - 0.02
Jiang Wei Long position

FEhEE e 200,000 540,000 1.590 04/03/20025 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position

&) g 1,992,000 - - - 0.04
Yan Biao Long position

ZIerE LSSy 750,000 250,000 1.230 01/06/2005% 0.02
Li Fuzuo Long position

MR e 790,000 250,000 1.230 01/06/2005% 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position

= MAIEAMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

Notes:

1.

(i)

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Land covered by the share options.

Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of
grant. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
from 2 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 1 June 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable over a period
from 1 June 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively to 31 May 2015.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

Options are exercisable from 4 March 2002 to 31 January 2012.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2008.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.

Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR Gas”) (formerly
known as China Resources Logic Limited):

B AR TR TEE HAERER
fERR IR E BT ASk:
Number of Exercise s qunl=p: Aggregate
share options Price Date of  percentage of
outstanding* HK$ grant interest? (%)
- - - 0.02

- - - 0.01

- - - 0.01

- - - 0.01

Notes:

EEESERE
(2) REEZEERTEERREERETHEE (O)

HIfESS ()

BT -

1. R ESE RBRIENTS RN EBE AR
AR5 -

2. ERETREEE Y ARt T EHEANT
- WEREREBLT

3. E%H%%EEJ SHEE T - AT A RIAR TR

T+ ZEENRZZETAFARNAZH
—RFNA—BIEEBITE - RE®
Wﬁﬁ/’éﬁ%m

4. E%%ﬁiﬂ’ﬁlmﬁﬁﬁiﬁ% C A SRR RN
“TT+ ZEENRZZETAFASA—A
E-T-AFAA=+—BILHETE - &
ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬂa AT

5. ERETR _TEE_F=ZANBE_T—=
F—A=+—AIEHRTE  BHORER
BT o

6. BBy RMEES RN KAEERNE
BEEBREWNR _TEN\F+-_A=+—H
EEITRABEN B,

7. EXFIRE RS MESERAERES
AZEDEE -

(i) *ETF MR EZE-E R RIERE

ARTEBRE D (ATHEE B
*ﬁ‘ﬁi”ﬂ)aﬁéﬁﬁf A% I AR HR 2E O
W'ﬁﬁﬁﬁx%ﬁiwr‘ﬁRﬂﬁ%Hx%Z%

e KR Mt EE
BEME Long position/ Number of
Name of Director Short position shares
2K ey 250,000
Lau Pak Shing Long position
FEMFE 5=} 54,000
Wang Shuaiting Long position
TR 5=} 51,000
Li Fuzuo Long position
MXR 5=} 54,000
Du Wenmin Long position

BIRE

1 FERRRE B B IR BB ARIE A0S R ) ZE R MR SRAE R
A& 1n 4855 -

2. AT R TS R EE B AR RARR AR5 48
BEEBRER_TEN\F+_A=+—H
EEITRABEN B,

3. EXFIRE RS MESERAERES
AZEDEE -

The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Gas covered by the share options.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Gas to the total issued share capital of CR
Gas as at 31 December 2008.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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EEESERE DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(Z) REECEECRITZERREBKROTHES (b)) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

HORERR (48)

associated corporations (continued)

(i) IRIE—TEEESAE —EBE HERE (iii) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding

RAR[EEEN DDBETEBER R
RIBEBENBEAER M RTTERE

under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR

Pk 2 S Power”):
B AR TIE 1TEE HiniE=
RS TSI TT Bokls
gE/HKE iRChy 245 Number of Exercise =Rt Aggregate
BEME Long position/ Number of  share options Price Date of  percentage of
Name of Director Short position shares outstanding* HK$ grant interests (%)
NS e 1,260,000 800,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.06
Song Lin Long position 540,000 3.99 18/03/20053
BRAG AR 5=} - 240,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.02
Chen Shulin Long position 400,000 3.99 18/03/20053
T B e - 500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
Wang Qun Long position
2IE K [S=Y - 100,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.01
Lau Pak Shing Long position
e o= 840,000 200,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position 360,000 3.99 18/03/20053
ThHbFE e 3,450,000 900,000 2.80 06/10/2003* 0.12
Wang Shuaiting Long position 540,000 3.99 18/03/2005*
&) g - 240,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
Yan Biao Long position 320,000 3.99 18/03/20053
IS T 480,000 90,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.02
Li Fuzuo Long position 180,000 3.99 18/03/20053
HXR e 270,000 180,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01
Du Wenmin Long position
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EECESER G

(2) AEBEEERTEERREBROPHES
HIRERR (%)
B -

1. BRI B ERBREMME R ERE 1A
Peiniags -

2. BRESDHRL  SHEHS 2=+ /A
RHERHEEBRFLE:  RELASE—E
FRE - 2HERESN_Z—=F1+AX
BERw - bads bR ERBSIT

3. BERESDHEL  8HE 21 F
mRE AP EAFRET  RREAHE—
BERL > 2HRBEEAR_T—HF=A
TAREM - L 8RRENOREREEL

IT, °©

4. R AR R R B RARE AR A B DR ST 1R 1)
BRTTEE °

5. RIS RMEBE N RN RABRERN &
BEEHENR_TENF+-_A=+—8
ZEBETRARENESLL

6. EXRBEERGARESTUESHAA
FJ0RBE -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)

(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
Notes:

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
of CR Power covered by the share options.

2. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of
the date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of
grant. All options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of the
grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

3. Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant.
All options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the grants
mentioned above is HK$1.00.

4. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from date of grant of
the relevant options.

5. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR
Power as at 31 December 2008.

6. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (continued)
Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

(iv) RE—TAREEEZE -EBRETAR (iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding

AR([EEMEF DEBETEBER R
RIBZE BN E FBRERT &M ARTTRE

under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Microelectronics Limited (“CR Microelectronics”):

fENRiE s s
B ARTTHE TE(E HihEm
RS TSI TT =Pl
gE/HKE iRChy 245 Number of Exercise =Rt Aggregate
BEME Long position/ Number of  share options Price Date of  percentage of
Name of Director Short position shares outstanding* HK$ grant interest? (%)
R FA 1,245,533 - - - 0.02
Song Lin Long position
2K e 3,283,200 - - - 0.06
Lau Pak Shing Long position
EE e 537,614 - - - 0.01
Jiang Wei Long position
THEb5E g 972,000 - - - 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position
FEiE ey 918,000 - - - 0.02
Li Fuzuo Long position
HXR e 972,000 - - - 0.02
Du Wenmin Long position
Bt e - Notes:
1. BARES B EEREMS ROEBRE TR 1 The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares
RARR 1D 428K - of CR Microelectronics covered by the share options.
2. AP ROEBMEFRG KEBRKR 2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
MEBLEERREFR_ZETNFT+=A and underlying shares of CR Microelectronics to the total issued share
=+ —HZBEETRAEENE DL - capital of CR Microelectronics as at 31 December 2008.
3. I BRSNS EEUERES 3. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his

AZENRE -

capacity as beneficial owner.
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BREARRERHNRR
RZFBZNF+_A=1t—8 RLXFAHEED

Rz MORRIN -
Befn R BB ZERIECRE 77 MBS

AT ALTRAERRRNG KB
5 RGIDEXVERE =

ME=ZDEHRAARRREHCLBEERRRAR

BENERMARNERIAR

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2008, other than the interests and short positions as
disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as they fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company:

hﬁ%‘ﬁmﬁ%
HHESRR G, EE

At B

hEEBE AR
(IEBErA)

E RN ERAFR
(fF5ED)

CRC Bluesky Limited
(P &£

EH(RE)BRAT
([ EKE D (i)

B FPERTT (P 5E2)

Genesis Asset Managers,

LLP(Fff7E3)

MRE -

Name of interested party

China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”)

China Resources Co., Limited
(Note 1)

CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1)

China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”)
(Note 1)

Commonwealth Bank of
Australia (Note 2)

Genesis Asset Managers, LLP
(Note 3)

Notes:

V=8 -)
Long position/
Short position

Number of
shares in which
the interested
party is deemed
to have interests

RREBDHL

Percentage of

shareholding (%)

HeE 1,232,764,380 51.60
Long position
HE 1,232,764,380 51.60
Long position
ey 1,232,764,380 51.60
Long position
e 1,232,764,380 51.60
Long position
HaE 238,949,767 10.00
Long position
5=} 121,675,645 5.09

Long position

1. #EHEE ACRC Bluesky LimitedW2EMIB AR - M1 1.

CRC Bluesky Limited BZE BB N ER AR ZEHES
AR MEERGBRARNABEBRAGEAE
99.98%#E %5 ©

BE(ER LB GI)EXVEBE= &% 7 EBHRTE
MARBHENERBR - 2SR dRINEFBRT
B S B 100%5E F‘*ﬁlﬁfézxflﬁﬁﬁ°

Genesis Asset Managers, LLPIAIR & 4532 & 15 355 1%
5 o

CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned as to
100% by China Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to 99.98% by
CRNC.

2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by corporations controlled directly
or indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of Australia.

3. Genesis Asset Managers, LLP held the shares in the capacity of investment
manager.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as a
beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company
or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly
through its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December 2008,
the aggregate amount of the facilities subject to such obligation were
HK$8 billion. Such facilities will expire before the end of April 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. On 15 December 2008, China Resources Textile Materials Company
Limited (“CR Textile”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with Atsugi Co., Ltd. (“Atsugi”), the
holder of 85% equity interest in EEEREHDEEBR AR
(Yantai Atsugi CRC Stocking Co., Ltd.) (“Yantai Atsugi”), for the
disposal of its 10% equity interest in Yantai Atsugi to Atsugi at
a cash consideration of US$5,701,000. Upon completion, Yantai
Atsugi will be owned as to 5% by CR Textile and as to 95% by
Atsugi. Yantai Atsugi is principally engaged in the manufacturing
of plaited yarn, pantyhose, socks and other related products in
the Chinese Mainland. The Group has been divesting businesses
or assets which lack critical mass and the disposal will enable CR
Textile to realize part of its strategic investment in Yantai Atsugi.
Atsugi is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its being
a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company and
therefore, the disposal of 10% equity interest in Yantai Atsugi to
Atsugi constituted a connected transaction of the Company.

FEMAIXAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 £ g9
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Rider Development Limited ([ DRDLJ)
BT MREERERE  BBERE
EDRDLA NEE R KT RN — A
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7% 2,000,0007T ' {ERBRERBER
FABMABEYE = E KRB
FHE R E R E i & (/E/RDRDLEL A
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B - ZIBpEOFHE LR ESER
S EHER -
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7T v MEE/AMEE R & B R DRDLY 1+
7 A & BIlA H i #36,000,0007T °

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules. Details of those continuing
connected transactions which are subject to the reporting
requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules are
summarized as follows:

2.

@

Facilities management agreement and godown management
agreement

On 28 June 2006, China Resources Logistics (Yuen Fat Wharf
& Godown) Limited, formerly known as Yuen Fat Wharf &
Godown Company Limited (“Yuen Fat”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, renewed a facilities management
agreement with China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH”), the controlling shareholder of the Company, for the
provision of management services by Yuen Fat on the port
premises and facilities developed on a site owned by CRH in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid CRH a monthly fee of HK$1,000,000 in consideration for
the right to keep, as the service fee payable by CRH to Yuen
Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling fees, service
charges and other payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own
expenses from independent third parties. This agreement was
for a term of 3 years commencing on 1 July 2006.

On 28 June 2006, Yuen Fat also renewed a godown
management agreement with Dragon Rider Development
Limited (“DRDL”), a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH, for the
management, by Yuen Fat, of a godown owned by DRDL in
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the agreement, Yuen Fat had
paid DRDL a monthly fee of HK$2,000,000 in consideration
for the right to keep, as the service fee payable by DRDL to
Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all license fees and other
payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses from
independent third parties. This agreement has the same term
as the above facilities management agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$242,955,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$36,000,000.
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Ceroilfood Development
Company Limited
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Foodstuff agreements

On 18 December 2007, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“Ng Fung
Hong™), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the foodstuff agreements for a term of three years
ending on 31 December 2010 with each of the connected
persons below in relation to the sale and/or purchase of
foodstuff products with these parties. Under the foodstuff
agreements, Ng Fung Hong and each of these connected
persons agreed that in the event that Ng Fung Hong and any
of its subsidiaries (“Ng Fung Hong Group”) and any of these
connected persons or any of their associates entered into a
foodstuff transaction, such transaction would be conducted
on normal commercial terms. The prices paid or received
by any member of the Ng Fung Hong Group to or from the
above parties or their associates would either be at market
prices or at prices no less favorable to the Ng Fung Hong
Group than those available to or from independent third
parties. Details of these transactions for the year ended 31
December 2008 are summarized below.

BHE_TT)N\F

+=-—A=+—H1t
FENR LR

Amount of transactions

an associate of a 20% shareholder

of a subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong

R EIKESEA ] BERET—HEHBAR49%
China National Fisheries ez B AR R
Corp. a 49% shareholder of a

subsidiary of Ng Fung Hong

#MAI¥AMR QT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

RHMEE for the year ended

Nature of transactions 31 December 2008

(B'T)

(HK$)

BERM 68,570,000
Purchase of foodstuff

HERM 205,945,000

Sale of foodstuff

Annual Report 2008 &k
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

©

(d)

Tenancy agreement

On 18 December 2007, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new tenancy
agreements under the framework terms with China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company, and its subsidiaries other than the Group
(“CRNC Group”) for three years ending 31 December 2010.
The CRNC Group is a conglomerate with significant property
investments including residential, commercial and industrial
premises in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland. According
to the framework terms, each of the lease arrangement to
be entered into by a member of the Group with a member of
the CRNC Group would be documented in a separate written
agreement with a lease term of not exceeding three years
and would be on normal commercial terms with the rent,
management fees and other charges received by members of
the CRNC Group from any member of the Group being either
at market prices or at prices no less favorable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount
of the rent, management fees and other related charges
payable by the Group to the CRNC Group was HK$58,166,000.

Decoration agreement

On 18 December 2007, the Company announced that the
Group intended to continue to enter into new contracts
for the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s
offices, retail outlets and investment properties under the
framework terms with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CRNC, and its subsidiaries
(“Uconia Group”) for the three years ending 31 December
2010. According to the framework terms, each provision of
decoration services by the Uconia Group to members of the
Group would be documented in a separate written agreement
with duration not exceeding three years and each contract
of decoration services would be entered into on normal
commercial terms and the prices would be either at market
prices or at prices no less favorable to the Group than those
available from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount
charged by the Uconia Group totaled HK$82,932,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary
to perform certain agreed procedures in respect of continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were
performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to evaluate
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules whether, the
above continuing connected transactions:

(@ had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

(b) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

(© had been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group; and

(d) had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2008.

The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors of the Company that
the samples the auditors selected were in agreement in respect
of items (a) and (b) above. In respect of item (c), the samples
selected were, where applicable, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group. In respect of item (d), the auditors compared
the aggregate amount for each type of connected transactions
as set out in section 2(a) to 2(d) above and reported that such
aggregate amounts had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favorable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(© in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
December 2008 are set out on pages 184 to 191.

TRANSACTIONS IN SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, as at the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the aggregate
turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

AUDITORS
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
SONG LIN
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Resources Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 107 to 191,
which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 December 2008, and the consolidated profit and loss account, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of principal
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2009
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HE =TT )\F1+=HA=1—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

—EENE —TEig
2008 2007
By BEEER BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
HERE ¥ Continuing operations
S Turnover 6 64,628 51,513
SHERAR Cost of sales (48,684) (38,950)
EA Gross profit 15,944 12,563
E A A Other income 7 1,691 1,668
HERDIEEA Selling and distribution expenses (10,461) (8,033)
—MRITIRE R General and administrative expenses (3,155) (2,419)
B TSR AR Finance costs 8 (595) (480)
FE(RES &N B 345 RE Share of net results of associates 367 353
FR7E A& A Profit before taxation 3,791 3,652
Bi| Taxation 13 (830) (764)
FEC 2 EE 2 Profit for the year from continuing
N[5 A operations 9 2,961 2,888
ERIERE XK Discontinued operation
ERIERE XK Profit for the year from discontinued
AN i F) operation 9, 15 - 2,582
REZ @A Profit for the year 2,961 5,470
SRR Attributable to:
PN Shareholders of the Company 2,322 4,961
DERRER Minority interests 639 509
2,961 5,470
SREF Earnings per share 16
BHEKERBARIEEE From continuing and discontinued
ZE® operations
E-YIN Basic HKSo.97 HK$2.09
e Diluted HKSo.97 HK$2.07
FEICE 2 X From continuing operations
E-YIN Basic HKSo.97 HK$1.00
e Diluted HKSo.97 HK$0.99
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mMOBEREBR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R=FZLF/N\F+=H=1—H At 31 December 2008

—EENE —TEig
2008 2007
BitEE BEEER BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets
— B — Investment properties 17 7,653 7,299
—FHEE A& ERLD — Interests in leasehold land held for
TR own use under operating leases 17 3,783 2,488
—E A - HES R — Other property, plant and equipment 17 24,917 20,089
ma Goodwill 18 6,385 6,133
Hibh B E Other intangible assets 19 68 81
N UNCIPR 3t Interests in associates 21 1,953 1,447
AERE Available for sale investments 22 40 46
TEfSFRIE Prepayments 23 198 205
BT IB B E Deferred taxation assets 29 164 119
45,161 37,907
REEE Current assets
FE Stocks 24 11,509 9,080
B 5 K& H M FEKGRIR Trade and other receivables 25 5,444 5,241
AERE Available for sale investments 22 71 -
AR ERIE Taxation recoverable 75 20
EEMIRITAETT Pledged bank deposits 21 38
e RIRITHET Cash and bank balances 7,576 8,405
24,696 22,784
REAE Current liabilities
B 5 R EAE RIE Trade and other payables 27 (19,302) (16,565)
PTHESBT A Derivative financial instruments 26 - (4)
RHER Short term loans 28A (5,485) (4,944)
JERTHRIR Taxation payable (433) (268)
(25,220) (21,781)
RE(AE)EERE Net current (liabilities)/assets (524) 1,003
REERTBDEME Total assets less current liabilities 44,637 38,910
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RHEIER Long term loans 28B (8,575) (7,503)
RIETIAE B Deferred taxation liabilities 29 (1,338) (1,243)
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 26 (11) -
HE3EmeBE Other non-current liabilities 30 (215) =
34,498 30,164




moEERMER
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

—EEN\F —EELF
2008 2007
k3 BYEET BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
BRAR #E Capital and reserves

[N Share capital 31 2,389 2,385
i Reserves 32 22,770 20,486

AATRRELER Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 25,159 22,871
DERERER Minority interests 9,339 7,293
BrER Total equity 34,498 30,164

R B8 Chen Lang B3 Kwong Man Him
& Director &% Director
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SEBEX
BALANCE SHEET

R=_ZFZNF+=H=+—H At 31 December 2008

—EENE —TEig
2008 2007
BitEE BETET BEEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
kRBEE Non-current assets
BEE&E Fixed assets
— B — Investment properties 17 51 51
—E M - IS AR — Other property, plant and equipment 17 4 5
NGNS 5 Interests in subsidiaries 20 17,408 15,317
17,463 15,373
REBEE Current assets
B 5 R H fth FEURIE Trade and other receivables 25 1,113 1,758
e RBITHET Cash and bank balances 88 1,579
1,201 3,337
nE8E Current liabilities
B 5 R EMERFIE Trade and other payables 27 (89) (125)
FERTFRIR Taxation payable (2 (3)
(90) (128)
REEEFE Net current assets 1,111 3,209
HEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 18,574 18,582
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BEFIESE Deferred taxation liabilities 29 ® ()
18,566 18,574
R R @i Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 31 2,389 2,385
G Reserves 32 16,177 16,189
18,566 18,574
BREA Chen Lang BB Kwong Man Him
EZF Director ZEF Director



mOIRERER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE =TT )\F1+=HA=1—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

—EENE —EE L
2008 2007
BitEE BYEET BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
RETHZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
KRSz ES Cash generated from operations 33A 5,168 5,680
BERBEBNEHR Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (131) (164)
B BNt AT Chinese Mainland income tax paid (585) (457)
EANEINFSE Overseas profits tax paid (2 )
RIEBFBRGEH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 1 =
REA B A ATSH Chinese Mainland income tax refunded 11 3
RETEZHERATE Net cash from operating activities 4,463 5,061
RETBHZ2RERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEREEEEMSHRIE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 626 116
&R ERE B HRIA Proceeds from disposal of available for
sale investments 43 3
B2 R RIIRE Dividends received from associates 166 67
EIE LA ERERE Dividends received from unlisted available
for sale investments 6 4
B UFILE Interest received 216 295
BAREEE Purchase of fixed assets (7,086) (6,142)
ENESES Prepayment for rental deposits (72) (36)
= PN =N Acquisition of associates (185) -
RITIFRERE AR T Bank deposits pledged for short term
Bz iR bank loans 17 (38)
HEMBAR, %55 Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of
HEZReMREEH) cash and cash equivalent disposed of)  33B 5 3,036
SR A R AT kIR Proceeds from disposal of associates 113 16
IWRE B AT, %7 CRk%  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
WEEMBsRE kRS (net of cash and cash equivalents
£E) acquired) 33C - (984)
B BB Receipt of government grant 152 -
KB A R Purchase of additional interests
in subsidiaries (123) (2,400)
ARBRETEHZFRE Net cash used in investing activities (6,122) (6,063)
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meRERE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—EENE —TEig
2008 2007
k3 BYEET BEBEET
Notes HKS million HK$ million
METHZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BEfRE Dividends paid (1,075) (2,401)
SR NS I (ST Dividends paid to minority shareholders
ZRRE of subsidiaries (281) (48)
EARFE Interest paid (571) (4798)
BITEBRAMERIRFRE Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 39 250
BIRTT R EAMBEEME Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
KA 14,311 15,254
ERRITRHAMEE Repayment of bank and other borrowings (12,927) (11,148)
BEMEN K2 BEAREH Capital elements of finance lease rental
payment - (2
DEREFE Contribution from minority shareholders 1,202 772
RETHELEZ2FERS Net cash from financing activities 698 2,200
BHERBESEE Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
GRA),/ & cash equivalents (961) 1,198
MR & Effect on foreign exchange rate changes 136 146
R—A—BzHReEkRE Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
£E 8,400 7,056
Rt+-—A=+—-HZzHE% Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
RREEE 7,575 8,400
ReRBASEELR Analysis of the balances of cash and
2 cash equivalents
e RRITET Cash and bank balances 7,576 8,405
RITBEL Bank overdrafts 6] (5)
7,575 8,400




MORRERZIMNE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HE_FTZTN\F+=H=+—HILF/Z Forthe year ended 31 December 2008

Y
RRER Bis
ARARRESRR Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
EaRH
HERE
Employee
B&  BfEE  GERE shaebased  HWEE  EXRE  REEA
Share Share  Valuation compensation Hedge  Exchange Retained I
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AREET A¥AET AYEET AEREn AMEEn AYBET AERER A%EEn A¥EEn A%EER
HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HKS million  HKS million
RZZENE-A-H  Attjanuary 2008 238 1289 10 172 W 139 6082 2871 7293 30464
ERHE Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - 1,016 - 1,016 4 1,430
EFBENEREE  Share of reserves in associates - - @) = - - @) (50) _ (50)
NESHEH Surplus on revaluation of
properties - - 11 - - - - 1 - 11
BRI ERE Recognition of changes in
ArBEEE fair value of available for
sale investments - - Il - - - - i - Il
BRTEERIA Recognition of changes
MEEZ in fair value of derivative
financial instruments = = - - 7 = = 7) = )
ElRM2ARS,  Netincome and expenses
W58 recognised directly in equity = = 50 = 7) 1,016 () 1,011 414 1,425
RiHEBE A Release due to disposal of
[ fi associates = = = - - ©) . 0) - 0)
RR e &R Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - - - 2322 2322 639 2,961
FERERR Total recognised income and
s gt expenses for the year = = 50 - ) 1007 2274 3324 1053 4377
R Shares issued at premium 4 3 = - - - . % _ 3
WEHBART Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - = - . - - 159 159
HEMBATES  Purchase of additional interest
in subsidiaries - - - - = = = - ®7) (87)
Be s - - - - - - o) bos) @) (3s6)
PHRFEE Contribution from minority
shareholders - - - - - - - - 1,202 1,202
§ % 50 - @) 007 1199 2,288 2006 4334
RZEFENE+ZA At 31 December 2008
=+-H 238 1864 60 172 () 2404 T8 25159 9339 34498
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GERRERBIR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

%
RrEs A
ARARRESRR Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
EaRH
HRERE
Employee
Bx  BAEE  (ERE shaebsed  UWEE EifE  REEA
Share Share  Valuation compensation Hedge  Exchange  Retained S
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

REBET AMEET BYEEn A¥EEn AYEEn AMEEn AMEEn BYEEn A¥EER BKEER
HKS million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million  HK$ million ~ HKS million  HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million

RZZZLE—F—H Attfanuary 2007 2,358 12,606 6 168 (13) 506 3,510 19,141 5,824 24,965
kg Exchange rate adjustments = - - - - 899 - 899 395 1,294
FEEBEARRE  Share of reserves in associates - - 3 - - 2 12 7 - 17
MEEERH Surplus on revaluation of

properties - = 3 - - - _ 3 _ 3
BEATESBIA  Recognition of changes in

N EEE fair value of derivative
financial instruments - - - - 11 - - 11 - 1

BHEBZAESZ  Netincome recognised directly

BAFE in equity - - 6 - 1 901 12 930 3% 1325
REETEREMES Release due to disposal of
available for sale investments - - @) - - - - () = )
R EMBARMEL Release due to disposal of
subsidiaries - - - - () ®) - @) - @)
REEHLDNAMES Release due to disposal of
associates - - - - = 0 = 0) = 0
FRER T Profit attributable to shareholders - - = = - - 4,961 4,961 509 5470

NEFEHAU T8 Total recognised income and

expenses for the year - - 4 - 9 891 4973 5,877 904 6,781
RRERTRGD Shares issued at premium 7 24 - - - = - 21 - 251
BIRNHER Share issue expenses - @) - - - - - (1) - 1)
KEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries = = = = = = = = 275 275
EEMBARIER  Purchase of additional interest

in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - (446) (446)
K& Dividends - - - - - - (2,401) (2,401) 48) (2,449)
PERFTE Contribution from minority

shareholders - = = = = = - - 784 784
EERRERH Employee share option benefits - - = 4 - - _ 4 _ i

27 223 4 4 9 891 2,572 3,730 1469 5199

WZEZLEFZH At 31 December 2007
==Ff 2,385 12,829 10 172 ) 1,397 6,082 2,871 7,293 30,164
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GENERAL

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2008 to be China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

Principal activities

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food
processing and distribution, textile and property investment
businesses. The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and property investment, and the activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 184 to 191.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal
accounting policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Adoption of amendments and interpretations
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has
issued a number of amendments and interpretations on Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or available for
early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January 2008. In
the current year, the Group has adopted the following amendments
and interpretations, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
for the financial year ended 31 December 2008.
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets
(Amendments)
HKFRS Interpretation 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
HKFRS Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
HKFRS Interpretation 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction
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—. —REBEw®m 1. GENERAL (continued)

T BHHEsTR2EB®E) D(@) Adoption of amendments and interpretations (continued)
B T RR B ARER R AN BN E The adoption of the above amendments and interpretations has
BENMERR W EERTE - MAREBARE had no material effects on the Group’s and the Company’s results
EME T HIRAEENE - MBAEL N and financial position and did not result in substantial changes to
FEERE - the Group’s accounting policies. No prior year adjustment has been

made.
T (i) HARERNESTER -~ BITRRE D(ii) Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not

AL ARIRATRAZE CRMAE R ARER

EVFT RAERT M ZER] ~ BRI R R o

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued

but are not yet effective.

B I3RS 4E R HEBPEHREZENZ HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
(1&3T) WE

BEERIZE R 2P BRE HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements
(1&z1)

ST AERIE 2355 BEERA HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs
(1&8&T)

SETAERIE 275 RARBYHHRE HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
(1&z]) Statements

SERFERRE  AERNSRTAENER HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments and
SR E 15 EECER (Amendments) Obligation Arising on Liquidation
CHp

SEER|F 3058 FE BN RIER HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items
(1&&])

BIISREERIE SR RHTBAR - KR HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in
ResX| Y NG 0) (Amendments) a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
275 (1B5]) HEKA Entity or Associate

BIREERIFE 5% UMD RS2 —REE HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Share-based Payment — Vesting
(1&&]) 5 R EUE Conditions and Cancellation

IR ELERIES, EAH HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
(1&8&T)

BIREERIE 5 NEHeRTANESE HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosure about Financial
(1&3T) Instruments

WsmEERIES: EENME HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

MBHmEERRE ANESTEIA HKFRS Interpretation 9 & Embedded Derivatives
FoSt R eFH AR HKAS 39 (Amendments)
£E395% (155])

el BFEEHEE HKFRS Interpretation 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
BEE135

B s R 2= R MIEME RS HKFRS Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of
#EE 1% Real Estate

B # R  E B SN EEFSRIZE 2 b HKFRS Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in
ZEE165 a Foreign Operation

B s 22 R DR ENIER S HKFRS Interpretation 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
RREE175% BE Owners

B iR ZE R KERPZEAEEZE HKFRS Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
ZEF18
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL (continued)

Accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not
yet effective (continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
these standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and
indirect subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests in
associates on the basis set out in note 2C below. The results of
subsidiaries and associates acquired or disposed of during the year
are included from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group
transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or
controls more than half of the voting power, or where the Company
controls the composition of its board of directors or equivalent
governing body. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in associates
are stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the associates plus
goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect the policy on
goodwill in note 2D.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
is tested for impairment at the reporting date and whenever there
is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account and is
not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent disposal of
a subsidiary or an associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001 continues
to be recognised as a deduction from equity and is not recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account when the Group
disposes of all or part of the business to which that goodwill
relates or when a cash generating unit to which the goodwill
relates becomes impaired.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or
after 1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and
such goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and
whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition. Discount on acquisition
of a subsidiary is recognised immediately in the consolidated
profit and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on
an acquisition of an associate is included as income in the
determination of the Groups’ share of results of associate in the
period in which the investment is acquired.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities
The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at

fair value through profit or loss”,

LTS

available-for-sale investments”,

“loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” and financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial
liabilities). Details of classifications and measurements are as
follows:

(a)

(b

FEMAIZEAFMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and have two sub-categories:
financial assets held for trading and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each
balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in
the profit and loss account in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market which are initially measured at fair value.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past experience
of collecting payments, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(©

(d)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are initially recognised in the balance sheet
at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
computed on initial recognition.

Objective evidence of impairment includes default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with the operations of the investment.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through the profit and loss
account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities,
that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be measured reliably.
These available for sale investments are stated at cost
less impairment losses. Apart from this, available for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised
directly in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(d)

(e)

®

(9

FEMAIXAFM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Available for sale investments (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with the operations of the investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods. For those investments carried at fair value, any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such equity
investments is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
F Fixed Assets

(@)

@)

(©

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work has been completed
and which are held for long term rental and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance
sheet at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment
properties are recognised directly in the profit and loss
account in the period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, rent or administrative purposes or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all
construction expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs
capitalised and other relevant expenses directly attributable
to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when available for use.

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and
construction in progress are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 5o years

= Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the

unexpired term of lease,

whichever is shorter
5 to 15 years

10 years

5 to 25 years

3 to 10 years

3 to 8 years

- Vessels

- Cold storage facilities

= Plant and machinery

- Furniture and equipment
- Motor vehicles
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—. FEEHEEX @) 2.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
c EEEEE) F Fixed Assets (continued)
(T) HEZE (d) Leased assets
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()  Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases and are accounted for as
if purchased whereby an amount equivalent to cost
is recorded as fixed assets and as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided in accordance
with the Group’s depreciation policy. Payments to the
lessor are treated as consisting of capital and interest
elements. The interest element is charged to the profit
and loss account.

(i)  Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases
(net of any benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease) is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis

R EES—EEFREREK over the periods of the respective leases except where
AES=MERER - BIfER an alternative basis is more representative of the time
e pattern of the user’s benefit.
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(e)

FEMAIZEAFMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property is
classified as an investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed assets other than
investment properties are impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated and
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment losses
are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
profit and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed Assets (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed
assets is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit and loss account.

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight
line method over their useful lives with amortisation commences
when the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of
other intangible assets with finite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names 10 to 20 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each
balance sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an
impairment loss is charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets
to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to management estimates based
on prevailing market conditions.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case
of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling
price less all further costs of production and the related costs of
marketing, selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at
each balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading
financial assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified
as effective hedging instruments. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.

(a) Fairvalue hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value
of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in
the profit and loss in the periods in which fair value changes
arise.

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting,
the effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the
changes in fair value of hedging instruments is initially
recognised in equity and transferred to the profit and loss
account when the hedged item affects the profit and loss
account. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in
the profit and loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges (continued)
For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are
classified as held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken
directly to the profit and loss account.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the profit and loss account over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business and net of
discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss
account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is amortised to the consolidated
profit and loss account over the guarantee period.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged
to the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and
debt securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the
profit and loss account in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which
case, such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity
and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account in the period which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1
January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation before 1 January
2005 is treated as non-monetary foreign currency items of the
acquirer and reported using the historical cost prevailing at the
date of acquisition.

Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and
other participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for
shares of the Company in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme. The fair value of services received is determined
by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (employee share-
based compensation reserve).

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually
by independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of
the net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2D. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of cash generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have
been determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the
cash-generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the
calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2008, a deferred taxation asset of HK$50
million (2007: HK$28 million) in relation to unused tax losses has
been recognised in the Group’s balance sheet. The recognition of
the deferred taxation asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future assessable profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future assessable
profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of
deferred taxation assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the profit and loss account in the period such a reversal takes
places.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The Company has no material exposure to financial risks as
at 31 December 2008.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk to trade
and other receivables as its customer bases are widely spread
across diverse industries and geographical locations. For its retail
businesses and some transactions in its beverage businesses, sales
of products are made in cash. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that open account customers are financially viable and with
an appropriate credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure,
credit evaluations are performed for the determination and
approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring procedures
are implemented to ensure that follow-up actions are taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, regular reviews on aging and
recoverability are performed to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In respect of bank deposits and transactions involving derivative
financial instruments, the Group has procedures and policies in
place to ensure they are made to counterparties with acceptable
credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company as set
out in note 36, the Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk as at 31 December
2008.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of adequate committed credit facilities to
fund capital, prospective investment opportunities, debt servicing
obligations and dividend payments. Management also closely
monitors the Group’s rolling forecast and actual cash flows and
maturity profiles of financial liabilities.

Other than short term loans, long term loans and derivative
financial instruments, all other financial liabilities of the Group are
non-interest bearing. The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
interest bearing financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay. For derivative instruments settled on a net basis,
undiscounted net cash (inflow) /outflows is presented. Whereas
they require gross settlement, the undiscounted gross (inflow)/
outflow is presented.



8 85 ¥R 5 Bt 51

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. BMREREEEERBEEK @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(continued)
< REE SRR (E) B Liquidity risk (continued)
EEEES: T
BeRnEAE
R—Z R=ZE Total
—FR —FEZH hFEZE BBAEF  contractual ARE{E
Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over undiscounted Carrying
year and 2years  to 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BYEERT A¥EEx AB¥EEx #A¥EEn #A¥EER BY¥EER
HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million  HKS million
—EEN\F 2008
EEFREE Fixed rate borrowings
Hitt B Other loans 130 20 32 - 182 182
SEBHRARMEE  Variable rate borrowings
EFEUE AT Trust receipts and overdrafts 4 - - _ 4 3
RITER Bank loans 5,632 1,645 7,073 3 14,353 13,874
AL Finance lease 2 - _ _ 5 )
5,638 1,645 7,073 3 14,359 13,878
5,768 1,665 7,105 3 14,541 14,060
FTETR- Derivatives - net settlement
RER
=i H Interest rate swaps 16 16 14 - 46 o
—EELE 2007
EER=EE  Fixed rate borrowings
HpER Other loans 17 37 66 31 151 151
FEMRMEE  Variable rate borrowings
EEUMIERES  Trust receipts and overdrafts 29 - = = 29 28
SRITER Bank loans 5,401 899 7,223 4 13,527 12,267
AL Finance lease 2 - _ _ 2 1
5,432 899 7,223 4 13,558 12,296
5,449 936 7,289 35 13,709 12,447
PTETR- Derivatives — net settlement
BEER
il &= Interest rate swaps 4 - - _ 4 4
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from its long
term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at fixed and floating
interest rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk respectively. To cover interest rate
risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/
floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To avoid undue
concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
mitigate current and future corporate profitability from interest rate
volatility.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate
liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the
whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2008 would decrease/increase by HK$128
million (2007: decrease/increase by HK$122 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of
the future profits or losses.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Approximately 5.29% (2007: 6.26%) of the Group’s sales are
demoninated in currencies other than the functional currency of
the group entity making the sale, whilst approximately 95% (2007:
97%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s respective
functional currencies.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

—EEN\F —TTF
2008 2007

EE af& BE afE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BERET BERET T EET BEBHETT
HKS million HKS million HK$ million HK$ million
216 55 165 34
863 971 1,513 1,670
89 157 74 156

TRFMLEERAREA R Es%HAEH

FE EMBEXGIET  BITHETH
ER¥%EH¢7I\@EEKE7JF§‘% F BifRAE
TEHBUREDT - FEFREDTERIEN
SMEFHEMERIAR - FERRRHEES - A
[RBRIMNEFE K 5% BB - FE T RP  IER
RREDNEEE L BBINETES% » & F
REAER K EIE - BINEEE M LA

B B2 B5% + ¥m H R H A 1§ E A RS
BARMFZE
AR Renminbi

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
or decrease in the Hong Kong dollars against the Renminbi. Under
the linked exchange rate system, the financial impact on exchange
difference between Hong Kong dollar and US dollar will be
immaterial and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the
functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% weakening of the functional currency against
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity.

HBBBT(FR)NEE HEREMARIS N E
Effect on profit/(loss) Effect on other components

after tax of equity
—EENF —ETLF —EENE ZEELF
2008 2007 2008 2007
BEEEBT BERETT BERET BERET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
(19) (28) = -

Wb AT ToIR IR KL R RR B M AETT
REBRBERT  mEERTSEENE - &
BERRUDTRABIESLE - TRERER
Ao M SETHE AR o

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on a
hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates would not
change in isolation. In management’s opinion, the analysis is used
for reference purpose and should not be considered a projection of
the future profits or losses.
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EXRRARER
AEFBTEAEEMNEN  EERREE
NEREFELE  FRNBBESEESS
BB BREFEEENER o AEEE
BESRR AR —FE W ER o

AEBENE RSB ERER(BEN 280
KENEE) ReMRESFEY  KAAF
RaRBEARIGERDS(BREEEZEHR
PIRBERME TR - FiERREEN)

AEEEEEERERELEE - AKEE
BERKAREBEANERBRER @ ALBiB
SIS - BITHAR - LEERSRITEED
BERAEHS IR - HERBEAEBED
i e

EXRBERIEER

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 28, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained profits as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the raise of bank borrowings or the redemption
of existing debt.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

—EBEN\F ZTTHF
2008 2007
BEEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
EERELARAREKE AT Turnover represents sales
AIREFZHE | BERAE by the Company and its
T5ER ZWA : subsidiaries to outside
customers and comprises
revenue from:
HEEm Sales of goods 61,323 59,431
TR ARG K B A U A Rendering of services and others 2,884 2,324
M A Rental income 402 367
HEw Sales of properties 19 1
64,628 62,123
BRILEE XK Discontinued operation - (10,610)

64,628 51,513




X BEERSEER
TERBPRE—REKE D

HE-ZEZ\F For the year ended
+=A=t+-H 31 December 2008
LEE

EXE TURNOVER
HMEE External sales
Erif Inter-segment sales*
At Total

PEEE Segment result

REDER Unallocated corporate
AEH expenses

FBIA Interest income

BT HSPLAR Finance costs

BB AR Share of net results of
ESEVE associates

PR Taxation

KEERA Profit for the year
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments
BRI
Rz HiESE
Food RER £
Processing REWE HitnH% Continuing
2£ B and T Investment  Investments Y Operations
Retail Beverage Distribution Textile Property and Others Elimination Total
B¥EEr A%EErT A%EEnT  B%EEn  A%EEr A¥AEn  B¥EER  BBEER
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
34,578 17,352 7,468 4,829 401 - - 64,628
73 53 177 - 33 - (336) -
34,651 17,405 7,645 4,829 434 - (336) 64,628
1,114 1,317 433 194 847 - 3,905
(98)
212
(595)
- - 32 () - 337 367
(830)
2,961
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N EXRERIEEM®
FTERRRE—ERBE D (@)

R-BENE
+=A=t-AH
BE
/\*Eﬁ%

B SRR
ERREAE
Tﬁ@ﬁﬁ
REFEND

BE

GREENRE
&
NBAR
FEfHIR
BRLHRRE

K

o=

[
=

g
AaE

B3
el

ST

FRREAE

A&
CUNEET
TEREH

PR R EE

2E
Retail
BEEET
HK$ million

As at 31 December 2008

ASSETS
Segment assets 19,370
Interests in associates =
Deferred taxation assets
Taxation recoverable
Unallocated corporate
assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Taxation payable
Deferred taxation
liabilities
Unallocated corporate
liabilities

10,099

Consolidated total
liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and

amortisation 819
Impairment loss
recognised 4

2,237

6.

AT
Beverage
BERET
HK$ million

27,867

13,756

4,041

823

228

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

BRI
R
Food
Processing
and
Distribution

BBEET
HK$ million

5,796
435

1177

572

158

REME

it 4 Investment
Textile Property
A¥EET  BEEER
HK$ million HK$ million
6,261 7,926

41 -

2,472 333
381 =

248 14

34 -

RER
Hitn %
Investments
and Others
BEEET
HK$ million

L477

REREZ

£

Continuing

Hes Operations
Elimination Total
BEEET  BBEER
HK$ million HK$ million

67,220
1,953

164

75
445
69,857
27,841
433

1,338

5747

35,359

7,232

2,064

267




HECZBtE
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AHREE
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eikeyiagl
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LN
RAER

i

REERA

N EXRERIEEM®
FTERRRE—ERBE D (@)

For the year ended
31 December 2007

TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales*

Total

Segment result

Unallocated corporate
expenses

Interest income

Profit on disposal of
discontinued operation

Finance costs

Share of net results
of associates

Taxation

Profit for the year
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)
BHRAEH
EmiSH
(BRLEE
ZEB)
BRNT Petroleum
R BELE  and Related
Food RER £%A5  Products
Processing RENE  Hp¥K Continuing  Distribution
ZE B and 8  Investment Investments $8  Operations (Discontinued At
Retail ~ Beverage Distribution Textile Property  and Others  Elimination Total  Operation) Total
BEEET AEEET BYEEn ANEST A¥EEr A%ESn A%EEr B%EEn ANEET B%EER
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million
25,943 13,279 7,232 4,713 346 - - 51,513 10,610 62,123
65 25 149 - 29 - (268) - - -
26,008 13,304 7,381 4713 375 = (268) 51513 10610 62,123
937 884 682 265 830 () 3,595 251 3846
(94) = (94)
278 13 291
- 2,399 2,399
(480) @)  (603)
- - 9 (¥ - 345 353 - 353
(764) (58)  (822)
2,888 2,582 5,470
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N EXRERIEEM® 6.
FTERFRE—ERBE D (@)

E B
Retail  Beverage
AEEET AYAST
HK$ million  HK$ million

RZBBLE As at 31 December 2007
+=A=1+-H
BE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 15,797 23,272
REEAT 2% Interests in associates -
EERBEE Deferred taxation assets
AREHE Taxation recoverable
REDER Unallocated corporate
RREE assets
GRREERE Consolidated total assets
8% LIABILITIES
HEAE Segment liabilities 7,593 12,409
FERIHE Taxation payable
BEFIARR Deferred taxation liabilities
REHBE Unallocated corporate
ARBfE liabilities
SREEAE Consolidated total liabilities
Hir &R OTHER INFORMATION
BARY Capital expenditure 2,129 6,234
FEREH Depreciation and

amortisation 599 630

Pt R E R Impairment loss

*

recognised 7 55

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

REMI
REH
Food
Processing
and
Distribution
BEEET
HK$ million

5,126
190

1,209

RER

RENE  EftER

&  Investment Investments
Textile Property  and Others
AEEET A¥EET A%EER
HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million

5,640 7,406 1
40 - 1,217
2,058 377 4
746 277 2
197 6 2

3 = 6

BHRAEH

EmiSH

(BRIEE

ZEB)

Petroleum

BESE 7 and Related
£%4%  Products
Continuing  Distribution

$8  Operations (Discontinued At
Elimination Total  Operation) Total
AEBET A¥AEnT BYAET AKBEER
HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million
57,242 - 57,242

L447 - Lad4r

119 - 119

20 - 20

1,363 - 1,863

60,691 = 60,691

23,650 - 23,650

268 = 268

1,243 - 1,243

5:366 - 5v366

30,527 - 30,527

9,930 2 9,932

1,584 26 1,610

71 - 7

EBRHE IRERNTSERRE

*

Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates
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N BEERIEES® 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
RERBHRE—RBESE S Secondary reporting format — geographical segments
HR B A 3 HiE =R
BB Chinese Other &5t
Hong Kong Mainland Countries Total
BEEET BEEET BEEET BEBEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BIE—ZZTN\F Turnover for the year ended
+ZA=+—HL 31 December 2008
FENEXS 6,352 55,162 3,114 64,628
R-ZEZENF As at 31 December 2008
t=A=t-8
DEEE Segment assets 12,248 53,845 1,127 67,220
NBEDEEE Additions to segment assets 69 7,051 112 7,232
BIE—ZEZ+HF Turnover for the year ended
+=A=+—H1L 31 December 2007
FENEXERE 17,331 41,434 3,358 62,123
R=ZZLF As at 31 December 2007
+=H=+—H
NIEE Segment assets 12,082 43,966 1,194 57,242
NBEDFEEE Additions to segment assets 127 9,717 88 9,932
+. HflA 7.  OTHER INCOME
—E2ENEF T F
2008 2007
BYEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
Hitt A BIET5EE : Other income includes the
following:
BERE 2K Continuing operations
KREFLEMAIERE Dividends from unlisted
HIAR B available for sale investments 6 3
FEBA Interest income 212 278
KEMESHAR Valuation gain on investment
properties 483 567
PTEEMTIAZ Fair value gain on derivative
AR BERR financial instruments - 98
B A B 2 FTS s A Profit on disposal of associates 95 78
HEEE & EMS R Profit on disposal of fixed assets 217 -
B HER IR AT B Government grants recognised 3 -
ERIERE K Discontinued operation
REFLEMAIERE Dividends from unlisted
HIR B available for sale investments - 1
BN Interest income - 13
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N, B

FINANCE COSTS

—®BN\F  —ETtHF
2008 2007
BERET S EET
HKS million HK$ million
BELSE ¥k Continuing operations
’Ejﬁ"ﬁiﬁ\? EHEEZ Interests on bank loans and
RITER R M EFF S other loans wholly repayable
within five years 624 469
/EE"ﬁEWéF%(E £ v Interests on bank loans not
BEHFE wholly repayable within
five years 1 -
BMEZH Financing charges 31 11
656 480
W EEREEKRAEAZ Less: Amount capitalised in cost
B & A FRIE* of qualifying assets* (61) =
595 480
BRILEE 2% Discontinued operation
ERAFABEERE 2 Interests on bank loans and
IRITER R EAth other loans wholly repayable
/TAZL'J within five years - 18
rﬁﬂéﬁﬁ Financing charges = 5
595 503
3 HAFERESAEREEZ —REEF@EZHY S Finance costs relating to the general borrowings used for obtaining the

R AEIE3.16%27.39% 2 & FERETE
& o

qualifying assets have been capitalised at various rates ranging from 3.16%

to 7.39% per annum.
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

e
2008 2007
BERET BEEETT
HKS million HK$ million
AEEBRE MR THIEE ! Profit for the year has been
arrived at after charging:
BERE %K Continuing operations
1Z AN B & Auditors’ remuneration 26 21
BINRA(BIE Staff costs (including
EEWS) directors’ emoluments) 6,019 4,481
e Depreciation
—BEEE — Owned assets 2,049 1,574
—ZRERLNEE — Assets held under
K& E finance leases 1 1
B E & E 2 B R Impairment loss recognised
EERE(RREE on fixed assets (included
—RRITBERAN) in general and administrative
expenses) 83 20
FEZEERRE Impairment loss recognised
ER(BEE—R on stocks (included in
RITBERNA) general and administrative
expenses) 181 58
EAth R & Y Amortisation of other
(BREE—MRK intangible assets (included
TRERNA) in general and administrative
expenses) 14 9
THREF EE Operating leases charges on
HHER* land and buildings* 1,847 1,459
BEEEmMKAR Cost of goods sold 48,317 38,618
HEREEEEMSER Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 29
DRI 2T Discontinued operation
BIA(BIE Staff costs (including
BEFMHE) directors’ emoluments) = 63
e Depreciation
—BEEE — Owned assets = 22
—ZRERNFED — Assets held under
BE finance leases = 4
THRIEF B Operating leases charges
HOER on land and buildings - 19
BEEmKA Cost of goods sold - 10,108
WEFA : And after crediting:
BERE %K Continuing operations
He K AERHE Gross rental income 402 366
B BRI Less: Related out-goings (28) (33)
M WA FEE Net rental income 374 333
CRIERE ¥R Discontinued operation
HEWAERE Gross rental income - 1
W AR Less: Related out-goings = =
HS WA FEE Net rental income - 1
& BREIABREBEE 28088 L (=TT LF : & Including contingent rent of HK$280 million (2007: HK$231 million).

%231 H &) ©
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+. EEME 10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

—E2EN\F T F

2008 2007

BYEEBT B EET

HKS million HK$ million

we Fees 1.77 1.84

BERF e MR Basic salaries and allowances 11.85 12.89

NIRRT Provident fund contributions 0.86 1.09

EASAEAL Bonus paid 5.97 5.67

20.45 21.49

VARRAD T2 AR Share-based payment - -

e Hit<
Fees Other Emoluments
HEXHe

)59= 1N —TTHEF

Basic Provident &&t

Salaries and Fund B4 &t 2007

“BENE 2008 Allowances Contributions  Bonus paid: Total Total

BEagEr A%agr A%egar A¥aEr A¥BEET AEAER

EENE Name of director HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million

R Song Lin 0.08 1.95 0.26 1.18 3.47 3.22

PR 151 AR Chen Shulin 0.08 1.85 0.11 1.18 3.22 2.94

TE Wang Qun 0.08 1.55 0.06 2.02 3.71 3.13

ZIB R Lau Pak Shing 0.08 2.99 0.33 0.94 4.34 4.17

[ Kwong Man Him 0.08 2.78 0.07 0.65 3.58 3.22

pEdy Jiang Wei 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08

TahzE Wang Shuaiting 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08

=)t Yan Biao 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.08

HXR Du Wenmin 0.08 - - - 0.08 0.03

=1EE Li Fuzuo 0.07 - - = 0.07 -

PR L 25 Chan Po Fun, Peter 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16

EAE Houang Tai Ninh 0.16 - - = 0.16 0.16

R Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16

B Cheng Mo Chi 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16

RS B Benard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16

BT Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16

EZ=0/N Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 0.01 0.73 0.03 = 0.77 3.45

SR Qiao Shibo 0.01 - - - 0.01 0.08

HEE Xie Shengxi - - - - - 0.05

aar Total 1.77 11.85 0.86 5.97 20.45 -

ZETHF 2007 1.84 12.89 1.09 5.67 - 21.49
a AN EMFEZLEHERE  BERIALTT a The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating results,
ERIR R AATISHA B TETE - individual performance and comparable market statistics during both

years.
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t-AuESHES 11.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

FRNAN =T EEBRELOV(ZEE £ ¢ The five highest paid employees during the year included four
i) EE - FEEHEHN EXHzET - £ (2007: four) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out
—(ZZTTEF () EaFEEMEX in note 10 above. The details of the remunerations paid to the
HZzMEeFBIT other one (2007: one) highest paid employees are as follows:

—EENF —ETLF

2008 2007

BEHET BEEET

HKS million HK$ million
BEAR e K2R Basic salaries and allowances 1.67 1.45
NERHK Provident fund contributions - -
BEFIEAL Bonus paid 3.12 3.66
LARR 9 FE A 3R Share-based payment = =

479 5.11
W (ZETLF : —(DEaHFMNTTT The emoluments of this one (2007: one) highest paid individuals
e were within the following band:
A8
No. of person

—EENF —EELF
BT HK$ 2008 2007
4,500,001 — 5,000,000 4,500,001 — 5,000,000 1 -
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 5,000,001 — 5,500,000 - 1
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T RBEAESE 12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND
B AE A  Hong Kong
AREFREZEREELEBEELRME Y F5E The Group operates various defined contribution retirement
HFRRGETE] - ZE5FHEIC EEHEASEE schemes which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The
ENHER UTHBUYEEZESHER o #ft assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
REDNREBEEEEAFEZEEA ML Group in an independently administered fund. The amount of
g MRS TEEZE 2 EANIURE A contributions is based on a specified percentage of the basic
FADABE A SR B 2 R o salary of employees and any forfeited contributions in respect of
unvested benefits of staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s
contributions.
—EENF —ETHF
2008 2007
BYEET BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
AEFHBENES 2 H Group contributions to staff
provident fund 31 33
BB A 2RIt Forfeited contributions utilised - =
BiraEmERIR 2K Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 31 33
iw AR B A 2 DR WA K Un-utilised forfeited contributions - =
Z FERi B  Chinese Mainland

AEBEHEABREE BN AE Eit
77 BT A 1) B R B TR AR R AR AU ET Bl O A
8 - AREARZEXMETEREAD
IR - (ERRAE R - AEBELER

M —BEER M EHRR -

A bt ay e B iR m@m&z AE%
PR AR AL ESEs36 A BT (=T
THF B33 BB °

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to these schemes is to make the specified
contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese
Mainland amounted to approximately HK$536 million (2007:
HK$334 million).
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T=8E 13. TAXATION
—sENE —TEig
2008 2007
BYEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BELSE ¥k Continuing operations
AEEHIE Current taxation
S Hong Kong 93 145
HR B A Chinese Mainland 687 505
gl Overseas 5 =
785 650
BB A Deferred taxation
BB Hong Kong
—ARFE — Current year 94 97
—TREREE — Change in tax rate (59) =
Fh B A3 Chinese Mainland 10 17
830 764
ERIERE XK Discontinued operation
REEBIE Current taxation
B Hong Kong - 58
LN Overseas - 2
= 60
B IA Deferred taxation
B Hong Kong - )
— 58
830 822

BRENERIRIBAFE 2 BT ERTURE M
B E16.5%( —FTLF : 17.5%)5E -

PR B R R Z SR IRIEEA BN
BOEGIR AR ERDUG N B - RIBHEA
RAMB(THEARKME ) EEREHE
(THFER D MFERNERGES - B =F
ENE—HA—HE  RPEARLME RO
BRAAMEMBEEE TERERFEER
25% ° BIIMRIRIRE RUEME R 2 BAH R

it
= o
=5F

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based on the
estimated assessable profits in accordance with the relevant tax
laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the Chinese Mainland. The
Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “New Law”) and Implementation Regulations of
the New Law has changed the tax rate of those PRC subsidiaries
to 25% from 1 January 2008 with certain transitional arrangement.
Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.
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TAXATION (continued)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits

+=FEw 13.
AREEFBERHADG R 2 FIAB DI EREER
ARBFEMHERTE 2 Bmi s - B

146

e Tax rate as follows:
—EEN\EF ZETLF
2008 2007
BETER BERET
HKS million HK$ million
SRR A B IEREN Profit before taxation (excluding
BN A2 EEFRR) share of net results of associates) 3,424 5,939
B E16.5% (ZZZTLF : 17.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate
SHE A of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) 565 1,039
HA R AE SRR Effect of different taxation rates
TREREZ Z2 in other jurisdictions 186 95
AR WA Income not subject to taxation (147) (461)
LIE | ds-gus] Expenses not deductible for
taxation purposes 133 174
FERAFAIARBHERZTHIE Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (54) (53)
HEREg o w8 Effect of change in tax rate (59) =
REMER 2 BIIE Tax loss not recognised 276 233
EFE (%) DEBEZBE (Overprovision)/underprovision
on taxation in previous year (34) 25
g VNIRRT =) Income earning companies
exempted from taxation (note) (107) (230)
R BLFE 2 FEIFTEH Withholding tax on undistributed
profits 71 -
HIBZ Taxation charge 830 822

et : AEERBOETEABEENHB AR E
ETHRBHERARBESR  UNEBEEE
ERH R BEAMAEH

Note: Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the Chinese Mainland are
eligible for certain tax holidays or concessions and were exempted from
Chinese Mainland income taxes for the year.
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TH.RE 14. DIVIDENDS
—EEN\F  —TTt4F
2008 2007
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
FATEERE AR A EFE Additional final dividend paid for
REINRZE R R B B the previous year as a result of
exercise of share options - 1
ZEF)N\FHEIREFHRE 2008 interim dividend paid of
BT E BB 01570 HK$o0.15 (2007: HK$0.15) per
(ZZZTLF : B¥o.as57T) ordinary share 359 357
—ETLFHEIREP R 2007 special interim dividend paid
&% 8 AR EBAR B ¥ 0.607T of HK$0.60 per ordinary share - 1,427
ZET N\FHEIRERRE 2008 proposed final dividend
R MR EE 0.257T of HK$0.25 (2007: HK$0.30) per
(Z2ZTLF : B¥o.307T) ordinary share 597 716
956 2,501
EARBRZZEZENF=A=+—HETH At the meeting held on 31 March 2009, the directors proposed
o %%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬁ%%%@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ% final dividend of HK$0.25 (2007: HK$0.30) per ordinary share.
0.25TC(ZZF T L4 : #F¥o.307T) © FURAR This proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s
BINRAR ﬂE@%TTi%QQE EHMER number of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting,
RS E - 2SR EWER T EHRE NE is not recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The
RAEBE - AFEMBREMREAR TR total dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend
NHRBBEE SR T LFEMNRAR for the year 2007, amounting to HK$1,075 million (2007: HK$2,401
B e EE Lo AB (2T HF million) are reflected in the current year financial statements.
B 101AETT) °

EHEAIEA/MAT China Resources Enterprise, Limited ~ Annual Report 2008 3 147



148

B 955 ¥R 5 B 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THERIEEE XK 15.

RIZBZLFRNAR ARRETRHER
AHMAREREHERB TELFE=F -

BE_ZTTLFT_A=TRALFEZR
AR i’%ﬁﬁ%zeiﬁi”‘%f%ﬂ‘%ﬁ’ﬂﬁé/%ﬁm?-

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Company completed the disposal of its petroleum and related
products distribution business at the end of June 2007 to an

independent third party.

The results of the discontinued operation included in the
consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended 31

December 2007 are set out below:

EEBEETT
HK$ million

ERIEREER Profit for the year of 2007 from

R-BZELFZHER discontinued operation
Weas Revenue 10,750
T Expenses (10,509)
B A AT A Profit before taxation 241
B Taxation (58)
PRt s A Profit after taxation 183
HEBRIMHEEER Profit on disposal of discontinued

ZFSE N operation 2,399
REZ R D B AR T Profit for the year attributable to

e shareholders of the Company 2,582
HE BRI E RS Net assets of discontinued

ZEEFRE operation disposed of 1,600
CRLREEEBCRERE Cash flows from discontinued operation
KETRES 2 IR MA TR Net cash from operating activities 67
KEEB 2R SR FE Net cash from investing activities 13
MBEE 2R ERMAFERE Net cash from financing activities 64
EIBEhE Net cash flows 144

ERIMCEEBREEE A EERBER
EEERHE=1T=C#EE -

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the
discontinued operation at the date of disposal are disclosed in

note 33B.
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TREBREFR 16. EARNINGS PER SHARE
—BENE —TEig
2008 2007
BYEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BESERDRILEE For continuing and discontinued
ZHEKE operations
BREAR R EER T The calculation of the basic and
TIRIE N HIEBRAE diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:
B Earnings
AU EERER Profit attributable to shareholders
RESERNEARAF] of the Company for the purpose
& SR (b T of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 2,322 4,961
—BEN\F —EELF
2008 2007
[EviE 2 ¢E] Number of shares
RUGTEGIREARZF] Weighted average number of
B AR I a2 ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 2,387,587,624 2,374,697,717
HEBREK 2 BT Effect of dilutive potential
7 ordinary shares:
—RERR - Share options 10,289,705 20,615,831
AU ESREERT Weighted average number of
B AR N 1 50 ordinary shares for the

purpose of calculating diluted

earnings per share 2,397,877,329

2,395,313,548

FEMAIXAFM AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited
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TREREBER @ 16. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
—sENE —EEiE
2008 2007
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
HERE ¥R For continuing operations
BRERREERF The calculation of the basic and
TR Y BRETE diluted earnings per share is
based on the following data:
BF| Earnings
RAUEESRER Profit attributable to shareholders
RESERFHNARAE] of the Company for the purpose
& 3R FE (ks T of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 2,322 4,961
Ve Less:
RSl S /N Profit attributable to shareholders
& 3R FE (v T of the Company from
discontinued operation - (2,582)
AU ESRER Profit attributable to shareholders
RESERRMRHELE of the Company for the purpose
¥ 2 ANA TR IEN of calculating basic and diluted
el earnings per share from
continuing operations 2,322 2,379

BRERBN N ENEERN ARG ERE
SRt ) — 2K

ERIEEE XK
HE_ZZHE+_A=+—BILHH B
BERILEEZ FBREEN AR BRRE
RN 78 % 2,582 8 & T N EXFTE A
BREABN R EREIRNESE
RIS 2 XN BRER RN L SREE
B DR BB K109t R EREH1.08
o

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted earnings per share.

For discontinued operation

For the year ended 31 December 2007, basic earnings per share
and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued operation are
HK$1.09 per share and HK$1.08 per share respectively, based on
the profit attributable to shareholders of the Company from the
discontinued operation of HK$2,582 million and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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Tt EE&EE 17. FIXED ASSETS
Hipys - BERZE
Other property, plant and equipment
®EBA
R Y
Tith RS
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own BREF
REY% use under Buildings HtiEEEE
Investment operating held for  Other fixed Vet =
properties leases own use assets Sub-total Total
BEFErT BEEEr BtEEx A%asr A¥EEr ABEEL
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million
REH The Group
P B Cost or valuation
RZZELF At 1 January 2007
—H—8 5,899 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 31,326
BE N ER Exchange difference 57 106 454 1,100 1,554 1,717
WEEHB AR, Relating to acquisition of
EBEEA subsidiaries/business - 363 322 628 950 1,313
HEKBAR, Relating to disposal of
Eis it subsidiaries/business (28) (208) (154) (597) (751) (987)
B Additions 288 166 439 5,262 5,701 6,155
HE Disposals (16) @) 47) (580) (627) (650)
ENHE Reclassifications 532 88 1,047 (1,691) 644) (24)
EhRE Adjustment on valuation 567 - 3 - 3 570
RZTZ+F At 31 December 2007
+-A=+—H and 1 January 2008
k=TT N\F
—H—H 7,299 2,828 8,727 20,566 29,293 39,420
i 5 =5 Exchange difference 65 132 537 1,275 1,812 2,009
B AT, Relating to acquisition of
EREEA subsidiaries/business - 21 77 9 86 107
HENBAR, Relating to disposal of
E Sl subsidiaries/business - - @) 3) (10) (10)
NE Additions - 652 338 6,096 6,434 7,086
HeE Disposals (15) (59) (298) (1,061) (1,359) (1,425)
EFNE Reclassifications (179) 733 1,181 (1,780) (599) (45)
SEFER Adjustment on valuation 483 - 11 - 11 494
RZZEENF At 31 December 2008
+=-A=+—-~H 7,653 4,315 10,566 25,102 35,668 47,636
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Tt BEEE® 17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)
Hitt% - BEERFE
Other property, plant and equipment
KEER
O=E iR
TR
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own BRgF
BBy E use under Buildings HthEEEE
Investment operating held for  Other fixed et =
properties leases own use assets Sub-total Total
BERET BEBEERT BYeEx A%eEx B%EERT BRAEERT
HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million
RETENRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RIETTLF At 1 January 2007
—H—B - 370 1,317 6,599 7,916 8,286
EHER Exchange difference - 13 107 492 599 612
HEKBAR,/ Relating to disposal of
£ subsidiaries/business = (92) (47) (330) (377) (469)
REEHE Charge for the year - 53 271 1,277 1,548 1,601
HERE Written back on disposals - ©)] (30) (450) (480) (482)
BRRZRERE Impairment loss recognised - - 1 19 20 20
EX iy Reclassifications - (2 ®3) (19) (22) (24)
R_TT+EF At 31 December 2007
+-A=1+—H and 1 January 2008
kRZTZEN\F
—H—H - 340 1,616 7,588 9,204 9,544
BE R A Exchange difference - 17 115 512 627 644
HEKBAR,/ Relating to disposal of
E3 Sy subsidiaries/business - - ©) (2 ® ®
REEHE Charge for the year - 79 332 1,639 1,971 2,050
HERD Written back on disposals - (19) (182) (784) (966) (985)
BHERAZRESR Impairment loss recognised - - 22 61 83 83
oyl Reclassifications - 115 (136) (24) (160) (45)
NZEENGF At 31 December 2008
+-A=1+—H = 532 1,761 8,990 10,751 11,283
REFE Net book values
R-ZEENF At 31 December 2008
+-A=+—H 7,653 3,783 8,805 16,112 24,917 36,353
NZETLF At 31 December 2007
+-A=+—H 7,299 2,488 7,111 12,978 20,089 29,876
BT H A AFIBR 2 B : Representing assets stated:
1REAN At cost - 4,315 10,566 25,102 35,668 39,983
BT \FEE At 2008 professional
(EIE] valuation 7,653 - - - - 7,653
7,653 4,315 10,566 25,102 35,668 47,636
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17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

Hips - BBERRE
Other property, plant and equipment
REWF HthEE
Investment P Other Nt =
properties Buildings assets Sub-total Total

BEEET BAEEEr BKaEr SA¥EET AYEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

b /N The Company
BANSR (A {E Cost or valuation
RZZTTLF At 1 January 2007 51 2 20 22 73
—A—H
NE Additions - - 2 2 2
&= Disposals - - @) @ @
RZZEZTLF At 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—H and 1 January 2008
NZZTTNF
—HA—H 51 2 21 23 74
NE Additions - - 1 1 1
MN-EE)N\F At 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—H 51 2 22 24 75
ZEHTE RRIE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZTELF At 1 January 2007
—H—H - - 17 17 17
REEHE Charge for the year = 1 1 2 2
HE#E Written back on disposals - - ) @ €
R LF At 31 December 2007
+=-—A=+—H and 1 January 2008
MZTTNF
—H—H - 1 17 18 18
REEFE Charge for the year = - 2 > 5
RZEZEN\F At 31 December 2008
+=-—A=+—8 - 1 19 20 20
BREFE Net book values
RZZZTNF At 31 December 2008
+=ZA=+—8 51 1 3 4 55
RZTEZTHF At 31 December 2007
+=-—B=+—8 51 1 4 5 56
BT 5|5 58R 2 EE - Representing assets stated:
IR A At cost - 2 22 24 24
BT N\FEX At 2008 professional
(1 valuation 51 S - - 51
51 2 22 24 75
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Tt.BEEEE@® 17.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
—BENE —TEig
2008 2007
BYEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
YR 2 BREE B Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:
NEH The Group
&g Hong Kong
RERBRNFE 2 Properties held on long lease 4,758 4,060
RAHRNEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 2,921 3,063
PERt Chinese Mainland
BREREBZNOFE 2 Properties held on long lease 3,946 2,970
RARERANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 8,518 6,696
RIEHRABEZME Properties held on short lease 61 64
B Overseas
RARERANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 14 15
REHRANHEE 2 W% Properties held on short lease 23 30
20,241 16,898
b /N The Company
B Hong Kong
RAHRANEE 2 Properties held on
medium-term lease 51 51
BRIt Chinese Mainland
BRPEBRABEZME Properties held on
medium-term lease 1 1
52 52

B —ZEN\F+ZA=+—BZEEDY
XOHBUEXGEMBERITAER
RAWEHIEE - HET2RFABYE
BEHEINRZMEMETE °

 BEHEARABE21BET(ZZZE+
F BB noBB L) CEEEERHE
FREABB 24 BB T2 RPER (=
TETHF By mBE) 2IE

o
A °

A The investment properties have been valued at 31 December
2008 by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent
professional valuer. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties.

B Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$221 million (2007:
HK$210 million) are pledged for short term loans in the sum
of HK$244 million (2007: HK$249 million).
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A RAFEE  BESBEZZREEMD)| C During the year, impairment loss was made to those plant
HEMZERMN—LEEE  ERE and equipments suffered damages from Sichuan earthquake
HOME 2SN 3R A - or with low utilising value and efficiency.
T HuBETEETESREEEIR  # D Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in progress,
BRME  HEWEEE MM LR plant and machinery, leasehold improvements, vessels,
B RIAREREBRAE o cold storage facilities, furniture and equipment and motor
vehicles.
ERIRE BERE HEMFEEE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hith &t
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
AtaEr A%asr A%aEn  A%EEr  AKEERD
HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
rEE The Group
B AN (A 1E Cost or valuation
R=ZZZtF—H—H At1anuary 2007 868 10,189 1,982 3,405 16,444
b o, =58 Exchange difference 79 815 124 82 1,100
g1 =PN=Tp Relating to acquisition of
EFLISTEPN subsidiaries/business 157 424 - 47 628
HEWB AT, Relating to disposal of
Eg i subsidiaries/business - (75) (35) (487) (597)
NE Additions 4,321 360 367 214 5,262
HE Disposals = (337) (142) (101) (580)
R Reclassifications (2,886) 1,725 9 (539) (1,691)
R +HF At 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—H and 1 January 2008
RZFT)N\F
—H—H 2,539 13,101 2,305 2,621 20,566
E X =58 Exchange difference 157 901 134 83 1,275
WEEKIB AR Relating to acquisition of
EISTEUN subsidiaries/business 1 5 = 3 9
LERBAR, Relating to disposal of
EREH subsidiaries/business - B) - - Q)
INE Additions 4,953 340 427 376 6,096
He Disposals - (8o7) (88) (166) (1,061)
=Rk e Reclassifications (4,783) 2,895 50 58 (1,780)
RZZE)\F At 31 December 2008
+=A=+—H 2,867 16,432 2,828 2,975 25,102
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+E.EEEE @)

17. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

ERIR WERE HEMEEE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Hith &t
in progress machinery improvements Others Total
AkEEr AkaEr A%egn B¥esExn  A%EER
HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million
ZEHTERRE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
RZZFZtF—H—H At1anuary 2007 - 4,139 910 1,550 6,599
bE W =58 Exchange difference - 381 61 50 492
HERBAR, Relating to disposal of
Eyi i subsidiaries/business - 62) (32) (236) (330)
NEEHE Charge for the year - 766 277 234 1,277
&S o] Written back on disposals — (250) (112) (88) (450)
BERERZBEEE Impairment loss recognised - 16 - 3 19
E ik | Reclassifications - 63 (26) (56) (19)
R+ HF At 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—H and 1 January 2008
MZTENF
—A—H - 5,053 1,078 1,457 7,588
Ve 5, =%8 Exchange difference - 403 69 40 512
HEMBAR, Relating to disposal of
EEEH subsidiaries/business - @ - - @)
REEHE Charge for the year - 987 346 306 1,639
& B Written back on disposals - (579) 67) (138) (784)
B R 2 RIEEE Impairment loss recognised - 56 - 5 61
EFOLE Reclassifications - (22) - @) (24)
RZZE)\F At 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—A” - 5,896 1,426 1,668 8,990
BREFE Net book values
RZEZEN\F At 31 December 2008
+=—A=+—8~ 2,867 10,536 1,402 1,307 16,112
RZZZTLF At 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—H 2,539 8,048 1,227 1,164 12,978
B3I 5R5IBE 2 & - Representing assets stated:
B2 d DN At cost 2,867 16,432 2,828 2,975 25,102
BT\ FHE At 2008 professional
fhE valuation = - - _ _
2,867 16,432 2,828 2,975 25,102
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aWAN:E S 18. GOODWILL
BEEET
HK$ million
rEE The Group
PR ANME Cost
R_ET+LF—H—H At 1 January 2007 3,481
M H ZERR Exchange difference 203
Ur BT BN T, R Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 498
BRI B A RR A E R Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 1,955
R-ZE+F+_A=1+—HBK At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
“TEN\F—A—H 6,137
ME N HR Exchange difference 213
G =N 3 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 3
BB A AR AR Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 36
R-ZZEN\F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 6,389
ZEHREEE Accumulated impairment losses
R-ZEZ+F—-H—H At 1 January 2007 =
RERFERR Charge for the year 4
R-EZ+F+_HA=1+—H At 31 December 2007, 1 January 2008
—EEN\F-A—HK and 31 December 2008
—EEN\F+-_A=1+—H 4
FREE Carrying values
RZZEZENFE+—HA=+—8H At 31 December 2008 6,385
R_ZEZtF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 6,133
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aWAN L)
AEEEENEEREELBM([CGU]) -
WA REFETHEEHRMET RELHD
BB 2EER - NTREBEDEZDHR
HME

0 S0 T

INT R4 8H

-

18.

GOODWILL (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) representing an operating entity within
the business segments identified by the Group for the purpose
of segment reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill
allocation is presented below:

—EENF T F

2008 2007

BY¥EET BERET

HKS million HK$ million

Retail 1,250 1,221
Beverage 4,667 4,440
Food Processing and Distribution 379 384
Textile 89 88

CGUZ AT ml & BB 4Rk B B (E HIAEE
E o ZEAEERARBERERRAL=
FHPFEEMEL ZBRESRE - B
=FHPReREBRBRBL R KSR
B MAEREREBDRFIZEEZADZN
DNASTEE

EREEFEEZETE/RR

5 W

0 S0 R

DﬂDI&%ﬁéiﬁ

hu]

o

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based
on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a three-year period and a discount rate of 8% per annum.
Cash flows beyond the three-year period are extrapolated using the
nominal growth rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

HEHESRE
A
BRIERE

Nominal growth
rate beyond
the initial cash
flow projections

(%)
Retail 6%
Beverage 3%
Food Processing and Distribution 3%
Textile 3%
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ThHtEEEE 19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B
Brand names
BEEET
HK$ million
EE The Group
B Cost
RZEZt+F—H—H At 1 January 2007 214
FE 5 =58 Exchange difference 14
&N Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 11
R-EZLFE+_A=1+—HK At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
—EEN\F—-A—H 239
ME W ZERR Exchange difference 25
R_ZEEN\F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 264
R ERRE Accumulated amortisation and impairment
RZZTZTLF—H—H At 1 January 2007 101
bE R Exchange difference 7
REEHIH Charge for the year 9
BERERBEEE Impairment loss recognised 41
RIEBEEZ+F+-_A=1+—HEK At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008
—ZEENF—HF—H 158
MEH =5 Exchange difference 21
RNEZHH Charge for the year 14
EWR 2 REEE Impairment loss recognised 3
RZZTZENF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2008 196
BREDFE Net book values
RZBEZEN\F+_A=+—H At 31 December 2008 68
R-EE+F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2007 81
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Zt RANME QR s 20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
—sENE —EEiE
2008 2007
BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
YN The Company
LMY - BANME Unlisted shares, at cost 17,410 15,268
&), R B B A R FRIA Amounts due (to)/from subsidiaries 2 49
17,408 15,317
RZZENF+ZA=+—HBZXEWE Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are
AFIBHENE184EEF 1918 © set out on pages 184 to 191.
Zt- REEE QAR 2 s 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
—EENE —EE L
2008 2007
BETET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
AEE The Group
LM Unlisted
JEEEE(AfE)FE Share of net assets/(liabilities) 143 (100)
g Goodwill 135 -
JE Wk & A B RIE Amounts due from associates 1,675 1,547
1,953 1,447
R & A R FRIBN KR  IRIRITHISE The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing
=.—‘a‘|’§iﬂ/§\&ﬂfﬁE\EE£iME]iﬁ'+ {EVEI at prevailing market rate and are not repayable within the twelve
BR - months from the balance sheet date.
RZZZENFTA=+—HZFEHER Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2008 are set
AR B TIENE184E £ F 1018 © out on pages 184 to 191.
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- REE AT 2 EE ) 21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TS AAEERE QAR ZBOMBEE The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
o associates is set out below:
—SENF  —TTLH
2008 2007
BYEEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
BEBE Total assets 45,866 43,543
afERE Total liabilities (46,786) (46,124)
BESFE Net liabilities (920) (2,581)
NEFRLGBENREE, Group’s share of net assets/

(BE)FE (liabilities) of associates 143 (100)
Weas Revenue 14,066 13,143
REZ A Profit for the year 3,415 3,471
REEELEEARAEE Group’s share of net results of

RIBTFE associates for the year 367 353

Tt AERE 22. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
—sE)\F  —TBLHF
2008 2007
BEEHET BEEETT
HKS million HK$ million
rEE The Group
R A ETRR G Listed shares in Chinese Mainland,

NREE at fair value 71 =
BB LTRD Unlisted shares in Hong Kong 9 9
B A IE E TR Unlisted shares in Chinese Mainland 31 37

40 46
111 46

DITEAT Analysed as:
FERB Non-current 40 46
B Current 71 =
111 46

FEMBEMIERANRR S EE R ZRER
B - mRAEARBEMAFTHEERA - HE
AR S REEE AR EE -

The investments in unlisted equity shares are measured at costs
less impairment at each balance sheet date. As the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant, their fair values
cannot be ascertained reliably.
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—t=. B EE 23. PREPAYMENTS
—E2EN\F —TTEF
2008 2007
BYEET S EET
HKS million HK$ million
AEE The Group
Rt-—A=+—B2HEeke0E Rental deposits at 31 December 277 236
R —FRE R 2 HBH Portion to be utilised within
one year 79 31
R —F1EEA 2 5% Portion to be utilised after
one year 198 205
Rt+ZA=+—B2z&# Balance at 31 December 277 236
~thEFE 24. STOCKS
—ZEN\F —TTAF
2008 2007
BYEET S EET
HKS million HK$ million
rEE The Group
FEME Properties held for sale 131 145
R Raw materials 2,006 1,710
SFEm R BEME Consumables and packing
materials 3,956 3,014
E8m Work-in-progress 429 313
E Finished goods 4,987 3,898
11,509 9,080
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

8 85 ¥R 5 Bt 51
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

rER KATF
The Group The Company

—EENF ZETHF —EENE ZTTHF
2008 2007 2008 2007
BYEHER BEEET BYEEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
FEWE S HRR Trade receivables 1,803 1,676 - -
BIRZER Provision for doubtful debts (168) (165) = =
1,635 1,511 - -

HAbEWEIE - & &k Other receivables, deposits
TERTFRIR and prepayments 3,758 3,698 39 14
JRE LA Bf /B8 1 B 3R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 1,074 1,744

Eﬁ”&@ﬂ% Amounts due from fellow

) =YNEIEe:: subsidiaries 18 11 - =
=N IE Amounts due from associates 33 21 - -
5444 5,241 1,113 1,758

AEE—RETEFPUATZEER

P

T

= Bt
S THRER

R
i o

b
H 3“}

(2)

~

REEBNRKE SRR ZREATIT

The Group normally trades with its customers under the following

credit terms:

(@ cash upon delivery; and

(b) open credit within

The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the

balance sheet date:

60 days.

—BEN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
BYEEBT BEBEETT
HKS million HK$ million

rEE The Group
0 - 30K o — 30 days 1,050 1,000
31— 60K 31— 60 days 239 207
61— 90K 61 — 90 days 112 108
> 9ok > 9o days 234 196
1,635 1,511

REBERARANEEANE S REMRER
RAAABEEAKREERS o

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
other receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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Tt ESGREMEWRIE G

25,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

BIREHE B E Movement in the provision for doubtful debts
—EENF —EELF
2008 2007
BEEEBT BERET
HKS million HK$ million
n—H—H At 1 January 165 149
ERR BB Impairment losses recognised 16 10
EE xR e 2 £ 58 Amounts written off as
uncollectible ® (4)
REDREEE Impairment losses reversed (9) (2
WEEHT B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries - 7
EHZERR Exchange difference 4 5
R+=—A=+—8” At 31 December 168 165
181 A B AR SRL(E AR X 1Y R e Aging of past due but not impaired
—EENF —EELF
2008 2007
BEEEBT BERET
HKS million HK$ million
BEAT E30H Less than 30 days past due 195 166
#1531 - 60H 31 — 60 days past due 71 46
#Hi61 — 90 A 61 — 90 days past due 103 51
B0 A LA £ Over 9o days past due 47 47
416 310

RAREE - TMERENRKTIR - B RTR
BRINER - R EEEERACE -

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of

default.
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A TTESRT A 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—E2EN\F —TTEF
2008 2007
afE =L
Liabilities Liabilities
BETER BEBEET
HKS million HK$ million
AEH The Group
R EHEREZ Derivatives under hedge
PTETA accounting
REeRBER - Cash flow hedge:
INERHA A 4Y Foreign currency forwards
contracts - 1
FEEHRELD Interest rate swaps 11 3
11 4
AT Analysed as:
FERED Non-current 11 =
E Current - 4
11 4

VA% B R IATE SRR A = a4 -
—RIIRRLREL M - RS AEERE
BRI 2R R MEHNRERERR o FjX
EHRREROMN SN RERELE - BN
EEN SR - EEBZENREERERDN
HiR - FEIRRRARERR o

R H BN = B A FE - SRR H A
HERANANEERR  ATEARRS

AR HREZE AR JSHARRASS

—ETHFERE—F) WESFHE—K
FEB N ZEFE BB BRITRERES
(THIBORY) °

All interest rate swap contracts exchanging floating rate interest
amounts for fixed rate interest amounts are designated as cash
flow hedges in order to reduce the Group’s cash flow exposure
resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The
interest rate swaps and the interest payments on the loan occur
simultaneously and the amount deferred in equity is recognised in
the profit and loss account over the period that the floating rate
interest payments on debt impact the profit and loss account.

The fair value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date is
determined by discounting the future cash flows using the curves
at reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps have a maturity up to three years (2007:
one year) from the balance sheet date and settle on a quarterly
basis and the floating rate on the interest swaps is the Hong Kong
Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“HIBOR”).
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“tt B REMENSRIE 27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
REH RATF
The Group The Company
—EBENF —ZTTLF —EEN\FE —TTEF
2008 2007 2008 2007

BERET B HEIT BEBRET B EHETT
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million

FERTE SRR Trade payables 7,585 6,901 - -
Hib T % TEIRE A  Other payables and accruals 11,569 9,582 4 21
FERTHE A RIFRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 85 104
NS ARIEE Amounts due to fellow
[ IiESPNGIE /O subsidiaries 118 56 - =
ANE R NCIE ] Amounts due to associates 30 26 - -
19,302 16,565 89 125
REEHNENE SRR ZRRSITHOT ¢ The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance
sheet date:
—E2ENEF ZETLF
2008 2007
BYEET BEEETT
HKS million HK$ million
EE The Group
0 - 30K o — 30 days 4,207 3,962
31— 60K 31 - 60 days 1,490 1,655
61— 90K 61— 90 days 607 536
> 90K > 9o days 1,281 748
7,585 6,901
REBRARRREZBNE 5 REMER The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and
FIEARBEEEREERES ° other payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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TR EHIE R 28A. SHORT TERM LOANS
—sENE —TEig
2008 2007
BYEET S EET
HKS million HK$ million
EE The Group
BNERER {7 Current portion
—EEFIRITER - unsecured bank loans 564 626
— REAREE A AIE - long term obligations
under finance leases 1 1
RERITREMER - Short term bank and other loans,
FREUUR KBS trust receipts and overdrafts
—HEHR - secured 312 272
— R — unsecured 4,608 4,045
5,485 4,944
SN REER 28B. LONG TERM LOANS
—EBEN\fF ZETHF
2008 2007
BEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
rEE The Group
AR AFNEERE 2 EEH Unsecured bank loans
RITER repayable within 5 years 9,027 7,991
BERAFREREEZ Unsecured bank loans not wholly
EERRITER repayable within 5 years 60 4
ARAFANEEZH M Other unsecured loans
FEREE R repayable within 5 years 52 103
HRAFRNEEZRE Obligations under finance leases
TR EHE repayable within 5 years 1 1
BERRAFANRHEREZ Other unsecured loans not wholly
HA KR E R repayable within 5 years - 31
9,140 8,130
PRI EN B & 2 BNERER (5 Current portion included in
current liabilities (565) (627)
8,575 7,503
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TN REER @)

28B. LONG TERM LOANS (continued)

—EEN\E —ETHF
2008 2007
BEEEBT BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
rEE The Group
RHEBE 2 IERNEEI () FEIZ The non-current portion of long
A TNEHER - term liabilities are repayable
as follows:
BITER Bank Loans
—FUEEZMEA After 1 year, but within 2 years 1,150 655
WEAEERFA After 2 years, but within 5 years 7,313 6,710
& After 5 years 60 4
HAib &K Other Loans
—F EEZMEA After 1 year, but within 2 years 19 69
MEAEZREFA After 2 years, but within 5 years 33 34
hEE After 5 years - 31
8,575 7,503

—TENFWNA—B NEEEHEKE
T—RHBRA R EH10RIRBITE B F 5 HE
EEREE A 181E 7T - HHIBOR57 2,
FETE - BRAZZEERNFER_ZTTLFR
ENSMEsFREEF B, 628 - 1%
HIBOR /@ iR 1T R %4 2 ([LIBOR ) /128
BFEEE  AKRBUHANEAEEERE
BERBES R - R=ZTTN\F+=A
=+—H8 BEBAFEASKqEL(ZE
THF - B LETT) ©

REBEAEBANAFAEE 2 BERRTE
R BHIER - ERAREBEBBREA
A([FEEEE D RRERERRB AR AR
D35%FBRREZ RN IEFEERAR
AE-—BRABRRZEN(THAEKIER
HIEARRZSE A MER)

REEHEUBE EXRAREASBMAZZ
BEFK - BXR5HFIEHIBOR * LIBOREFEH
ARRITIRTE Z BRI R EH 44 o

REBZEBRZERFNEEEH0.66%
B7.47%(ZFTLF 1 2.40%%E7.29%) T

= ©°

=T

On 1 April 2008, a subsidiary under beer operation, together
with 10 banks, signed a 5-year term syndicated loans facility of
HK$1.8 billion, which bears interest at HIBOR plus 57 basis point.
Together with another two 5-year syndicated loans signed in 2006
and 2007 of HK$6.2 billion, which bear interest rate at HIBOR/
London Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 28 basis point, the
aggregate amount of committed borrowing facilities available to
the Group becomes HK$8 billion. As at 31 December 2008, a sum
of HK$6.2 billion (2007: HK$4.9 billion) has been drawn down.

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”), a holding company, is required to
remain as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares
of the Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether
directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked to
HIBOR, LIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank
of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 0.66% to 7.47%. (2007: from 2.40%
to 7.29%).
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION
The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior
to offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction)
recognised during the year is as follows:
B Hit a&t
Tax losses Others Total

—ZEZT)\F CZTTEF —TTN\F ZTTLF Z—ZTINE CZITTLHE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
BEEER AEaEr B¥EEx A%asx #B¥EEx AKBERL
HKS million  HK$ million ~ HKS million ~ HK$ million HKSmillion ~ HK$ million

F5H The Group
ERBBEE Deferred taxation assets
®—A—H At 1 January 28 54 91 69 119 123
EREERR Credited/(charged) to

2R/ (F0%) consolidated profit

and loss account 20 (22) 19 12 39 (10)

MEEH 2%  Effect of change in tax rates - @) (1) - (1) %)
WeEEMB AR Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - 9 - 9
BRI Exchange rate adjustment 2 3 5 1 7 4
R+=ZHA=+—H At 31 December 50 28 114 91 164 119

EIERIE A EE AR MBS e A T Al fE R
RIERHBFEIR A LR - ARSEBEE
MiER - RZZEZENF+-_A=+—H K
SEARER BB BB E R 2,068A 8T

“TTLF  B¥357BET)  MAE
ERAETEE 1] & B) X B SR R SR A FE R
FURAEEE - WS BERERATREmZ A
BRZMBEBEEEEE L6788 (ZEE
+F B8 EETT) °

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December
2008, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$2,068 million
(2007: HK$1,357 million) which is uncertain as to whether it can
be utilised to set off against future taxable income. Out of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$1,675 million (2007:
HK$958 million) will expire within 5 years.
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Zth.

IEERIE ()
IWTNABEGEEEABRTPERZELER
TH B EHEKE M MR FERN 2 &8 -

29.

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years
are as follows:

RABHEZ
EfRE IEHE FEMFREH
e #T#&  Withholding
Revaluation Accelerated tax on
of investment tax undistributed Er
property  depreciation profits Total
BEEET A¥eERr A¥asEr BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
rEE The Group
R-ZZ+F—H—H At1anuary 2007 821 202 - 1,023
BirBEEREK Charged/(credited) to
%Dﬁét?/ A consolidated profit
and loss account 99 (3) - 96
W RSB T A A Relating to acquisition
of subsidiaries - 145 - 145
BREEHEAT Relating to disposal
of subsidiaries ) (17) - (21
MN_EELF At 31 December 2007
+=—A=+—HkK and 1 January 2008
—ZEENF—F—H 916 327 = 1,243
BirAEER Charged/(credited) to
Mer(GEA) consolidated profit
and loss account 133 (61) 71 143
[E R Exchange rate adjustment - 12 - 12
MEBE 2B Effect of change in tax rates (59) ) - 60)
RZZEENF At 31 December 2008
+TZA=1+—H” 990 277 71 1,338

=+.

BIEFEAREMBEINES @ EIRATER 2
HABEMB AR E =T N\F—A—AER
EEFETE M AR E AU o EIERIEA
ROBRFBEETEIEROKREMAIRE
BEREEE RZTZENF+ZA=+—
A - W2 B ERBTREERIBAIR D BLA
HeEAB®E1,075AETT ©

AARZBELERBREREREYE - T
REFIANEMEENIERTIRITE

HitbERBRE
RZZFZNF+-_A=1+—RH B3RS
BEBRITHBE A ET(Z 22+
FE) BN EERHPEARLME
BUT#EEE RS T A0MES -

30.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has been provided
for undistributed profits to the extent that declaration of dividends
are anticipated in the foreseeable future. At 31 December 2008, no
deferred taxation has been recognised in respect of undistributed
profits amounting to HK$1,075 million.

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relate to the accelerated
tax depreciation of its investment property, land and building and
other assets.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2008, other non-current liabilities included
government grants of HK$149 million (2007: nil). The government
grants mainly represent subsidies granted by PRC governmental
authorities towards the purchases of leasehold land.
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=t- RAR SHARE CAPITAL
—ZZNF —TTF
2008 2007
B EE H{E & E A&
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BER BEBAET =R B EHETT
million HKS million million HK$ million
VETE Authorised
SREESEIT Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
TiER 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
BEIT BRI Issued and fully paid
R—A—H At 1 January 2,385 2,385 2,358 2,358
1T R Exercise of share options 4 4 27 27
®n+—-—A=+—8H At 31 December 2,389 2,389 2,385 2,385

ARBRILBEREE - ElRSSEAELAR
RAEZAE BOBBARAR Z BR(#E
211) o BRULIASN - RIBARR—RER-F
ToF-A=1+—BRIERE BDRER
MBRERE - DAE TR RITE
(T&&t&1D) -

HAtERN T —F-A=1+—HAZERX
e HEE  HER -_TTWFENA-+H
ERRBAHEEBRBRER  AHR_-F
——F—A=t—HEW ARFEEFEN
RAAEER2EERLERE ZEEEKS
HEBRAEE ZEMRTHIFNTES
(HEERZEZAL) - BAKEZ R
B AITESEHIFNTESARINBIBE
REZERER  AEBEZEMNTRAR &
8 EREMH - EXERREGERE (3
BEBEZ LAL) ARBKRBITHRA
BT ERER  AEBZBERR - AAT
ZEE BRRTHAERTERROBE
A IEBRRNEER(HEZEZRERZRA
AXERRNHBARNES -

FE R — AR DA 200 T N R AR H AR
RESREANFZHRART  XEERD
Z HEBET T FERTTE °

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under
a share option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and
was terminated on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002, which was subsequently amended on
20 August 2004 by an ordinary resolution passed by shareholders,
and shall expire on 31 January 2012. The board of directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible participants including
any executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any discretionary object of a
discretionary trust established by any employee, executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and employees,
consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or
persons proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive,
substantial shareholder of the Company, associated companies of
the Group, associates of director, chief executive and substantial
shareholder of the Company, and employees of substantial
shareholder and where a substantial shareholder is a company,
employees of subsidiaries of a substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested or vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance
of a grant and exercisable within a period of 10 years immediately
after the date of grant.
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=t- B 31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
R E T 219% 2 B sh e B 22t Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
mr share option schemes are summarised as follows:
BREZE BRERE
Number of share options AL

R-BENF AREE
R-BENF REAEE REEE  REEE REEE +=A Estimated

—B—H Bt 7t 8 K% =+—H fair value of
1TEfE o RATE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed B RITHE the share
& B Exercise Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding option
Date of grant Price  at 1/1/2008 the year the year' the year the year at 31/12/2008 granted
ok BT
HK$ HK$
Eita
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19 314,000 - 66,000 - - 248,000 -
21/11/2000 7.08 813,000 - 352,000 - - 461,000 -
1,127,000 - 418,000 - - 709,000
it
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 284,000 - - - - 284,000 -
05/03/2002 7.35 649,000 - 44,000 - - 605,000 -
19/04/2002 7.40 244,000 - - - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 370,000 - 120,000 - - 250,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 204,000 - 200,000 - - 4,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 40,000 - 10,000 - - 30,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 122,000 - - - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 5,197,000 - 1,541,000 - 28,000 3,628,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 840,000 - - - - 840,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 1,716,000 - 618,000 - - 1,098,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
22/07/2004 9.80 110,000 - - - - 110,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 9,896,000 = 998,000 = 110,000 8,788,000 =
17/01/2005 11.40 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 -
22/07/2005 12.50 410,000 - 160,000 - - 250,000 -
20,762,000 - 3,731,000 - 138,000 16,893,000
21,889,000 = 4,149,000 = 138,000 17,602,000
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=t- B @) 31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
BREYE
Number of share options
R-ZSZENE
R-BENE REEE REEE REEE REEE +=A
—HA—H R 178 w8 KR =+—H
MARITE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed i RITHE
=R Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant at 1/1/2008 the year the year* the year the year at 31/12/2008
A RF LT
Exercisable at the
end of the year 17,362,000
EFATEECGEET)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK$) 9.69 - 9.41 - 10.22 9.76
BRERE AT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Esta
Old Scheme
B EEmployees 1,127,000 - 418,000 - - 709,000
et
New Scheme
% % Directors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
{2 EEmployees 19,513,000 - 3,687,000 - 138,000 15,688,000
H {th 222 E Other participants 649,000 - 44,000 - - 605,000
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=t- B ) 31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
EREZE BIRERE
Number of share options AL
RZTT+EF “AEE
RZZTLEF RAEE RAEFE RAREE RAREE +=A Estimated
—A—H B 17f: i e =+—H fair value of
176 MARITEE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed BARITEE the share
i B 8 Exercise  Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding option
Date of grant Price  at 1/1/2007 the year the year* the year the year at 31/12/2007 granted
BT BT
HK$ HK$
EstE
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19 475,000 - 161,000 - - 314,000 -
21/11/2000 7.08 945,000 - 132,000 - - 813,000 -
1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
ETERRE
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 634,000 - 350,000 - - 284,000 -
05/03/2002 7.35 3,365,000 - 2,716,000 - - 649,000 -
19/04/2002 7.40 284,000 - 40,000 - - 244,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 720,000 - 350,000 - - 370,000 -
24/01/2003 7.25 50,000 - 50,000 - - - -
14/04/2003 6.29 394,000 - 190,000 - - 204,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 80,000 - 40,000 - - 40,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 352,000 - 230,000 - - 122,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 15,113,000 - 9,516,000 - 400,000 5,197,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 2,892,000 - 2,052,000 - - 840,000 =
25/05/2004 9.15 4,154,000 - 2,438,000 - - 1,716,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 600,000 - - - - 600,000 -
22/07/2004 9.80 160,000 - 50,000 - - 110,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 17,622,000 - 7,726,000 - - 9,896,000 -
17/01/2005 11.40 120,000 - 40,000 - - 80,000 -
22/07/2005 12.50 720,000 - 230,000 - 80,000 410,000 -
47,260,000 - 26,018,000 - 480,000 20,762,000
48,680,000 - 26,311,000 - 480,000 21,889,000
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== Hﬁz'x(é? 31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
fERiESE
Number of share options
RZZTAEF
RoBTLE  WEEE REEE REFE REEE +-A
—H—H Es-dus] s G K =T—~H
W ARTTIE Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed W ATT{E
bl =Lt Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant at 1/1/2007 the year the year* the year the year at 31/12/2007
A RF LT
Exercisable at the
end of the year 18,831,000
EFATEECEET)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK$) 9.40 - 9.52 - 10.18 9.69
BRERE AT Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:
Eta
Old Scheme
B EEmployees 1,420,000 - 293,000 - - 1,127,000
et
New Scheme
% EDirectors 600,000 - - - - 600,000
B EEmployees 43,175,000 - 23,182,000 - 480,000 19,513,000
H#h 22822 Other participants 3,485,000 - 2,836,000 - - 649,000
B eE - Notes:
1. FREITEERENTTEE B B2 MEFHR 1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
BREBK268T(ZFTTLF : BH27.72 options exercised during the year was HK$26.88 (2007: HK$27.72).
TT) e
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St e 32. RESERVES
REF The Group
AEBRFEZDFBFINF13EZ114E5H Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
AR EREER - consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 113 to 114.
& 8 R 45
HEAE
Employee
K128  share-based REBEF
Share compensation Retained Sie
premium reserve profits Total
BEEET BEEET BEEET BEBEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
N The Company
RZZEZtF—H—H At1anuary 2007 12,606 168 3,229 16,003
BATIR D 5 (B Shares issued at premium 224 = = 224
BT E D Share issue expenses ) - - )
12 8 BB ER R Employee share option benefits - 4 - 4
REEGH] Profit for the year - - 2,360 2,360
A% B Dividends - - (2,401) (2,401)
RZEZF At 31 December 2007
+-—A=+—H8K and 1 January 2008
—ZEENF—HA—H 12,829 172 3,188 16,189
BTRARE Share issued at premium 35 - - 35
REZHF Profit for the year = = 1,028 1,028
A% 2. Dividends - - (1,075) (1,075)
N_ETEN\F At 31 December 2008
+=-A=+—~H 12,864 172 3,141 16,177
RRB AR TR 2 FEERBE 3,141 Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the

BET(ZZZTLF : B3,188EETT) ©
million).

shareholders amounted to HK$3,141 million (2007: HK$3,188
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StE GEReRERMETE 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
B RETHZRERE A Cash flows from operating activities
—sE)\F  —TBLHF
2008 2007
BETER BERET
HKS million HK$ million
R A5 A Profit before taxation 3,791 6,292
FHEE Adjustments for:
FEEEE AR EEFE Share of net results of associates (367) (353)
HERB AR, % Profit on disposal of
P 155 A subsidiaries/business (1) (2,399)
HE & A R TSR F Profit on disposal of associates (95) (78)
HE R ERE TS = A Profit on disposal of available
for sale investments (35) (2
PTEESBMTAARBEERS Fair value gain on derivative
financial instruments - (98)
EmAEREREBKA Dividend income from unlisted
available for sale investments 6 (4)
FEHKA Interest income (212) (291)
FEZH Interest expenses 564 487
LEBEEEF Net (profit)/loss on disposal of
CEF),/EiE fixed assets (217) 29
EWRETEERERRE Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets 83 20
ERER 2 B R AR R Impairment loss recognised on
goodwill - 4
ERRZAISKREREREE Impairment loss recognised on
available for sale investments - 6
ERER B & E Impairment loss recognised on
RIEEE other intangible assets 3 41
e Depreciation 2,050 1,601
HivfER & =R Amortisation of other intangible
assets 14 9
REAWA Z W BT E Discount on acquisition
recognised as income - (5)
EBAzHEBRGE Tank storage service fee utilised - 11
WEMESE R Valuation gain on investment
properties (483) (567)
BRI B Government grants recognised (3) =
PAREZS H0FR 2 Bt FE AT 5k Share based payment charged
against equity - 4
EiEE S EEA] Operating profit before working
IR capital changes 5,086 4,707
FEMEZEE) Changes in properties held for
sale 14 1
HFE & Changes in other stocks (2,401) (2,852)
B 5 K H M FEWGRIE Changes in trade and other
2 BE receivables (218) (998)
PTHESRI A #E) Changes in derivative financial
instruments - 85
B 5 R EAFE FIE Changes in trade and other
ZEE payables 2,687 4,737
KEFBZIRE Cash generated from operations 5,168 5,680
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i REREREXRME @) 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(continued)

Z HEMBAR (K B Disposal of subsidiaries/business
—BEN\F —ETLF
2008 2007
BEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
HEEEFE: Net assets disposed of:
EE&E Fixed assets 2 518
AERE Available for sale investments - 1
SEANE/ O] Prepayments - 270
7=y Stocks - 661
5 hHAEW A Trade and other receivables B 1,646
TESRMTEA Derivative financial instruments - 93
AR [EIFEIE Taxation recoverable - 2
e RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 1 955
B 5 REAMFERFIE Trade and other payables (1) (1,509)
TESRTA Derivative financial instruments - (70)
REEX Short term loans - (477)
JERTHRIR Taxation payable - (69)
RAEFER Long term loans - (400)
BEHEAE Deferred taxation liabilities - (21)
5 1,600
i Reserves released - )
HEMB AR, %% Profit on disposal of
Fi5 & A subsidiaries/business 1 2,399
6 3,991
IATS R REZA Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 6 3,991
HEMBAT, %% Analysis of the net inflow of cash
FBzBEERkES and cash equivalents in respect
EERNEEDN of disposal of subsidiaries/
business
BURERE Cash considerations received 6 3,991
HERS RIRTTETT Cash and bank balances
disposed of (1) (955)
5 3,036
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St GZERERERME @ 33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(continued)
A WEHBAR %% C  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—BEN\F ZEETLF
2008 2007
BEAER BEEET
HKS million HK$ million
WA FEE REE The carrying amounts/fair
ArfEE values of the net assets
acquired:
EE&E Fixed assets 107 1,313
EES Goodwill - 2
Hih\mpEE Other intangible assets - 11
AIERE Available for sale investments - 2
N NI Interests in associates 66 7
78 Stocks 42 166
B 5 K H A FEUROR Trade and other receivables 9 393
RIETIA B E Deferred taxation assets - 9
e RRITET Cash and bank balances 203 207
B 5 REAFER A Trade and other payables (68) (694)
e RIA Taxation payable - (12)
BEHIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities - (145)
HHEAE Short term loans - (161)
REAER Long term loans - (43)
359 1,056
DB R Minority interests (159) (275)
I B B BE A 2 PR Goodwill on acquisition 3 496
L B B R A 2 AR Discount on acquisition - (5)
203 1,272
ATSARZA Discharged by:
e Cash 203 1,191
FERI BB Balance of consideration payable - 81
203 1,272
(bl 00 PNCIPE S Analysis of the net outflow of cash
Z2EERBEELEE and cash equivalents in respect
REBEDMN of acquisition of subsidiaries/
business’s undertaking
BfReNRE Cash consideration paid (203) (1,197)
RS IR & RRITHETF Cash and bank balances
acquired 203 207
- (984)
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W EAREIE 34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
rEE b N
The Group The Company
—EBENF T F —EBENF T F
2008 2007 2008 2007
BEEET BEEET BYEET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
REE B HARTER Capital commitments
L ERAEENAT outstanding at the balance
sheet date are as follows:
BER4E M KRB Contracted but not
provided for 3,054 3,054 - =
ERUEERREL Authorised but not
contracted for 3,779 3,491 - -
6a833 6’545 - -

Zth ERANEE
B fEREEA

REEH - RIBEAT

35. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

A As lessee
rEH AN
The Group The Company
—EENF —EELF —EENF —EELF
2008 2007 2008 2007

BEEHET S EETT BEEET BERET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million

At the balance sheet date,

FrHEEMA A the total future minimum
S NS lease payments under
2 &EHREFRIE non-cancellable operating
4a%E leases are payable
as follows:
—E—FR — Within one year 1,640 1,255 - =
—EE_FEFRF — In the second to
(BREEMRT) fifth year inclusive 4,748 4,128 - =
—hFE2ZE — After five years 7,909 6,707 - -
14,297 12,090 - -
EEMERBEASERAETSEMMMNU Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group
EMEZNz2BE  BHEER-—ZE=1% for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated

ZHEFIEE -

for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

Z {ERHEA As lessor
rEH b N
The Group The Company
—EEN\F —EELF —EBENE —EELF
2008 2007 2008 2007
BEAET BEEET BE¥EET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
REEH - RIBERA At the balance sheet date,
ST HE ALY A the total future minimum
40T AR U ER lease payments under
RS RIE non-cancellable operating
FEE leases are receivable
as follows:
—E—FR — Within one year 762 554 9 1
—EE_FEFRF — In the second to
(BREEMF) fifth year inclusive 1,548 940 3 1
—HF 2% — After five years 822 971 - -
3,132 2,465 12 2

HENERTEEH AT EHERFHN

%1

15 10%F ©

A RARBE

These properties and retail outlets have committed tenants for

lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 10 years.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

rEE KATH
The Group The Company
—EENF —ERELF —EENE —EELF
2008 2007 2008 2007
BEEET BEEET BE¥EET BEEET
HKS million HK$ million HKS million HK$ million
REER - AR At the balance sheet date,
& TH A AR HERTT there were contingent
REAERIER liabilities in respect of
MEEZHARE guarantees for banks
loans provided to
5N — subsidiaries - - 7,939 7,943
—— AT — an associate - 500 - 500
- 500 7:939 8,443
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Tt EXREXRS

37. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

F ARFAEEMBERAR(BRARAZ
BMEAL)ETZRZENEAKRE
B EfH - WRAARKETRRE A
MBEBRERTREZR S MR
REBETTIRRERFERS °

AT ARIBAE R
BARIEEZ B LRA]

/NG

BER TR AR Z R
— AR AR
BRRIEEZ B LRA]

BEAT

AT RRIHES M
BARIEEZ BN

/NG

A T 512 AR AR TS
BARIEEZ B RA]

BEAT

R AFOR
— AR AR
BARIEEZ B RA]

/NG

o AR TS &
— AR AR
BRRIEEZ B LRA]

BMAShERR M T RS
a5l FlHER
ERE
— AR AR
BARIEEZ B AR

RIBR REE IR
MR pE IR
HETRS
A NI R E AR TS B

—FER A A
(SYNCIESEAdl=PNE]

ATAIRRXN AR
— R AR
BAREEZHBAT

A Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this
note. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions.

—BEN\F —TTLF
2008 2007
BEEER BEBEETT
HKS million HK$ million
Purchase of goods from
Fellow subsidiaries 46 -
Associates 185 446
Receipt of services from
A holding company 1 1
Fellow subsidiaries 139 81
Associates 20 23
Sales of goods to
Fellow subsidiaries 17 3
Associates - 69
Rendering of services to
Fellow subsidiaries 13 3
Associates 14
Operating lease payment to
A holding company 7 3
Fellow subsidiaries 51 52
Associates 3 2
Tank storage service fees to
A holding company - 70
Fellow subsidiaries - 1
Management fee received for
provision of certain
services at oil depot from
A holding company - 1
Fellow subsidiaries - 9
Transaction under godown
management agreement
and facilities management
Receipt of service fee from
A holding company 136 131
Fellow subsidiaries 107 96
Payment of monthly fee to
A holding company 12 36
Fellow subsidiaries 24 -
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B H fth B i B PR B AR
2R5,/ ko
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AR BEBTES)ET—EEAR
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MASEBERBETZRBIN K
KB B ¥ X5 EET B BEBA
EEAEREERIEHI 2 BRETE
BHEK - BEF2RA  KREBEQRE
BN ZEERVEE N AP E
HEATAKE P HRBEBRR - &
ZEERETIRZ (BHREEEM
KBRS THR A R B — R ETBIZR]
3 oo REERR - SLETRA XX
Mtz EEXSE RN ETARER

TEEBEABZHM
XNTFEIZEERAB(EREARA
ER)ZHEERIETHRE
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
B Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in
Chinese Mainland.

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under CRNC which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart
from the transactions with CRNC group and the associates of
the Group, it also conducts businesses with entities directly
or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC government
in the ordinary course of business. The directors are of the
opinion that those entities other than the CRNC group do not
have the power to govern or participate in the financial and
operating policies of the Group. The transactions including
sales and purchases of goods and services, with these
entities are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business. The Group believes that it has provided, at the
best of its knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure
of related party transactions as summarised above.

C Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration paid for key management personnel include
solely the directors of the Company disclosed in note 10.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements set out on pages 107 to 191 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2009.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

R=FZLF/N\F+=H=+1—H At 31 December 2008

- NGNS NG
Subsidiaries and associates

(-) 2&
(1) Retail

REBEMA L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

HE(RB)BRAH
Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.)
Limited

ZHER(BE)BRAAF
China Resources Vanguard
(Hong Kong) Company

Limited

EBMROERETE)
BRATF

China Resources Logistics
(Yuen Fat Wharf &
Godown) Limited

R E At R AR 3T

ERTEERRA
mE/ EREx

Nominal value of issued

BRAEAL
Percentage of capital

LN
held by the
Company

REBERS
attributable to
the Group

KBRS
held by
subsidiaries

ordinary share capital/
registered capital

5,000,000/ FREE 100.0 - 100.0
Ao Rk

5,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$10 each

90,000,000/ FIREE
BTz Rk

90,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100.0 - 100.0

1,000,0008% Z AR E 100.0 - 100.0
BTz TRk

1,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

* ERERERAF
(China Resources Vanguard
Co., Ltd.)

OIHEEEREMARAR

el

* EHER (BN )BT
ARAE
(China Resources Vanguard
(Suzhou) Supermarket
Co., Ltd.)

184

AR #1,903,000,0007T 100.0 65.0 35.0
(FEMER)

RMB1,903,000,000

(Registered capital)

AR #1,403,000,0007T

(EWER)

RMB1,403,000,000

(Paid up share capital)

AR #10,000,0007C 100.0 - 100.0
RMB10,000,000

12,096,14035 T 100.0 - 100.0
US$12,096,140

IREH

Principal activities

TEEK
Retail business

MRS - REERK
HEmit %

Supermarket operations,
investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise

R R R RS
Wharf & godown services

BmEH

Supermarket operations

[EhiES7
Supermarket operations

eSS

Supermarket operations
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Subsidiaries and associates

(-) BE®)

(1) Retail (continued)

RABERBERRL ()

ERTEBRRE
HE/ ERER
Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)

* BB A RAR
(Suguo Supermarket
Co., Ltd.)

* IERERERN
BRATF
(China Resources Cikelong
(Zhejiang) Supermarket
Co., Ltd.)

*EREREERT(EM)
BRAHE
(China Resources Vanguard
(Guangzhou) Supermarket
Co., Ltd.)

* EREREEETONT)
BRATF
(China Resources Vanguard
(Zhejiang) Supermarket
Co., Ltd))

* LBRIRRMERAR

REBELHREMRL

AR #582,820,0007C
RMB582,820,000

AE#124,000,0007T

RMB124,000,000

AE#30,000,0007T
RMB30,000,000

AR #128,000,0007T
RMB128,000,000

1,000,000 7T
US$1,000,000

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Tactical Solutions
Incorporated

100l BREEE T2 BRR
100 ordinary shares of US$1
each

IZMBAIRKEELT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

RABAL
Percentage of capital
KEEES ARREE  MEARRE —
attributable to held by the held by 2
the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
85.0 - 85.0 HEMEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 - 1000 HEMEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 - 1000 HEMEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 - 1000 HEMEH
Supermarket operations
51.0 = 100.0 PREREHIERHE
Wholesale and distribution
of apparel and accessories
51.0 - 5.0 REER

Investment holding

EFEMAIZXAFMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 F3R
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IZMBAIRBER

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

WEARRHELT

Subsidiaries and associates

(=) ke

(2) Beverage

REBE LR BT L

ERTEBRRE
HE/ ERER
Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

ERELEBERAF
China Resources Snow
Breweries Limited

R E A R AR L

42,800,300 FRAE1FETT
gl

42,800,300 ordinary shares of

US$1 each

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

w* EREEREE()I)
BREAAR
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Sichuan)
Limited)

w* EETIOE ()
BRAEAR

* EHEREE(ER)
BREFATA
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Mianyang
Co., Ltd.)

* EEEEWE(LE)
BRAR

 EHEREE(ZH)
BRATF
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Anhui)
Co., Ltd.)

* ERERE(RE)
BRATF
(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Wuhan)
Co., Ltd.)

AE#124,143,8537C
RMB124,143,853

AR#113,792,5017C
RMB113,792,501

AR #100,000,0007T
RMB100,000,000

AR #116,240,0007T
RMB116,240,000

AR #246,000,0007C
RMB246,000,000

AE#570,000,0007T
RMB570,000,000

REBERS
attributable to
the Group

51.0

51.0

51.0

45.9

51.0

45.9

BRAEAL
Percentage of capital

FRARE

held by the
Company

51.0

KBRS
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

90.0

100.0

90.0

IREH

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

SENDHEEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

BUER S R RE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SEMS S RER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

BUER D R RE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SEMS S RER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

BUER S R RE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products



BRTLZARRAE =l
A/ #RER Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued _
. . KEEES b UNCES 2]
KWEAARBEAT ordinary share capital/ attributable to  held by the
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital the Group Company
(2) tmE)
(2) Beverage (continued)
RAB AL (2)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (continued)
o EREREE(RE) 399,542,916 7T 51.0 -
BREBRAR US$399,542,916
o ERERRE(EE) 60,814,189 T 51.0 -
ARARE US$60,814,189
o REERERES SR AR #96,000,0007T 51.0 =
ARAE RMB96,000,000
(China Resources (Dalian)
Bangchuidao Brewery
Co., Ltd.)
* FREIEEE L) AR #120,000,0007T 35.7 =
AR RMB120,000,000
* EESIEEE(TH) 114,000,000 51.0 -
BRAAE US$114,000,000
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Jiangsu) Ltd.)
* ERERER(AE) AE#50,000,0007T 51.0 =
BRATF RMB50,000,000
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Xichang)
Co., Ltd.)
= EEAE R MR ORIN) AR #12,000,0007C 100.0 -

BRAR

(China Resources
Cestbon Food &
Beverage (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)

RMB12,000,000

FEMAIZEAFMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited

IZMBAIRKEELT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

KBRS
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

70.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

IREH

Principal activities

REAER
Investment holding

SUEM D R RE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SUER D R RE R
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

REN D S RER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SUEN D HERER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SEEMS S RER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

SUER P SRR Em
Manufacturing and
distribution of purified
water products

Annual Report 2008 Fk
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IZMBAIRKEELT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ERTEBRRE

HE/ ERER

Nominal value of issued
WEATRBEAT ordinary share capital/
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital

() _ERMIREH

(3) Food Processing and Distribution
REBEMAK L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

LETERRT
Ng Fung Hong Limited

1,046,258,000% HAXHEE
BT TR

1,046,258,000 ordinary shares

of HK$o0.1 each
TERGKEBRAR 5,000,000/ FREE
Ng Fung Frozen Meats & BT L RR
Aquatic Products 5,000,000 ordinary shares
Co. Limited of HK$1 each
@ FAHAEERBRAT 60,000 R FREE
Chung Kong Luen Livestock  75%1,000702 A%

Company Limited 60,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1,000 each

RASHSEMAR L

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

A @ (PEERBELR) 60,8641 X HIE T L

China International LER
Fisheries Corp 60,864 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

REBEZHSEMAR T
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Victory Return Corporation  1REREEE T LBR

1 ordinary share of US$1 each

REBERS
attributable to
the Group

100.0

94.0

35.7

51.0

51.0

RABAL
Percentage of capital
EREEE  MWERARER
held by the held by
Company subsidiaries
- 100.0

- 100.0

IREH

Principal activities

EELRRIISHE
BiEEE  RAER
RERK

Distribution of fresh, live
and frozen foodstuff,
abattoir operation,
acting as food agent and
investment holding

IR ROKE
Trading of frozen meats
and aquatic products

R
Wholesale of live pigs

AR
Investment holding

HRERRHEMERTER
BRMHE

Marine fishing and the
provision of ship stores
and fishing supplies



WEBLARARKELT

Subsidiaries and associates

(Z) BRERMIREHEH)

ERTEERRA
mE/ EREx

Nominal value of issued
AEEREM
attributable to
the Group

ordinary share capital/
registered capital

(3) Food Processing and Distribution (continued)

R E AR AR

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

* FERAOMIDERAR
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.)

* MR EMEAEERAR
(Hangzhou Ng Fung United
Meat Co., Ltd.)

RBEFEMA L
Incorporated in Panama

@ Jin Feng S.A.

(m) &8
(4) Textile

REBEMR L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERHG(EE)BRAR
China Resources Textiles
(Holdings) Company

Limited

ERBmERAR
China Resources Textiles
Company Limited

AR #543,000,0007C 70.0
RMB543,000,000

AR #50,000,0007C 65.0
RMB50,000,000

200X FIRAE BT 2L BR 51.0
200 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

100,000,001/ FREE
BT LR
100,000,001 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

100.0

5,000,000/ FREE

BT BRR

5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100.0

Z=MAIEAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

IZMBAIRKEELT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

RABAL
Percentage of capital
EREEE  MWERARER
held by the held by
Company subsidiaries

- 100.0

- 100.0

- 100.0

IREH

Principal activities

BEME  BHEE WE
MIRFE#HE

Livestock raising, abattoir
operation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling

AR R
Wholesale and distribution
of meat

A%  mEREREHR
BRI R 2 s
[BERS

Marine fishing, vessel
chartering and the
provision of ship stores,
fishing supplies and
bunker oil

REER
Investment holding

D RIR AR
Trading of textiles and
investment holding

Annual Report 2008 Fk
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IZMBAIRBER

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

WEBLARARKELT

Subsidiaries and associates

() %8z)
(4) Textile (continued)

RA BRI

ERTEBRRE
HE/ ERER
Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

Incorporated in Chinese Mainland

@ EEHRRELRAERDA]

(China Resources Textiles
Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.)

e WRHBERGBBERRA]

(Shandong Liaocheng China
Resources Textiles
Co., Ltd.)

e IRENEBGBERAR

(Shandong Binzhou China
Resources Textiles
Co., Ltd.)

@ FEHERNER LA

(China Resources Jinhua
Co., Ltd.)

@ BAZABGARAT

(China Resources Yantai
Nylon Co., Ltd.)

(B) REN=
(5) Investment Property

REBEMAK L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

ERIME(BE) BB R
CRE Properties
(Hong Kong) Limited

CRE Property (Argyle
Centre) Limited

CRE Property (Silvercord)
Limited

73,200,000 7T
US$73,200,000

20,430,000 7T
US$20,430,000

29,050,000 7T
US$29,050,000

AER#129,665,7187C
RMB129,665,718

27,015,000% 7T
US$27,015,000

MEREEES T LBR
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2MREREEES T L RBR
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2REREEEE T EBR
2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

REBERS
attributable to
the Group

100.0

100.0

100.0

51.0

64.7

100.0

100.0

100.0

BEEDL

Percentage of capital

LN
held by the
Company

KBRS
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

51.0

64.7

100.0

100.0

100.0

IREH

Principal activities

BREERRIBIEEH
Investment holding and
trading of cotton

W E R EHRIRE R
Manufacture and trading
of textile products and
investment holding

WmEEREH
Manufacture and trading of
textile products

W E RS RIRE R
Manufacture and trading
of textile products and
investment holding

R E R A
Manufacture and trading of
fabric products

REERRMEER
Investment holding and
property management

NERE

Property investment

ESIE

Property investment



IZMBAIRKEELT
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

ERITEERRA REBDH
EfE/ FRER Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued _
X , KEEES ARREE  MEARRE —
HWRARREEAR ordinary share capital/ attributable to held by the heldby T2
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
() RER AL
(6) Investments and Others
REBEMR L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EHBENB () 2REREEEE T LR 100.0 100.0 - B
AR 2 ordinary shares of Financing
CRE Finance (Hong Kong) HK$1 each
Limited
RESRBEMA Y
Incorporated in Cayman Islands
Purple Finance Limited IRBRAE T ERR 100.0 100.0 - B
3 ordinary shares of Financing
US$1 each
REBELHEBEMA L
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
@#A HIT Investments Limited 200 BIREEETT 2 BAR 10.0 - 100 HEEBRABEREZE
200 ordinary “A” shares of Investment in container
US$1 each terminal operations in
Hong Kong
@# A Hutchison Ports Yantian 200 FRAEEFET LBR 10.0 - 100 EPEAMRESEIEE
Investments Limited 200 ordinary shares of g
US$1 each Investment in container
terminal operations in the
Chinese Mainland
MEE
Notes:
—.  EERR ZAEVIIFMEMBREEARNFBEEERBANTR M EREFVNHASERENEEATATENZHB AR REE ARFE -
1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or assets of the
Group.
. BKRIHEFHEEN SRR EBEFEMERRINEVE M e
2. Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.
= EREAMEMRKIZIC AR ERXEEANS B ZIETERT
3. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company.
A NE]
A Associates
& BB
* Equity Joint Venture
2 HNERE

i Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

ko FARERE

***  Listed Joint Stock Company

A P XEAATE

2 Chinese trade name

# FBTHSEZME AR ESRERMTEEATLES -

# Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates.
@ WIEREE e F =R T TR TEIZ 2 A F] °

@ Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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F2MFRIlE

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

R=FZLF/N\F+=H=+1—H At 31 December 2008

{ZE Location

FEREM

Properties held for investment

&
Hong Kong

At A0 —Hf

HEEASSD  H T EBD1-418 - 41EFH - 5
KB PR F ST R R S8 B M R B S AR
TEERE A BB 6885 n & E 6555

Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1 to 4/F and Flat Roof of 4/F, 5/F and

Part of External Walls and the Signboard of
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing

Sai Yeung Choi Street South and Argyle Street
and Scavenging lane,

688 Nathan Road, 65 Argyle Street

Mongkok, Kowloon

mg LA O EE 31 K 5 79 EEE T A034-A041

Aos44 ~ A128 ~ A4201 * A4301 * A4502 K A4602 881

Bz mGETS)

K3 ERBRAIERE R R A RKRIEME 2 2=
FIAZEEE L AFK264-2985

Nan Fung Centre

Lorry Parking Space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement

Units Ao34-Ao41, Ao44, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with

Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F

264—298 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories

217

b T oBSR f-10ASR # N — 12 BEE
NEESY AR TEFE3R

Star House

Shop 9B-10A on G/F & Shop B on 1/F

3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

rEE
Frib Rz
Group’s
Interest

1t B 4 5%

Lot number

TLBEAHEER 126255
AR - BR KHER
ZETESnEE
Certain parts or

100%

shares of and

in Sections A, B
and H of Kowloon
Inland Lot No. 1262

£ETIHER
25852 A F1n%8
Sundry shares of

100%

and in Tsuen Wan
Town Lot No. 258

NEe/ S 1057
AR 2 B T & D
Part of and in

100%

Section A of
Kowloon Marine
Lot No. 10

EEEE
(FFHK)
Floor Area Az HIEH
(sq.m.) Type Lease term
7,216 5] =
C Long
7,075 B/ T
c/cp Medium
1,309 ] ~H

C Long



{1 & Location

REREME®

Properties held for investment (continued)

1)

Hong Kong (continued)

LD

30 T 5-185% * 20A * 20B X 20CEREHNL
BFREALAAREFABDBAR)

1238 2B REEETE

8 2158 T 19-315% AR 2-85%

Lok Sing Centre
Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F

Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)
Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level

19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

FER L
T 38558

11E 395058 M2t E 4155

HE13 14

15 16 X175 BT

NBERDIEERB305%

Silvercord
Shop No. 38

Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on
Tower 1 and Car Parking Spaces

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

RERE

on the G/F,

NEEB RSB B 16557

CAC Tower
165 Hoi Bun

Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

2/F

b R 4w 5%

Lot number

N EL83475R 2
AT EMASHER
Certain parts or
shares of and in
Inland Lot No. 8347

BEAVHIER
10656572
A TEMONEE

Certain parts or
shares of and in
Kowloon Inland

Lot No. 10656

BB EZ 3005k
Kwun Tong Inland
Lot No. 300

Z=MAIEAFMR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited

rEE
Pt s
Group’s
Interest

100%

100%

100%

T2MRIRS

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

EHEE
(FF73K)
Floor Area
(sq.m.)

8,982

7,849

13,900

Rz HAFH

Type Lease term

] KB

C Long
/12 KH
c/cp Long
T Gk

| Medium
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FT2MFIBRE

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

{1 & Location

FEREMHX

Properties held for investment (continued)

EHE#)
Hong Kong (continued)

RAERAE

T 5-1i - 1318 - 155202 E(BIEXE)
Kb T 1-235F 8L

NEERDEEME 11557

Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground floor, 5 to 11/F, 13/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and Car Parking Spaces Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

FEH L

1HE1015E - 2B RIERETFS -

LELIRE  6IEER -

21245 EEER

B{7P1-P103 ’ L1-L15 * L17-143

AL RBINIESSTH

Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Unit 401 on 4/F, Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces P1-P103, L1-L15, L17-L43,
88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

FEHE

NBER B 233-2395%

JD Mall, 233-239 Nathan Road,
Jordan, Kowloon

b R 4w 5%

Lot number

FNBEAMER
54625152 T 2810
The Remaining
portion of New
Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 5462

X EAMDE 450
A ER 2B 93755
Lot No. 937 in
Demarcation
District No. 450

TBEAHER 140257
CER AT
JLBEAHBER

1993 52199455
Section C and the
Remaining portion
of Kowloon Inland
Lot No. 1402,
Kowloon Inland
Lot Nos. 1993

and 1994

rEE
Pt s
Group’s
Interest

100%

100%

89%

BHEEE
(FFHK)

Floor Area Az HAFH
(sq.m.) Type Lease term
14,782 L/f% b

I/CP Medium

33,485 I/f& AR A
I/CP Medium

9,599 5 R

C Medium



{E Location

FEREMHX @

Properties held for investment (continued)

EHE#)
Hong Kong (continued)

HEHAE

N E 418

7 7 SR o e 7518 4884905
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

B Ay it
Chinese Mainland

BERATFIMERERENEE

TIP3 R K 1965k
HWE W —&  ZENEBER—E=ENESH

TPIM e R S R IR B — B 305%

mEAE

BERERYImEARIRFIEE
RBAERRANERER

R¥mEDRED 705

== )\E
BisE - ERGEES = EEG
Note: C: Commercial CP: Car Park

T2MRIRS

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

AEH EHEE

bRz (FAK)

WER4mS%  Group’s Floor Area

Lot number Interest (sq.m.)

TLBE S HER 36555 100% 3,125
ABDER R CER 2
aTEH
Certain parts or
shares of and in
Sub-section 1 of
Sections A and C
of Marine
Lot No. 365

TEA 100% 59,447
N/A

TiEA 100% 21,888
N/A

TiE A 100% 16,212
N/A

TiE A 100% 28,058
N/A

o RAE TI: T
0: Office |: Industrial

FEMAIZEAFMR A A China Resources Enterprise, Limited

Rz

BREH

Type Lease term

[
c/o

]
C

Annual

RH
Long

AR A
Medium

A A
Medium

T

Medium

HR A
Medium

Report 2008 F 3§
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hFIBEREE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—TTWFE —TTRF _—TTRF _TTLF ZBENF
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
BEEHET ABEET A%eEr BE¥EsET BEEER
HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million HKS million
mE¥E Consolidated results
. Turnover 47,078 53,891 65,437 62,123 64,628
Lyl Profit attributable to
shareholders 1,480 2,220 2,776 4,961 2,322
BREARZF Basic earnings per share HK$0.70 HK$1.02 HK$1.19 HK$2.09 HKSo.97
BRRE Dividend per share
A A Interim HK$0.11 HK$0.13 HK$0.14 HK$0.15 HKSo.15
REA Final HK$0.16 HK$0.25 HK$0.26 HK$0.30 HKSo.25
HK$0.27 HK$0.38 HK$o0.40 HK$o0.45 HKSo.40
57l HR HA Special interim - - HK$1.00 HK$0.60 -
HEEERER Consolidated balance sheet
EEEE Fixed assets 19,215 21,436 23,040 29,876 36,353
EES Goodwill 2,319 3,084 3,481 6,133 6,385
HEmEpEE Other intangible assets 211 630 113 81 68
RAEJIGE Long term investments 1,659 1,147 1,206 1,493 1,993
TER IR Prepayments 960 411 467 205 198
RIEFIEEE Deferred taxation assets 167 140 123 119 164
mENEE (Af&) Net current assets/(liabilities)

FE 3,140 2,086 1,398 1,003 (524)
BB Employment of capital 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910 44,637
&N Share capital 2,123 2,233 2,358 2,385 2,389
(e Reserves 13,002 15,963 16,783 20,486 22,770
X5 Shareholders’ funds 15,125 18,196 19,141 22,871 25,159
DY R = Minority interests 4,811 4,747 5,824 7,293 9,339
REFE K Long term loans 6,797 5,040 3,840 7,503 8,575
PTEEMTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 11
HitREAE Other non-current liabilities - - - - 215
BIEFIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 938 951 1,023 1,243 1,338
2ERES Capital employed 27,671 28,934 29,828 38,910 44,637




RRAFASRERE

SUMMARY OF NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ATHEERBRRBFASBEZREN 6/
BEEXHHENABRETE ZBHA -

EHAEERAAZEIR_ETAFERA=-TI

HESHATT=R=15 BESSETESE

HFREDLEEES26BITREAFAE  UE

RIETYISEIE -

EERER

1. AEREEHE_ZZT/N\F+-_A=+—H
IHFEEER MRS EHEETEHRENTB
STZERERE o

2. EMRBERBARE -

3. EERISENETHRESEEZHE -

4 RBEZHAEEEESSETHEMNS -

5. BYEEMERENELRTBBADEITRA
10% 2 B&15 °

6. RTIEFRREUBTTEBEBITRA
20% 2 B2HMIK D °

7. FENMAERRESARREEREE
BROBE - REARRERECHAWET
B 2 — MR -

BRIRER

1. EEAAAREBEEMA -

Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at Meeting Room S226, Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition

Centre, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 29 May 2009 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Directors’ Report and the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3.  To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4. To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional
shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7.  To extend the general mandate to issue shares under item 6 hereof
by the addition thereto of the number of shares repurchased under
item 5 hereof.

SPECIAL RESOLUTION

1. To amend the articles of association of the Company.

FEMAIZEBFRAE China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2008 3R

197



NG
CORPORATE INFORMATION

(BRHETFRERATES BT NFNA=THEER)
(Has tendered resignation as Chairman and Executive Director
with effect from 30 April 2009)

£ R

Chairman Song Lin

BITES SHK (ERZAERTE B_ZFFTNFHA=THELR)

Executive Director Qiao Shibo (Has been appointed as Chairman with effect from 30 April 2009)

ExagHE

Managing Director

BESELE
Deputy Managing Directors

FHITES

Non-Executive Directors

BYEHITES
Independent
Non-Executive Directors

DNEMWE
Company Secretary

%A
Auditors

PSR
Registered Office

FERT

Principal Bankers

R EA
Chen Lang

¥

Wang Qun
=D

Lau Pak Shing
&SR

Kwong Man Him

EE

Jiang Wei
FAbEE

Wang Shuaiting
)

Yan Biao
/A

Li Fuzuo

HXE

Du Wenmin

R 55

Chan Po Fun, Peter
BEAE

Houang Tai Ninh
R

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
BEE

Cheng Mo Chi

BRE 2

Bernard Charnwut Chan
B

Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

>
Lee Yip Wah, Peter

=g - BERATSMT

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

BEBEBFEEE265REBAEI0E
39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FEIRIT(EE)BRAE

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
HRA RS

Rabobank International
HBERITROBERA

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
HEEHERT

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.
=ZERFUFJRIT

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
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REBEE I
INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

DI EFRE

Announcement of annual results

BEERBRRREEFRG ZHRERI
Last day of dealings in shares with
entitlement to final dividend

HEBFAH
Closure of register period

REBREANKAE

Payment of final dividend

IR 10 = RC R

Share Registrars

RELER

Depositary

& 101X 55%
Stock Codes

REEBR

Investor Relations

20093 H31H
31 March 2009

20094 5 A 20H
20 May 2009

2009%F 5 H25 HE5 A29H
(BiEEaRMX)

25 May 2009 to 29 May 2009
(both days inclusive)

2009 4F 6 A 12 B e A&
On or about 12 June 2009

BEFEEERAA
BERELT

SRABR 2855
TEED L2612

Tricor Standard Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
PO Box 358516

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516

USA

BBBE R ZFT : 00291

1§ 291 HK

BiFEM : 0291.HK

ADR {55 : CRHKY

CUSIP : 16940R109

Hong Kong Stock Exchange : 00291
Bloomberg : 291 HK

Reuters : 0291.HK

ADR symbol : CRHKY

CUSIP : 16940R109

BE : ir@cre.com.hk
Email : ir@cre.com.hk
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